
Dieser Wertpapierprospekt wurde von der Finanzmarktaufsicht Liechtenstein am 20.05.2021 gebilligt und ist bis 19.05.2022 gültig. Im Falle wichtiger neuer Um-
stände, wesentlicher Unrichtigkeiten oder wesentlicher Ungenauigkeiten hat die Emittentin einen Nachtrag zum Prospekt zu erstellen. Eine Nachtragspflicht 
besteht jedoch nicht mehr nach Ablauf der Gültigkeit des Prospekts. 

ZUSAMMENFASSUNG ZUM  
WERTPAPIERPROSPEKT 
für die Begebung von Schuldverschreibungen 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG 

THOMASLL. 5,075/31 EUR 

ISIN:  LI1111628304 
Valor: 111162830 
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 Zusammenfassung 

 Einleitung und Warnhinweise 
Die Emittentin ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers, Liechtenstein  
(LEI 391200KABA0XCWJDTK89), begibt auf Basis dieses Wertpapierprospektes eine Anleihe mit der Bezeichnung  
THOMASLL. 5,075/31 EUR, ISIN LI1111628304. 
Dieser Wertpapierprospekt wurde von der Finanzmarktaufsicht Liechtenstein, Landstrasse 109, Postfach 279, 9490 Vaduz  
(info@fma-li.li) am 20.05.2021 gebilligt. 
Diese Zusammenfassung enthält eine Darstellung der wesentlichen Merkmale und Risiken bezogen auf die Emittentin, das angebotene 
Wertpapier und die Vertragspartner. Die Zusammenfassung ist eine Einleitung zum Prospekt und sollte immer zusammen mit dem ge-
samten Prospekt gelesen werden. Eine gründliche Prüfung des gesamten Prospektes wird daher vor einer Erwerbs- bzw. Zeichnungs-
entscheidung nachhaltig empfohlen.  
Anleger werden darauf hingewiesen, dass sie im Begriff sind, ein komplexes Produkt zu erwerben, das nicht einfach ist und schwer zu 
verstehen sein kann. Es besteht das Risiko, dass Anleger das gesamte angelegte Kapital oder einen Teil davon verlieren können. 
Die Emittentin weist darauf hin, dass für den Fall, dass vor einem Gericht Ansprüche aufgrund der in diesem Prospekt enthaltenen In-
formationen geltend gemacht werden, der als Kläger auftretende Anleger in Anwendung einzelstaatlicher Rechtsvorschriften der Mit-
gliedstaaten die Kosten für die Übersetzung des Prospekts vor Prozessbeginn zu tragen haben könnte. 
Zudem weist die Emittentin darauf hin, dass die Emittentin ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, welche die Ver-
antwortung für die Zusammenfassung einschließlich einer etwaigen Übersetzung davon übernommen hat, haftbar gemacht werden 
kann für den Fall, dass die Zusammenfassung irreführend, unrichtig oder widersprüchlich ist oder wenn diese, wenn sie zusammen mit 
anderen Teilen des Prospekts gelesen wird, nicht die Basisinformationen vermittelt, die in Bezug auf Anlagen in die betreffenden Wert-
papiere für die Anleger eine Entscheidungshilfe darstellen. 

 Basisinformationen über die Emittentin 

 Wer ist der Emittent der Wertpapiere? 
Die Emittentin ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG ist eine Aktiengesellschaft nach dem Recht des Fürstentums 
Liechtenstein und hat ihren Sitz an der Adresse Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers, Fürstentum Liechtenstein. Die Gesellschaft wurde am 
23. März 2017 unter der Registernummer FL-0002.543.640-8 im Öffentlichkeitsregister des Fürstentums Liechtenstein eingetragen. Der 
LEI der Gesellschaft lautet 391200KABA0XCWJDTK89. 

Die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG ist Teil der ThomasLloyd Group, welche auf die Finanzierung von und 
Investitionen in Infrastrukturprojekte spezialisiert ist. Die Emittentin wurde ausschliesslich zu dem Zweck gegründet, Wertschriften zur 
Beschaffung von Finanzmitteln zur Investition in die von der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH verfolgten Anlage-
ziele über Zeichnung von Globalschuldverschreibungen der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH zu emittieren. 
Die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG ist eine 100 %ige Tochtergesellschaft der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH, Hanauer Landstrasse 291b, 60314 Frankfurt am Main, Bundesrepublik Deutschland. Die ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH ihrerseits ist eine 100 %ige Tochtergesellschaft der ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd, 160 Victoria Street, 
London SW1E 5LB, UK, welche von der MNA Capital Pte Ltd, 80 Robinson Road, 068898 Singapore, gehalten wird. 
Die Mitglieder des Verwaltungsrates der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG und zugleich deren Geschäftsführer 
sind Matthias Klein und Clemens Laternser. Abschlussprüfer der Gesellschaft ist die CONFIDA Wirtschaftsprüfung AG, Kirchstrasse 3, 
9490 Vaduz. 

 Welches sind die zentralen Risiken, die für die Emittentin spezifisch sind? 

Special Purpose Vehicle 
Bei der Emittentin handelt es sich um ein Special Purpose Vehicle, somit um eine Gesellschaft, die ausschliesslich zum Zweck der 
Emission der gegenständlichen Anleihe sowie weiterer Finanzinstrumente gegründet wurde. Die Emissionserlöse der gegen-
ständlichen Anleihe sowie weiterer Finanzinstrumente, welche die Emittentin begeben hat oder noch begeben wird, werden gesamthaft 
über die Zeichnung von Globalschuldverschreibungen in die Muttergesellschaft ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH investiert. Die einzigen wesentlichen Vermögenswerte und Einnahmequellen der Emittentin sind (a) die von der Muttergesell-
schaft emittierten Globalschuldverschreibungen, in welche die Emissionserlöse investiert werden, (b) Patronatserklärungen der Mutter-
gesellschaft in Bezug auf die von der Emittentin ausgegebenen Anleihen sowie (c) ein Kostenübernahmevertrag zwischen der 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH und der Emittentin zugunsten der Emittentin. 
Die Fähigkeit der Emittentin, ihren finanziellen Verpflichtungen gegenüber Anleihegläubigern nachzukommen, hängt somit massgeblich 
von der Fähigkeit der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, ihren Verpflichtungen gemäss Globalschuldverschreibun-
gen, Patronatserklärung und Kostenübernahmevertrag nachzukommen, ab. 
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Kreditrisiko 
Unter Kreditrisiko wird das Risiko von Verlusten der Emittentin verstanden, welche entstehen können, wenn Drittparteien ihre Verpflich-
tungen gegenüber der Emittentin nicht erfüllen. Die Emittentin ist aufgrund ihrer Investitionen in von der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH emittierte Globalschuldverschreibungen einem Kreditrisiko ausgesetzt.  

Liquiditätsrisiko 
Unter Liquiditätsrisiko versteht man das Risiko, dass kurzfristige liquide Mittel zur Erfüllung von Verbindlichkeiten der Emittentin fehlen, 
somit das Risiko eines Ungleichgewichts zwischen Vermögenswerten und Verbindlichkeiten der Emittentin. Wie auch im Falle des Kre-
ditrisikos besteht das Liquiditätsrisiko der Emittentin hauptsächlich in der Fähigkeit der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH, ihre Verpflichtungen gemäss den von ihr emittierten Globalschuldverschreibungen gegenüber der Emittentin vollständig und 
zeitgerecht erfüllen zu können. Ebenso ist es wesentlich, dass die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH ihre Verpflich-
tungen gemäss Patronatserklärungen und Kostenübernahmevertrag gegenüber der Emittentin erfüllt.  

Risiko weiterer Fremdfinanzierung durch die Emittentin 
Es bestehen keine signifikanten rechtlichen Restriktionen in Bezug auf Umfang und Bedingungen für die Aufnahme weiterer zukünftiger 
nicht nachrangiger Fremdfinanzierungen durch die Emittentin. Nimmt die Emittentin weitere (besicherte oder unbesicherte) Fremdfinan-
zierungen auf kann dies dazu führen, dass die Ansprüche von Gläubigern dieser Anleihe im Falle der Insolvenz der Emittentin mit einer 
geringeren Quote befriedigt werden als dies der Fall wäre, würde die Emittentin keine weiteren Fremdfinanzierungsmittel akzeptieren. 
Höhere Fremdfinanzierung erhöht das Risiko, dass die Emittentin nicht in der Lage ist, ihre Verbindlichkeiten aus dieser Anleihe zu 
bedienen. Dies kann für den Investor zum gänzlichen oder teilweisen Verlust seines Investments in diese Anleihe führen. 
Werden die Anleihen im Rahmen der Ausübung der in diesem Prospekt vorgesehenen Wandlungsoption der Anleiheschuldnerin in 
Aktien umgetauscht, so wandelt sich die Gläubigerforderung des Anleihegläubigers in eine Eigenkapitalbeteiligung an der Anleihe-
schuldnerin. Eigenkapitalforderungen in Bezug auf liechtensteinische Aktiengesellschaften sind gegenüber Gläubigerforderungen nach-
rangig. 

 Welches sind die wesentlichen Finanzinformationen über die Emittentin? 

 
Der Abschlussprüfer hat uneingeschränkte Bestätigungsvermerke zu den Jahresabschlüssen des Emittenten für die zum 31. Dezember 
2019, 2018 und 2017 abgeschlossenen Geschäftsjahre erteilt. 

 
Der Abschlussprüfer hat uneingeschränkte Bestätigungsvermerke zu den Jahresabschlüssen des Emittenten für die zum 31. Dezember 
2019, 2018 und 2017 abgeschlossenen Geschäftsjahre erteilt. 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG 

Bilanz in CHF 

 2019 2018 2017 
Total Anlagevermögen 60.794.250,85 29.556.657,46 1.432.427,45 
Total Umlaufsvermögen 4.500.441,23 2.698.109,39 374.563,15 
Aktive Rechnungsabgrenzungsposten 5.204.970,79 1.060.274,82 106.565,43 
Total Aktiva 70.499.662,87 33.315.041,67 1.913.556,03 
Total Eigenkapital 50.000,00 50.000,00 50.000,00 
Rückstellungen 0,00 0,00 0,00 
Verbindlichkeiten 70.373.177,28 33.222.043,56 1.817.162,62 
Passive Rechnungsabgrenzungsposten 76.485,59 42.998,11 46.393,64 
Total Passiva 70.499.662,87 33.315.041,67 1.913.556,03 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG 

Erfolgsrechnung in CHF 

 2019 2018 2017 
Rohergebnis 334.385,61 870.506,06 199.508,74 
Sonstige betriebliche Aufwendungen (220.673,50) (200.392,57) (196.769,82) 
Sonstige Zinsen und Erträge 1.942.283,91 4.207,08 0,00 
Zinsen und ähnliche aufwendungen (2.054.196,02) (672.520,57) (938,92) 
Steuern auf das Ergebnis (1.800,00) (1.800,00) (1.800,00) 
Jahresverlust / -gewinn 0,00 0,00 0,00 
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 Basisinformationen über den ThomasLL. 5,075/31 EUR 

 Welches sind die wichtigsten Merkmale der Wertpapiere? 
Bei der auf Basis dieses Prospekts angebotenen ThomasLL. 5,075/31 EUR Anleihe (nachfolgend „Anleihe“), ISIN LI1111628304, 
handelt es sich um eine auf den Inhaber lautende, in Euro begebene Schuldverschreibung mit einer Laufzeit vom 20.05.2021 bis 
31.12.2031.  
Das Gesamtemissionsvolumen beträgt EUR 100‘000‘000 (in Worten: einhundert Millionen Euro) bei einer Stückelung von jeweils  
EUR 1‘000 Nennbetrag (in Worten: tausend Euro). Die Mindestzeichnungssumme pro Investor beträgt EUR 10‘000 (in Worten: zehn-
tausend Euro).  

Die Schuldverschreibungen stellen unmittelbare, unbedingte und nicht nachrangige Verbindlichkeiten der Emittentin dar und haben den 
gleichen Rang wie alle anderen unbesicherten nicht nachrangigen Verbindlichkeiten der Emittentin, unbeschadet etwaiger solcher Ver-
bindlichkeiten, die aufgrund gesetzlicher Bestimmungen Vorrang geniessen. 

Die Anleihe wird während ihrer Laufzeit mit einem jährlichen Fixzins von 5,075 % verzinst (Zinsusanz: Act/Act – ICMA Rule 251 (tagge-
nau), dabei gilt folgendes: Monat: 28 – 31 Tage; Jahr: 365 Tage, Schaltjahr 366 Tage. 
Die Zinsen werden ab (einschliesslich) 20.05.2021 (anteilig) quartalsweise zum 31. März, 30. Juni, 30. September und zum 31. Dezem-
ber berechnet und ausbezahlt. Zinszahlungen erfolgen jeweils nachträglich innert 10 Bankarbeitstagen nach Quartalsende. Die erste 
(pro rata) Zinszahlung erfolgt somit spätestens am 14. Juli 2021. Die Zinszahlung für das letzte Quartal der Laufzeit erfolgt gleichzeitig 
mit Tilgung der Anleihe.  

Die Anleihen werden zum Fälligkeitstag 31.12.2031 zur Rückzahlung fällig. Die Auszahlung des Nennbetrages erfolgt innert 10 Bankar-
beitstagen nach Fälligkeit. 
Die Anleiheschuldnerin ist berechtigt, die Schuldverschreibungen im Falle einer Börsenkotierung der Aktien der Anleiheschuldnerin 
in Aktien der Anleiheschuldnerin zum Kurs von 105,075% zu konvertieren.  
Dem Anleger sowie der Emittentin steht ein vorzeitiges Kündigungsrecht der Anleihe erstmals zum 31.06.2026 zu. Danach kann die 
Anleihe jeweils zum 30. Juni und zum 31. Dezember eines Jahres gekündigt werden. Die Kündigungsfrist beträgt 12 Monate. Ist ein 
Anleihegläubiger von einem sozialen Härtefall (z.B. Arbeitslosigkeit, Insolvenz, Todesfall) betroffen, kann er der Emittentin einen be-
gründeten Kündigungswunsch übermitteln. Die Annahme der Kündigung liegt diesfalls im freien Ermessen der Emittentin.  
Im Falle von Kündigungen gelten die Rückzahlungsverpflichtungen der Emittentin für die Dauer von bis zu 3 Jahren als gestundet, 
wenn die Erfüllung von aus Kündigungen von Anleihegläubigern resultierenden Verpflichtungen der Emittentin zum Fälligkeitszeitpunkt 
zu deren Insolvenz führen würde. Für die Dauer der Stundung läuft die Verzinsung der ausstehenden Beträge gemäss diesen Anlei-
hebedingungen bis zur tatsächlichen vollständigen Rückzahlung weiter.  

 Wo werden die Wertpapiere gehandelt? 
Die Schuldverschreibungen können grundsätzlich nach den Bestimmungen der SIX SIS AG frei übertragen werden. Es besteht aller-
dings keine Zulassung zu einem geregelten oder ungeregelten Markt, was eine faktische Einschränkung der Handelbarkeit darstellen 
kann. Die Emittentin behält sich vor, die Zulassung zum Handel an einem geregelten oder ungeregelten Markt zu beantragen. Die An-
leihe kann von jeder natürlichen oder juristischen Person mit Wohnsitz bzw. Sitz in der Schweiz, in Liechtenstein, Belgien, Frankreich, 
Deutschland, Luxemburg, Österreich, der Slowakei, der Tschechischen Republik oder in einem anderen EWR Staat erworben werden. 

 Wird für die Wertpapiere eine Garantie gestellt? 
Zur Besicherung der Bedienung der Anleiheverbindlichkeiten durch die Emittentin und zugunsten der Anleihegläubiger liegt eine Patro-
natserklärung der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, der Muttergesellschaft der Emittentin, vor. Danach übernimmt 
die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH gegenüber den Anleihegläubigern die uneingeschränkte, unbedingte, unbe-
fristete und unwiderrufliche Verpflichtung, dafür zu sorgen, dass die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG stets so 
geleitet und finanziell so ausgestattet wird, dass ihre Bonität erhalten bleibt und sie jederzeit in der Lage ist, ihre Verpflichtungen aus 
dieser Anleihe zur Zahlung von Kapital und Zinsen nach Massgabe der Anleihebedingungen zu erfüllen. Soweit die ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG begründete und fällige Ansprüche aus den Schuldverschreibungen (Zinszahlungen, Rück-
zahlung) nicht bedient, kann sich der Anleihegläubiger direkt an die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH wenden. 
Es besteht weiters ein Kostenübernahmevertrag zwischen der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH und der Emitten-
tin, wonach sich die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH verpflichtet, sämtliche Aufwendungen und Kosten der Emit-
tentin im Zusammenhang mit der Gründung der Emittentin, der gegenständlichen Emission ebenso wie der laufenden Kosten der Emit-
tentin zu tragen. 
Die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH (LEI: 391200RVK5MPKRZEMA60) ist eine Gesellschaft mit beschränkter 
Haftung, welche in Deutschland gegründet wurde und dem Recht Deutschlands unterliegt. Der juristische Sitz der Gesellschaft ist  
Langen im Emsland, der Sitz der Verwaltung befindet sich in Frankfurt am Main (Geschäftsanschrift: Hanauer Landstrasse 291b,  
60314 Frankfurt am Main). 
Die nachfolgend dargestellten ausgewählten Finanzinformationen wurden ohne wesentliche Anpassung aus den historischen Finanzin-
formationen der Muttergesellschaft des Emittenten, der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, entnommen. Die Finanz-
informationen zum und für das am 31. Dezember 2019 endende Jahr wurden dem geprüften Jahresabschluss dieses Jahres entnom-
men, einschließlich des entsprechenden Vergleichszeitraums, der zu Darstellungszwecken aufgrund der Anwendung relevanter Rech-
nungslegungsstandards angepasst wurde. Durch die Neudarstellung ergaben sich keine Änderungen der Gesamtertrags-, Finanz- und 
Vermögenslage des Unternehmens. Die geprüften Finanzinformationen zum und für das am 31. Dezember 2018 und 2017 endende 
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Geschäftsjahr wurden den geprüften Jahresabschlüssen für diese Jahre entnommen. Potenzielle Anleger sollten die folgenden ausge-
wählten Finanzinformationen zusammen mit dem gesamten vorliegenden Dokument prüfen und sich nicht auf die nachstehenden aus-
gewählten Finanzinformationen verlassen. 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – Bilanz (IFRS) 
in TEUR 

 2019 2018 
(ungeprüft) 

2018 2017 

Langfristige Vermögenswerte, gesamt 392.272 293.405 293.405 80.450 
Kurzfristige Vermögenswerte, gesamt 78.980 49.383 48.453 189.564 
Vermögenswerte 471.252 342.788 341.858 270.014 
Kurzfristige Verbindlichkeiten, gesamt 17.588 19.003 21.807 18.241 
Langfristige Verbindlichkeiten, gesamt 453.665 323.790 320.776 251.776 
Verbindlichkeiten, gesamt 471.254 342.793 341.863 270.017 
Eigenkapital, gesamt (2) (5) (5) (-3) 
Eigenkapital und Verbindlichkeiten, gesamt 471,252 342,788 341,858 270,014 

 
Der Abschlussprüfer hat uneingeschränkte Bestätigungsvermerke zu den Jahresabschlüssen der Gesellschaft für die zum 31. Dezem-
ber 2019, 2018 und 2017 abgeschlossenen Geschäftsjahre erteilt. 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung (IFRS) 
in TEUR 

 2019 2018 
(ungeprüft) 

2018 2017 

Erträge und Veränderung des Finanzanlagevermögens, gesamt 12.806 (16.789) 29.912 49.628 
Gebühren und Kosten, gesamt (16.272) (8.210) (55.661) (44.688) 
Betriebsverlust (3.466) (24.999) (25.749) 4.940 
Verlust vor Steuern und vor stillen Beteiligungen (8.840) (30.599) (30.598) 3.876 
Gesamtverlust für die Periode (13.743) (39.656) (2) (5) 
Sonstiger Gesamtverlust – Beteiligung stiller Gesellschafter 13.744 39.653 - - 
Gesellschaftern zurechenbares Gesamtergebnis (1) (3) (2) (5) 

 
Der Abschlussprüfer hat uneingeschränkte Bestätigungsvermerke zu den Jahresabschlüssen der Gesellschaft für die zum 31. Dezem-
ber 2019, 2018 und 2017 abgeschlossenen Geschäftsjahre erteilt. 

 Welches sind die zentralen Risiken in Bezug auf das Wertpapier? 

Risiken in Bezug auf die Beschaffenheit der Wertpapiere 
Diese Anleihe stellt ein komplexes Finanzinstrument dar. Ein Investment in diese Anleihe sollte nicht erfolgen ohne professionelle Ein-
schätzung (welche der Investor allein oder mit Unterstützung eines Finanzberaters vornehmen sollte), wie sich Rückflüsse und Rendi-
ten aus dieser Anleihe bei wechselnden Bedingungen, welche den Wert dieser Anleihe bestimmen, entwickeln können und wie sich 
dieses Investment auf das Gesamtportfolio eines potenziellen Investors auswirkt. Der Investor trägt das Risiko, das ein Investment in 
diese Anleihe für ihn nicht angemessen sein kann. 

Risiko weiterer Fremdfinanzierung durch die Emittentin 
Die Emittentin hat weitere Wertpapiere zur Fremdfinanzierung emittiert und kann noch weitere Wertpapiere zur Fremdfinanzierung 
emittieren. Höhere Fremdfinanzierung erhöht das Risiko, dass die Emittentin nicht in der Lage ist, ihre Verbindlichkeiten aus dieser 
Anleihe zu bedienen. Dies kann für den Investor zum gänzlichen oder teilweisen Verlust seines Investments in diese Anleihe führen. 

Rangstellung 
Die Anleger können nicht von der Emittentin verlangen, dass der Anspruch der Anleihegläubiger auf Kapitalrückzahlungen, Zahlung 
einer Beteiligungsprämie und Zinszahlung gegenüber anderen Ansprüchen gegenüber der Emittentin vorrangig ausgezahlt wird, soweit 
diese anderen Ansprüche im gleichen Rang mit den Ansprüchen der Anleihegläubiger stehen.  
Werden die Anleihen im Rahmen der Ausübung der in diesem Prospekt vorgesehenen Wandlungsoption der Anleiheschuldnerin in 
Aktien umgetauscht, so wandelt sich die Gläubigerforderung des Anleihegläubigers in eine Eigenkapitalbeteiligung an der Anleihe-
schuldnerin. Eigenkapitalforderungen in Bezug auf liechtensteinische Aktiengesellschaften sind gegenüber Gläubigerforderungen nach-
rangig. 
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Risiken in Bezug auf die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

Die Emissionserlöse der gegenständlichen Anleihe sowie allfälliger weiterer Finanzinstrumente werden von der Emittentin 
fortlaufend gesamthaft über die Zeichnung von Globalschuldverschreibungen in die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH investiert. Weiters bestehen Kostenübernahmeverträge zwischen der Emittentin und der ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH sowie Patronatserklärungen der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH zu-
gunsten der Emittentin bzw. zur Besicherung derer Verpflichtungen gegenüber den Anlegern. 
Somit sind die nachfolgend angeführten wesentlichen Risiken bezüglich der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH mit-
telbar auch für die Emittentin von Relevanz. 

Risiko von Zahlungsausfällen 
Die Fähigkeit der Emittentin, ihre Verpflichtungen gemäss dieser Anleihe zu erfüllen hängt wesentlich von der Kreditwürdigkeit und Sol-
venz der Muttergesellschaft ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH ab, welche ihrerseits Schuldnerin der Emittentin auf 
Basis der von der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH emittierten Globalschuldverschreibungen und allfälliger weite-
rer Finanzinstrumente, in welche die Emittentin die Emissionserlöse der gegenständlichen Anleihe investiert, ist. 

Ebenso wie bei jeder anderen finanziellen Verpflichtung besteht das Risiko, dass Verpflichtungen aus der Anleihe von der Emittentin 
nicht erfüllt werden. Die Rückzahlung am Laufzeitende kann unter dem Betrag liegen, den der Anleihegläubiger ursprünglich investiert 
hat; unter gewissen Umständen kann sowohl die Bezahlung der Beteiligungsprämie als auch die Rückzahlung gänzlich ausbleiben. Die 
Emittentin kann unter bestimmten Umständen nicht in der Lage sein, Zinszahlungen zu leisten.  
Anleihen sind Kapitalanlagen, für die keine gesetzliche Einlagensicherung besteht. 

Zinsrisiko 
Ein Investor, der in eine Anleihe mit fixer Verzinsung investiert hat, trägt das Risiko eines Verfalls des Preises der Anleihe als Folge von 
Veränderungen des Marktzinssatzes. Dieses Risiko besteht im Falle eines Verkaufs der Anleihe über den Sekundärmarkt, nicht aber 
dann, wenn die Anleihe am Ende der Laufzeit von der Emittentin getilgt oder zurückgekauft wird. Risiken in Bezug auf die Geschäftstä-
tigkeit und die Branche der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

Risiken in Bezug auf die Geschäftstätigkeit und die Branche der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

Risiken bezüglich der Auswahl von Investmentprojekten 
Die Bedingungen der Globalschuldverschreibungen enthalten keine Vorgaben, in welche Projekte die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH die von der Emittentin im Wege der Zeichnung von Globalschuldverschreibungen erhaltenen Gelder zu inves-
tieren hat. Die Erträge, finanzielle Position und Fähigkeit der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, ihre Verbindlichkei-
ten zu erfüllen, hängt davon ab, ob die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH in der Lage ist, ausreichend Investitions-
möglichkeiten zu erkennen und die damit verbundenen Ertragschancen und Risiken korrekt zu beurteilen. 

Es kann nicht ausgeschlossen werden, dass die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH nur eine begrenzte Anzahl von 
Beteiligungen unmittelbar/mittelbar erwirbt bzw. sich nur an einer begrenzten Anzahl von Investmentprojekten beteiligt. Schlechte Er-
gebnisse von wenigen Investitionen könnten die Erträge sowie die finanzielle Position der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Hol-
ding GmbH stärker beeinträchtigen, als dies bei einem umfassenderen Portfolio von Projekten und Beteiligungsgesellschaften mit hö-
herer Diversifikation der Fall wäre.  

Risiko fehlender Investitionsprojekte 
Da die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH und Beteiligungsgesellschaften, in welche die ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH ihrerseits investiert, gewisse Anforderungen an die zu investierenden Projekte stellen, ist nicht auszu-
schließen, dass zum nächstmöglichen Zeitpunkt einer Investition nicht genügend geeignete Projekte vorhanden sind, in die Investitio-
nen möglich sind oder für zielführend erachtet werden. Für diesen Fall und aufgrund dadurch fehlender Erlöse aus Investitionen besteht 
das Risiko, dass die kalkulierten Ergebnisse nicht erwirtschaftet werden können. Dies könnte sich wiederum mittelbar negativ auf die 
Ergebnisse und die finanzielle Situation der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH und somit auf ihre Fähigkeit, ihre 
Verbindlichkeiten zu bedienen, auswirken. 

Risiken in Bezug auf die Finanzlage der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

Risiko der Fremdkapitalverfügbarkeit 
Um eine optimierte Kapitalstruktur zu erreichen, kommt es beim Erwerb beziehungsweise der Refinanzierung von Projekten und Unter-
nehmen im Bereich Infrastruktur neben der Verfügbarkeit von Eigenkapital vor allem darauf an, dass in ausreichendem Umfang und zu 
angemessenen Konditionen Fremdkapital am Markt aufgenommen werden kann. Engpässe bei der Verfügbarkeit von Fremdkapital 
können dazu führen, dass Investitionen nicht im geplanten Umfang oder nur mit erhöhten Kosten der Fremdfinanzierung getätigt wer-
den können. Dies kann sich negativ auf die Ergebnisse und die finanzielle Position der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH und deren Fähigkeit, ihren Verbindlichkeiten nachzukommen, auswirken. 

Finanzierungsrisiken 
Projekte und Unternehmen im Bereich Infrastruktur sind oft in hohem Umfang fremdfinanziert und aus diesem Grund für nachteilige 
Zinsänderungen, eine rückläufige Konjunktur, Änderungen des Kapitalmarktes und einen höheren Kapitaldienst anfälliger als Projekte 
und Unternehmen, die nicht oder nur in geringem Ausmaß mit Fremdkapital finanziert sind. Dies kann dazu führen, dass die von der 
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ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH gehaltenen Beteiligungen oder Investmentprojekte, an denen sie sich beteiligt, 
nicht fertig gestellt werden können oder nicht mehr in der Lage sind, den zukünftigen Betrieb und Kapitalbedarf zu finanzieren. Als 
Folge kann es wiederum zu restriktiven finanziellen und betrieblichen Auflagen der finanzierenden Banken kommen, wie z.B. die Forde-
rung, (vorübergehend) keine Ausschüttungen oder Dividendenzahlungen mehr zu tätigen. Veränderungen der Zinssätze wirken sich 
darüber hinaus unter Umständen auch auf den jeweiligen Diskontierungssatz aus, der zur Bewertung der Projekte und Unternehmen 
heranzuziehen ist. Deshalb kann diese Bewertung Schwankungen ausgesetzt sein. Dies kann sich negativ auf die Preise auswirken, 
die sich bei einer Veräußerung von Beteiligungen erzielen lassen.  

Risiko zusätzlicher und erhöhter Kosten eines Investmentprojekts 
Generell sind die Investmentaktivitäten der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH mit dem Risiko verbunden, dass die 
mit einem konkreten Investmentprojekt verbundenen Kosten gemäss Investmentplan und -budget (z.B. Produktionskosten, Kosten von 
Anlagen, Entwicklungs- und / oder Konstruktionskosten bei sog. „Greenfield-Projekten“) als Konsequenz unerwarteter Änderungen oder 
unvollständiger oder unrichtiger Informationen, welche die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH als Grundlage ihrer 
Investmententscheidung verwendete, überschritten werden.  

Rechtliche und politische Risiken 
Die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH investiert in Infrastrukturprojekte. Sie ist somit im jeweiligen Staat, in wel-
chem sie aufgrund ihrer Investments tätig ist, politischen und rechtlichen Risiken ausgesetzt. Zum Zeitpunkt der Erstellung dieses Pros-
pektes befinden sich die Investmentprojekte der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH auf den Philippinen und in In-
dien. Die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH ist somit politischen Risiken, die in diesen Ländern bestehen, ausge-
setzt. Als politische Risiken in den Philippinen sind insbesondere die weitreichende Korruption, schlechte Durchsetzbarkeit von rechtli-
chen Ansprüchen und inkonsistente Anwendung rechtlicher Bestimmungen einschliesslich Bestimmungen über öffentliche Auftrags-
vergabe, Steuern und Landnutzung, zu nennen. In Indien könnten strukturelle Defizite des öffentlichen Sektors, ein hoher Verschul-
dungsgrad und hohe Staatsausgaben zu politischen Risiken führen. 
Soweit die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH in Ländern investiert, in denen Kapitalverkehrskontrollen bestehen 
oder eingeführt werden, kann nicht ausgeschlossen werden, dass aufgrund des Bestehens oder der Einführung von Kapitalverkehrs-
kontrollen eine Rückführung von Investitionen oder eine Ausschüttung von Erträgen aus Investmentprojekten an die ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH nach Deutschland nicht möglich ist. 
In den Philippinen unterliegen Aktivitäten ausländischer Unternehmen gewissen Restriktionen. Gemäss dem Recht der Philippinen 
muss die Mehrheit eines Unternehmens, welches in einem staatlich definierten Schlüsselsektor, z.B. dem Energiesektor, tätig ist von 
einer lokalen Gesellschaft (bzw. lokalen Gesellschaften) gehalten werden. Die Umsetzung oder Verstärkung derartiger Restriktionen 
und protektionistischer Massnahmen in den Philippinen oder in anderen Wachstums- und Schwellenländern kann für die Zukunft nicht 
ausgeschlossen werden. 

 Basisinformationen über das öffentliche Angebot 

 Zu welchen Konditionen und nach welchem Zeitplan kann ich in dieses Wertpapier investieren? 
Die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, FL-9496 Balzers, (nachfolgend „Emittentin“), begibt eine auf den Inha-
ber lautende Schuldverschreibung (ThomasLL. 5,075/31 EUR (nachfolgend „Anleihe“)) mit fixer Verzinsung von 5,075 % p.a. und 
einer Laufzeit vom 20.05.2021 bis 31.12.2031. Sowohl die Investoren als auch die Emittentin haben nach Ablauf einer Mindesthaltefrist 
die Möglichkeit, die Anleihe gemäss den Kündigungsbestimmungen zu kündigen. 
Die Anleihe ist in Schuldverschreibungen mit Nominalwert von jeweils EUR 1‘000.- gestückelt, die Mindestzeichnungssumme pro Inves-
tor beträgt EUR 10‘000.-. Jede höhere Zeichnungssumme muss durch 1.000 teilbar sein, es besteht keine Zeichnungshöchstgrenze pro 
Investor. 
Der Ausgabekurs der Anleihe entspricht dem Nominalwert zuzüglich Stückzinsen. Die Emittentin stellt den Zeichnern im Übrigen keine 
Kosten oder Gebühren in Rechnung. 

Die Emission erfolgt auf fortlaufender Basis ab den 20.05.2021 und endet mit Vollplatzierung der Anleihe oder bei vorzeitiger Beendi-
gung der Anleihe durch die Emittentin, spätestens mit Ablauf eines Jahres nach dem Datum der Billigung des Wertpapierprospektes.  

Zahlstelle ist die Bank Frick & Co. AG, Landstrasse 14, FL-9496 Balzers. Zeichnungsaufträge können während den üblichen Banköff-
nungszeiten (Feiertage ausgenommen), jeweils zwischen 08.00 Uhr und 18.00 Uhr MEZ und über die folgenden Annahmestellen bei 
der Zahlstelle platziert werden: 

E-Mail: trading@bankfrick.li 
Fax: 00423 388 21 15 
Telefon: 00423 388 21 25 

Die Ausgabe erfolgt aus Emission. 
Erfolgt die Orderaufgabe an einem liechtensteinischen Bankarbeitstag bis spätestens 17.00 Uhr MEZ, wird die Transaktion am selben 
Tag (Transaktionsdatum) abgerechnet und zwei liechtensteinische Bankarbeitstage darauf (Valutadatum) geliefert. Die Lieferung der 
Schuldverschreibungen erfolgt an den Erwerber der Schuldverschreibungen über die SIX SIS AG, Baslerstrasse 100, CH-4600 Olten, 
gegen Zahlung des Ausgabekurses auf das vom Bankhaus Frick & Co. AG, Landstrasse 14, FL-9496 Balzers, geführte Konto bei der 
SIX SIS AG (Zentralverwahrer), somit im LGZ-Verfahren („Lieferung gegen Zahlung“). 
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Die Anleihe wird nicht an einem geregelten Markt gehandelt oder an einer Börse platziert. Die Emittentin behält sich vor, einen Antrag 
auf Handelszulassung dieser Anleihe zu stellen. 
Die Kosten dieser Wertpapieremission, welche gesamthaft auf CHF 10‘000.- geschätzt werden, sowie die operativen Kosten der  
Emittentin einschliesslich etwaiger Steuern werden vollumfänglich und ohne Belastung der Emissionserlöse auf Basis eines Kosten-
übernahmevertrages von der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, der Muttergesellschaft der Emittentin, getragen. 

 Wer ist der Anbieter und / oder die die Zulassung zum Handel beantragende Person? 
Die Anleihe wird von der Emittentin selbst vertrieben und angeboten. Die Emittentin erteilt weiters ihre Zustimmung zur Verwendung 
des Prospekts für die spätere Weiterveräusserung oder endgültige Platzierung der Wertpapiere an prudentiell bewilligte und beaufsich-
tigte Finanzintermediäre, welche im Einklang mit den gesetzlichen Vorgaben des Sitz- oder Vertriebsstaates operieren. Die Zustim-
mung wird insbesondere für den Vertrieb in der Schweiz, in Liechtenstein, Frankreich, Deutschland, Belgien, Luxemburg, Österreich, 
der Slowakei, der Tschechischen Republik und in jenen EWR-Staaten, in Bezug auf welche Notifizierungen erfolgt sind, erteilt. In Be-
zug auf Länder ausserhalb des EWR wird die Zustimmung zum Vertrieb auf Basis dieses Prospektes erteilt, sofern und insoweit dieser 
im Rahmen der lokalen gesetzlichen und regulatorischen Bestimmungen rechtlich möglich und zulässig ist. 

 Weshalb wird dieser Prospekt erstellt? 
Die im Wege des gegenständlichen öffentlichen Angebots generierten Erlöse werden von der Emittentin fortlaufend und gesamthaft 
mittels Zeichnung von Globalschuldverschreibungen in die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH investiert und dienen 
der Finanzierung der Geschäfts- und Investitionstätigkeit der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. Die ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH ist ein Investmentunternehmen, das auf die Finanzierung von und Investition in Infrastrukturpro-
jekte und -anlagen spezialisiert ist. 
Aufgrund teils bestehender Personenidentität in Organen von Gruppengesellschaften der ThomasLloyd Group bestehen Verflechtungs-
tatbestände und / oder mögliche Interessenskonflikte in rechtlicher, wirtschaftlicher und personeller Hinsicht. Ein Verwaltungsrat der 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, Matthias Klein, ist zugleich in führender Position in der ThomasLloyd Group 
Ltd. sowie in mehreren Tochtergesellschaften derselben sowie der ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. tätig. Dies beinhaltet die Möglichkeit von 
Interessenskonflikten.  

Herr T.U. Michael Sieg ist Group Chief Executive Officer der ThomasLloyd Group und Chairman des Board of Directors der 
ThomasLloyd Group Ltd. Weiters amtiert Herr T.U. Michael Sieg gleichzeitig als Geschäftsführer bei der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH und Mitglied der Geschäftsleitung der ThomasLloyd Capital Partners S.á.r.l. Darüber hinaus ist er auch als 
Interessenvertreter der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH sowie von Gesellschaften und Strukturen, mittels welcher 
diese investiert, teilweise in Leitungs- und Aufsichtsorgane der Unternehmen entsandt, in welche die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH oder deren Beteiligungsgesellschaften investieren. 
Weitere Verflechtungen in rechtlicher und wirtschaftlicher Hinsicht bestehen dahingehend, dass  

• Unternehmen, in die die ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH investiert, bei Planung, Entwicklung, Projektierung, 
Finanzierung, Errichtung, Bebauung, Betrieb, An- und Verkauf, Vermietung und Verpachtung von technischen Anlagen, Projekten, 
Grundstücken und Unternehmen im Bereich der Infrastruktur, Energieerzeugung, Energiespeicherung, Energie-Infrastruktur, Ener-
gie-Effizienz, Mobilität, Luft und Umwelt, Wasseraufbereitung, Fertigung, Werkstoffe, Landwirtschaft sowie Abfall und Recycling u.a. 
von dem Broker-Dealer ThomasLloyd Capital LLC und/oder anderen zur ThomasLloyd Gruppe gehörenden oder mit ihr verbunde-
nen Unternehmen beraten werden, wobei die Vergütung zu marktüblichen Konditionen erfolgt. 

• die Unternehmen, die der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH weiteres Kapital zur Verfügung stellen, zur 
ThomasLloyd Group zählen und auch eine Tochtergesellschaft der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH über An-
leihen an der ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH beteiligt ist. 

 



   
 

This securities prospectus was approved by the Financial Market Authority of Liechtenstein on 20 May 2021 and is valid until 19 May 2022. In the event 
of new circumstances or significant inaccuracies, the Issuer shall publish an amendment to the prospectus. The amendment obligation no longer applies 
upon expiry of the validity of the prospectus. 
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 Summary 

 Introduction and warnings 
On the basis of this securities prospectus, the issuer, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, Landstrasse 14,  
9496 Balzers, Liechtenstein (LEI 391200KABA0XCWJDTK89) (the “Issuer”), is issuing a bond, reference THOMASLL. 5.075/31 EUR, 
ISIN LI1111628304.  
This securities prospectus was approved by the Financial Market Authority of Liechtenstein, Landstrasse 109, Postfach 279,  
9490 Vaduz (info@fma-li.li) on 20 May 2021. 
This summary contains a description of the main characteristics and risks associated with the Issuer, the security being offered and the 
contractual partners. The summary is an introduction to the prospectus and should always be read in conjunction with the prospectus 
as a whole. Thorough consideration of the entire prospectus is therefore strongly recommended prior to making any acquisition or sub-
scription decision.  
Investors are advised that they are in the process of acquiring a complex product which may be difficult to understand. Investors run the 
risk of losing some or all of their invested capital. 
The Issuer points out that, where a claim relating to the information contained in this prospectus is brought before a court, the plaintiff 
investor might, under national law, have to bear the costs of translating the prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated.  
The Issuer also states that the Issuer, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, which has assumed responsibility for 
the summary and any translation thereof, may be held liable for the summary being misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent or, when 
read in conjunction with other parts of the prospectus, does not provide the key information supporting the investor's decision-making 
process for investment in the relevant securities. 

 Key information on the Issuer 

 Who is the Issuer of the securities? 
The Issuer, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, is a stock company (Aktiengesellschaft) governed by the  
law of the Principality of Liechtenstein, having its registered office at Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers, Principality of Liechtenstein.  
The company was registered with the Public Registry of the Principality of Liechtenstein on 23 March 2017 under the registration  
number FL-0002.543.640-8. The company's LEI is 391200KABA0XCWJDTK89. 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is part of the ThomasLloyd Group, which specialises in the financing of and 
investment in sustainable infrastructure projects on a worldwide basis with a geographic focus on high growth and emerging markets. 
The Issuer has been incorporated solely for the purpose of issuing securities in order to acquire financing to pursue the investment  
objectives of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH by subscribing to the global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Hold-
ing GmbH, Hanauer Landstrasse 291b, 60314 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany. For its part, ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd, 160 Victoria Street, London SW1E 5LB, UK, 
which is owned by MNA Capital Pte Ltd, 80 Robinson Road, 068898 Singapore. 
The members of the administrative board of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG and, at the same time, its execu-
tive directors, are Mr Matthias Klein and Mr Clemens Laternser. The auditor of the company is CONFIDA Wirtschaftsprüfung AG, 
Kirchstrasse 3, 9490 Vaduz. 

 What are the key risks that are specific to the issuer?  

Special Purpose Vehicle 
The Issuer is a special purpose vehicle, i.e. a company founded solely for the purpose of issuing bonds and other financial in-
struments. The proceeds from the issuance of the bonds and other financial instruments conducted by the Issuer, whether in the past 
or future, will be exclusively invested in subscriptions to global bond issuances of the parent company, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH. The only material assets and revenue sources of the Issuer are (a) the global bond issuances of the parent 
company in which the issue proceeds are invested, (b) letters of support from the parent company relating to the bonds issued by the 
Issuer, and (c) a cost absorption agreement between ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and the Issuer in favour of 
the Issuer. 
The ability of the Issuer to meet its financial obligations towards bondholders is therefore mainly a function of the ability of ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations relating to global bond issuances, letters of support and the cost absorp-
tion agreement. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk of losses by the Issuer that may result should third parties be unable to meet their obligations towards the Issuer. 
The Issuer is exposed to a credit risk from its investments in the global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Hold-
ing GmbH.  
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Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk of inadequate short-term liquidity to meet the obligations of the Issuer, thereby entailing the risk of an imbalance 
between the Issuer's assets and liabilities. As in the case of credit risk, the liquidity risk of the Issuer is mainly a function of the ability of 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to fully and punctually meet its obligations towards the Issuer in relation to its 
global bond issuances. Also of significance is the ability of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations 
towards the Issuer in relation to letters of support and the cost absorption agreement.  

Risk associated with further Debt Financing by the Issuer 
There are no significant legal restrictions on the Issuer with regard to the scope and conditions of any future unsubordinated debt fi-
nancing it may take on. Should the Issuer take on further secured or unsecured debt financing, in the event of the insolvency of the 
Issuer, this may lead to bondholders receiving a lower proportion of their claims than if the Issuer had not taken on any further debt 
financing. Higher debt financing increases the risk of the Issuer being unable to meet its obligations relating to the bonds. This may lead 
to the investor losing some or all of their investment in the bonds. 
Should the Issuer exercise the right provided for in this prospectus to convert the bonds into shares, the bondholder's claim shall be 
correspondingly converted into an equity interest in the Issuer. In Liechtenstein law applicable to stock companies (Aktiengesellschaf-
ten), equity claims are subordinate to creditors' claims. 

 What is the key financial information regarding the Issuer? 
The selected financial information set out below has been extracted without material adjustment from the historical financial information 
relating to the issuer. Prospective investors should review the following selected financial information together with the whole of this 
document and should not rely on the selected financial information below. 

 
The auditor has issued unqualified opinions on the financial statements of the issuer for the years ended as at 31 December 2019, 
2018 and 2017. 

 
The auditor has issued unqualified opinions on the income statements of the issuer for the years ended as at 31 December 2019, 2018 
and 2017. 

 Basic information on ThomasLL. 5.075/31 EUR 

 What are the main features of the securities? 
The bond ThomasLL. 5.075/31 EUR (hereafter the “bond”), ISIN LI1111628304, is offered in this prospectus as part of a bearer bond 
issue denominated in Euro with a term running from 20 May 2021 until 31 December 2031.  
The total issue volume is EUR 100,000,000 (one hundred million Euro) in units each with a nominal value of EUR 1,000  
(one thousand Euro). The minimum subscription amount per investor is EUR 10,000 (ten thousand Euro).  

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG 

Balance sheet in CHF 

 2019 2018 2017 
Total non-current assets 60,794,250,85 29,556,657.46 1,432,427.45 
Total current assets 4,500,441.23 2,698,109.39 374,563.15 
Prepayments and accrued income 5,204,970.79 1,060,274.82 106,565.43 
Total Assets 70,499,662.87 33,315,041.67 1,913,556.03 
Total Shareholder’s equity 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 
Provisions 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Payables 70,373,177.28 33,222,043.56 1,817,162.62 
Accrued expenses and deferred income 76,485.59 42,998.11 46,393.64 
Total liabilities 70,499,662.87 33,315,041.67 1,913,556.03 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG 

Income Statement in CHF 
 2019 2018 2017 
Gross profit 334,385.61 870,506.06 199,508.74 
Other operating expenses (220,673.50) (200,392.57) (196,769.82) 
Other interest and similar income 1,942,283.91 4,207.08 0.00 
Interest and similar expenses (2,054,196.02) (672,520.57) (938.92) 
Taxes on annual result (1,800.00) (1,800.00) (1,800) 
Loss for the period 0.00 0.00 0.00 
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The bonds constitute direct, unconditional and unsubordinated liabilities of the Issuer and have the same rank as all other unsecured 
and unsubordinated liabilities of the Issuer, notwithstanding any other liabilities enjoying higher rank under the law. 
The bond shall bear annual fixed interest of 5.075% throughout the term (interest frequency: Act/Act – ICMA Rule 251 (daily)), where 
the following shall apply: Month: 28 to 31 days; year: 365 days, leap year 366 days. 

Interest will be calculated and paid quarterly as at 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December, on a pro rata basis, from 
20 May 2021, inclusive. Interest payments will be made in arrears within 10 banking days of quarter end. The first (pro rata) interest 
payment will therefore be made by 14 July 2021 at the latest. The interest payment for the final quarter of the term shall be made at the 
same time as redemption of the bond.  
The bonds shall become repayable on the maturity date of 31 December 2031. The nominal value shall be repaid within 10 banking 
days of the due date. 

In the event of its shares being admitted to trading, the Issuer shall be entitled to convert the bonds into shares at the rate of 
105.075%. 
Both the investor and the issuer are entitled to terminate the bond prematurely for the first time on 30 June 2026. Subsequently the 
bond may be terminated on 30 June and 31 December of any year. The notice period is 12 months. Should the bondholder is affected 
by particular social hardship (e.g. unemployment, insolvency, death) it may forward a request for early termination to the Issuer. Ac-
ceptance of any such request shall be at the sole discretion of the Issuer.  

The redemption obligation of the issuer may be deferred for a period of up to 3 years should the obligations on the Issuer resulting from 
bondholders' terminations lead to the insolvency of the former. During the course of deferral, all outstanding amounts shall accrue inter-
est in accordance with these conditions until redemption has been made in full.  

 Where will the securities be traded? 
The bonds may be transferred freely in accordance with the terms and conditions of SIX SIS AG. However, they have not been admit-
ted to trading on a regulated or unregulated market, which may lead to a de facto restriction of tradability. The Issuer reserves the right 
to apply for admission to trading on a regulated or unregulated market. The bonds may be acquired by any natural person or legal entity 
residing or established in Switzerland, Liechtenstein, Belgium, France, Germany, Luxembourg, Austria, Slovakia and Czech Republic or 
any other EEA state. 

 Is there a guarantee attached to the securities? 
To secure the Issuer's obligations relating to the bonds towards the bondholders, a letter of support has been provided by the Issuer's 
parent company, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH there-
fore assumes an unrestricted, unconditional, indefinite and irrevocable obligation to ensure that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
(Liechtenstein) AG continues to be supported, through ongoing financial structuring and management, so that it remains creditworthy 
and is at all times able to meet its obligations resulting from the bond issue in terms of capital and interest payments as set out in the 
terms and conditions of issue. Should ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG fail to meet justified and due claims 
(interest, redemption) relating to the bonds, the bondholder may turn directly to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. 

There also exists a cost absorption agreement between ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and the Issuer, under 
which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH undertakes to bear all the Issuer's expenses and costs relating to this issu-
ance and to the Issuer's running costs. 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH (LEI: 391200RVK5MPKRZEMA60) is a limited liability company (Gesellschaft mit 
beschränkter Haftung) incorporated in Germany and governed by German law. The company's registered office is located in Langen, 
Emsland, with its administrative headquarters in Frankfurt am Main (business address: Hanauer Landstrasse 291b, 60314 Frankfurt am 
Main, Federal Republic of Germany). 

The selected financial information set out below has been extracted without material adjustment from the historical financial information 
relating to the parent of the issuer, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH.  The financial information as of and for the 
year ended 31 December 2019  has been extracted from the audited financial statements of that year, including the relevant compara-
tive period which was adjusted for presentational purposes due to the application of relevant accounting standards.  The re-presenta-
tion did not result in changes to the overall results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the company. The audited financial 
information as of and for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 have been extracted from the audited financial statements for 
those years.  Prospective investors should review the following selected financial information together with entire prospectus and 
should not only rely on the selected financial information below. 
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ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – Statement of financial position (IFRS) 
in TEUR 

 2019 2018  
(unaudited) 2018 2017 

Total non-current assets 392,272 293,405 293,405 80,450 
Total current assets 78,980 49,383 48,453 189,564 
Total assets 471,252 342,788 341,858 270,014 
Total current liabilities 17,588 19,003 21,807 18,241 
Total non-current liabilities 453,665 323,790 320,776 251,776 
Total liabilities 471,254 342,793 341,863 270,017 
Total equity (2) (5) (5) (-3) 
Total equity and liabilities 471,252 342,788 341,858 270,014 

 
The auditor has issued unqualified opinions on the income statements of the issuer for the years ended as at 31 December 2019, 2018 
and 2017. 
 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – Statement of comprehensive income (IFRS) 
in TEUR 

 2019 2018  
(unaudited) 2018 2017 

Total net income and movements on financial assets 12,806 (16,789) 29,912 49,628 
Total fees and expenses (16,272) (8,210) (55,661) (44,688) 
Operating loss (3,466) (24,999) (25,749) 4,940 
Loss before taxation and before silent partnerships (8,840) (30,599) (30,598) 3,876 
Total loss for the period (13,743) (39,656) (2) (5) 
Other comprehensive loss – silent partners participation 13,744 39,653 - - 
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders (1) (3) (2) (5) 

 
The auditor has issued unqualified opinions on the income statements of the issuer for the years ended as at 31 December 2019, 2018 
and 2017. 

 What are the key risks that are specific to the securities? 

Risks associated with the composition of the securities 
This bond is a complex financial instrument. No investment should be made in this bond without professional assessment (carried out 
by the investor alone or with the support of a financial advisor) on how returns and yields from this bond may develop in fluctuating con-
ditions that affect the value of the bond and how this investment may impact the overall portfolio of the potential investor. The investor 
bears the risk of an investment in this bond not meeting its particular needs. 

Risk associated with further debt financing by the Issuer 
The Issuer has issued other debt financing securities and may continue to do so in the future. Higher debt financing increases the risk 
of the Issuer being unable to meet its obligations relating to the bonds. This may lead to the investor losing some or all of their invest-
ment in these bonds. 

Ranking 
The investor may not demand the Issuer that the bondholder's claims to capital repayment, payment of a participation premium or inter-
est payments be treated preferentially vis-à-vis the other claims on the Issuer, where any such other claims are of equal ranking with 
the bondholder's claims.  
Should the bonds be converted into shares of the Issuer, the bondholder's claim shall be correspondingly converted into an equity inter-
est in the Issuer. In Liechtenstein law applicable to stock companies (Aktiengesellschaften), equity claims are subordinate to creditors' 
claims. Should the bonds be converted into shares of the Issuer, there will be no redemption of the nominal value of the bond on ma-
turity. In this case, the bondholder shall receive shares of the Issuer. 

Risks associated with ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

The issue proceeds from the bonds and from any further financial instruments will be invested in full by the Issuer by sub-
scribing to global bonds issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. Furthermore, cost absorption 
agreements exist between ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and the Issuer and letters of support from 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech GmbH in favour of the Issuer, securing the latter's obligations towards investors. 
Consequently, the following significant risks relating to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH are also of direct rele-
vance to the Issuer.  
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Risk of Payment Default 
The ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations under this issuance is mainly a function of the creditworthiness and solvency of the par-
ent company, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, which is in turn a debtor of the Issuer on the basis of the global 
bond issuances conducted by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and all further financial instruments in which the 
Issuer invests the proceeds of this bond issuance. 
As with all other financial obligations, there exists the risk of the Issuer being unable to meet its obligations under this issuance. The 
redemption amount on maturity may be lower than the amount originally invested by the bondholder; in certain circumstances there 
may be no payment of the participation premium or redemption at all. In certain circumstances the Issuer may be unable to make inter-
est payments.  
Bonds are capital investments that do not benefit from any statutory deposit guarantee scheme. 

Interest Rate Risk 
An investor who has invested in fixed-rate bonds bears the risk of the bond price falling due to movements in market interest rates.  
This risk exists if the bond is sold on the secondary market but not if it is redeemed or bought back by the Issuer on maturity. 

Risks associated with the business activity and sector of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

Risks associated with the selection of Investment Projects 
The terms of the global bond issuances do not specify the projects in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH  
must invest the funds received from the Issuer via subscription to the global bond issuances. The earnings, financial position and ability 
of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations depend on the capacity of ThomasLloyd Cleantech In-
frastructure Holding GmbH to identify sufficient investment opportunities and to correctly assess the associated income opportunities 
and risks. 
The possibility cannot be ruled out that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH will only directly or indirectly acquire a 
limited number of participations or only participate in a limited number of projects. Poor results from few investments could more nega-
tively impact the income and financial position of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH than would be the case with a 
more comprehensive portfolio of projects and holdings.  

Risk of lack of Investment Projects 
Since ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and the companies in which it invests establish particular requirements for 
their investment projects, at any given moment in time there may not be sufficient suitable projects in which investments may be made 
or which meet their specified objectives. In such cases, where insufficient income is generated from investments, there exists the risk of 
the anticipated results not being achieved. This could in turn have a negative impact on the results and financial situation of Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and therefore on its ability to meet its obligations. 

Risks associated with the financial position of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

Risk associated with the availability of Debt Capital 
In order to establish an optimum capital structure, in addition to the availability of own funds during the acquisition and/or refinancing of 
projects, it is also of primary importance that debt capital can be raised on the markets in sufficient quantity and under acceptable 
terms. Any lack of debt capital availability may prevent investments being made at the planned level or only at higher debt capital costs. 
This could in turn have a negative impact on the results and financial situation of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 
and therefore on its ability to meet its obligations. 

Financing Risks 
Projects and companies in the infrastructure sector are frequently financed, to a significant degree, by debt capital and are therefore 
more sensitive to interest rate changes, economic downturns, capital market movements and debt servicing than projects and compa-
nies with lower or no exposure to debt capital. This may lead to the participations and/or investment projects of ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH not being completed or no longer being able to finance future operations or capital requirements. This may 
in turn lead to restrictive financial and operational requirements being specified by the financing banks, such as the (temporary) require-
ment to suspend distributions or dividend payments. In certain circumstances, interest rate changes may also affect the discounting 
rate to be used for project and company assessment purposes. Such assessment is therefore liable to fluctuation. This can negatively 
affect the prices received on disposal of participations.  

Risk of higher additional costs of an Investment Project 
The investment activities of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH are generally exposed to the risk that the costs asso-
ciated with a given investment project may be higher than set out in the investment plan and budget (e.g. production costs, plant costs, 
development and/or construction costs for greenfield projects, etc.) due to unforeseen changes or incomplete or inaccurate information, 
which had formed the basis for the investment decision taken by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH.  

Legal and Political risks 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH invests in sustainable infrastructure projects on a worldwide basis with a geo-
graphic focus on high growth and emerging markets. 
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It is therefore exposed to the political risks of the countries in which it operates as a result of its investment activities. As at the date of 
this prospectus, the investment projects of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH are in the Philippines and in India. 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is therefore exposed to the political risks associated with these countries. The 
notable political risks in the Philippines include extensive corruption, low enforceability of legal claims and inconsistent application of 
legal provisions, including regulations covering public procurement, tax and land use. In India, structural public sector deficits, high debt 
levels and high government spending could lead to political risks. 

To the extent that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH invests in countries in which capital controls exist or may be 
introduced, it may not be possible to repatriate investments or distribute profits from investment projects to ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH in Germany. 

In the Philippines, the activities of foreign companies are subject to certain restrictions. Under Philippine law, the majority of the shares 
of a company operating in a sector defined by the government as key (e.g. energy) must be owned by one or more local companies. 
The possibility of such restrictions and protectionist measures being implemented or strengthened in the Philippines or in other high 
growth or emerging countries in the future cannot be ruled out. 

 Basic information on the public offer 

 Under which conditions and timetable can I invest in this security? 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, FL-9496 Balzers, (hereafter the “Issuer”) is conducting a bearer bond issu-
ance (ThomasLL. 5.075/31 EUR (hereafter the “Bond”)) with a fixed coupon of 5.075% p.a. with a term running from 20 May 2021 until 
31 December 2031. Both the investors and the Issuer have the opportunity to terminate the Bond in accordance with the termination 
provisions. 
The Bonds are issued in units with a nominal value of EUR 1,000 each and the minimum investment amount per investor is 
EUR 10,000. Any higher subscription amount must be divisible by 1,000. There is no maximum subscription amount per investor. 
The Bond issue price is the nominal value plus accrued interest. The Issuer will not charge subscribers for any costs or fees. 

The issuance shall take place on an ongoing basis from 20 May 2021 and shall end once it has been fully placed or by premature termi-
nation by the Issuer, and at the latest one year after the approval date of the securities prospectus.  

The paying agent is Bank Frick & Co. AG, Landstrasse 14, FL-9496 Balzers. Subscription orders can be placed during normal banking 
hours (excluding public holidays), namely between 08:00 am and 06:00 pm CET and via the paying agent's following subscription chan-
nels: 

E-mail: trading@bankfrick.li 
Fax: 00423 388 21 15 
Phone: 00423 388 21 25 

Issuance takes place via public offering. 
If the order is placed on a Liechtenstein banking day by 05:00 pm CET at the latest, the transaction will be recorded on the same day 
(transaction date) and delivered two Liechtenstein banking days later (value date). Delivery of the bonds to the purchaser of the security 
shall be performed by SIX SIS AG, Baslerstrasse 100, CH-4600 Olten, against payment of the issue price to the SIX SAS AG (central 
depositary) account held with Bankhaus Frick & Co. AG, Landstrasse 14, FL-9496 Balzers, on a delivery-versus-payment basis. 
The Bond is not currently traded on a regulated market or placed on a stock exchange. The Issuer reserves the right to apply for the 
Bond to be admitted to trading. 
Estimated at a total of CHF 10,000, the costs of this securities issuance, including the Issuer’s operating costs, including any taxes, will 
be borne in full by the parent company of the Issuer, namely ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, on the basis of a 
cost absorption agreement without any deduction from the proceeds of the issuance. 

 Who is the offeror and/or the person asking for admission to trading? 
The Bond is marketed and offered by the Issuer itself. The Issuer also approves the use of the prospectus for the subsequent resale or 
placement of the securities with prudentially approved and supervised financial intermediaries operating in accordance with the legal 
provisions applicable in the country of domicile or country of operations. Approval is notably given for marketing in Switzerland, Liech-
tenstein, Belgium, France, Germany, Luxembourg, Austria, Slovakia and Czech Republic and in those EEA states where notification 
has been issued. Regarding non-EEA countries, approval for marketing on the basis of this prospectus is only provided to the extent 
that it is legally possible and permissible under local statutory and regulatory provisions. 

 Why is this prospectus being produced?  
The Issuer will continuously and fully invest the proceeds generated by this public offer in subscriptions to global bond issuances of 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and they will be used to finance the business and investment activities of Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is an investment company spe-
cialising in the financing of, and investment in, sustainable infrastructure projects and assets. 

Due to the fact that some of the same individuals are on the management bodies of ThomasLloyd group companies, there are distinct 
interrelations and/or conflicts of interest in a legal, economic and personal sense. One board member of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure (Liechtenstein) AG, Mr Matthias Klein, is managing director of ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. as well as of several subsidiaries of 
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ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. and is managing director of several subsidiaries of ThomasLloyd Group Ltd. This generates possible con-
flicts of interest.  
Mr T.U. Michael Sieg is Group Chief Executive Officer of the ThomasLloyd Group and Chairman of the Board of Directors of Thom-
asLloyd Group Ltd. At the same time, Mr T.U. Michael Sieg is also Managing Director of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH and a board member of ThomasLloyd Capital Partners S.à.r.l. He is also a stakeholder of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH and of companies and structures through which it invests. He is also delegated in part to sit on management and super-
visory bodies of the companies in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH or its affiliated companies invest. 
Further interrelations exist in the legal and economic sense such that:  

• Companies in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH invests receive advice for planning, development, pro-
ject planning, financing, building, construction, operations, acquisition, sale, rental and lease of technical facilities, projects, land, 
and companies in the sectors of infrastructure, energy production, energy storage, energy infrastructure, energy efficiency, mobility, 
air and environment, water treatment, manufacturing, production, materials, economics, waste and recycling from, inter alia, the 
broker-dealer ThomasLloyd Capital LLC and/or other companies belonging to or associated with the ThomasLloyd Group, whereby 
compensation is established under normal market conditions. 

• Companies that provide further capital for ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, belong to the ThomasLloyd Group 
and are also subsidiaries of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH via bonds in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech In-
frastructure Holding GmbH has a participation. 
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 RISK FACTORS 

 General 
This prospectus constitutes an offer for capital investment in the form of fixed-income bearer bonds. Any capital investment in a com-
pany entails risks and its value is subject to factors such as operational and market-related fluctuations. This also applies to these 
Bonds offered by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG. 
Investors are required to read the entire prospectus. The information provided in this prospectus, notably the information provided in the 
section entitled “Risk factors”, must be taken into careful consideration by every potential investor prior to subscription.  
Various risks are associated with subscription to and ownership of the Bonds. Such risks are classified by the Issuer as specific and 
significant and are described in greater detail in this section. The Issuer expressly makes no guarantee as to the completeness of the 
described risks. Potential investors are expressly advised that further risks may be generated in individual circumstances. Risks may 
emerge not only individually, but also in combination.  
The presentation of risk factors does not replace any advice that should be obtained from expert advisors. An investment decision 
should not be made solely on the basis of these risk factors, as the information contained herein cannot replace specific advice and 
clarification in terms of the investor’s particular requirements, objectives, experience, knowledge or circumstances. It is recommended 
that investors seek advice from appropriate expert advisors. 
The occurrence of individual or of multiple different risks can have a significantly negative impact on the business, results of operation, 
financial condition and/or prospects of the Issuer or of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, notably resulting in Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, and consequently the Issuer, being unable, in part or in whole, to meet their obliga-
tions relating to issued securities, including this issuance. 

In the worst case scenario, this could lead to the insolvency of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and consequently 
of the Issuer, and investors could lose all or part of their investment. 

 Risks relating to the Issuer 
Risks associated with the financial position of the Issuer 

Special Purpose Vehicle 
The Issuer is a special purpose vehicle, i.e. a company founded solely for the purpose of issuing bonds and other financial in-
struments. The proceeds from the bond issuance and from any further financial instruments will be invested in full by the Issuer by 
subscribing to global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. The only significant assets and rev-
enue sources of the Issuer are (a) the global bond issuances of the parent company in which the issue proceeds are invested, (b) let-
ters of support from the parent company relating to the bonds issued by the Issuer, and (c) a cost absorption agreement between 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and the Issuer in favour of the Issuer. 
The ability of the Issuer to meet its financial obligations towards bondholders is therefore mainly a function of the ability of ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations relating to global bond issuances, letters of support and the cost absorp-
tion agreement. 

Credit Risk 
The Issuer is exposed to a credit risk from its investments in the global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Hold-
ing GmbH. As a result of the global bond issuances, the Issuer holds a claim against ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH for the redemption of the nominal value of the global bond issuances, the payment of interest under the terms of the global bond 
issuances and the payment of other due amounts as specified in the terms of the global bond issuances. Should ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH fail to meet its obligations towards the Issuer in full and at the specified time, the Issuer will not have 
sufficient financial means to meet its own obligations towards its bondholders in accordance with the terms of this bond issuance.  

Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk of inadequate short-term liquidity to meet the obligations of the Issuer, thereby entailing the risk of an imbalance 
between the Issuer’s assets and liabilities. As in the case of credit risk, the liquidity risk of the Issuer is mainly a function of the ability of 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to fully and punctually meet its obligations towards the Issuer in relation to its 
global bond issuances. Also of significance is the ability of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations 
towards the Issuer in relation to letters of support and the cost absorption agreement. Should ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH fail to meet its obligations towards the Issuer in full and at the specified time, the Issuer will not have sufficient liquid 
financial means to meet its own obligations towards its bondholders in accordance with the terms of this bond issuance. 

Risk associated with further debt financing by the Issuer 
There are no significant legal restrictions on the Issuer with regard to the scope and conditions of any future unsubordinated debt fi-
nancing it may take on. Should the Issuer take on further secured or unsecured debt financing, in the event of the insolvency of the 
Issuer this may lead to bondholders receiving a lower proportion of their claims than if the Issuer had not taken on any further debt fi-
nancing. Higher debt financing increases the risk of the Issuer being unable to meet its obligations relating to the bonds. This may lead 
to the investor losing some or all of its investment in the bonds. 
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Should the Issuer exercise the right provided for in this prospectus to convert the bonds into shares, the bondholder’s claim shall be 
correspondingly converted into an equity interest in the Issuer. In Liechtenstein law applicable to stock companies (Aktiengesellschaf-
ten), equity claims are subordinate to creditors’ claims. 
The Issuer has issued the following bonds so far: 

• THOMASLL. 3.75/21 CHF with maturity date of 31 December 2021 (max. extension to 31 December 2023), ISIN LI0363131512; 
• THOMASLL. 2.50/28 CHF with maturity date of 31 December 2028, ISIN LI0363131504;  
• THOMASLL. 4.75/29 CHF with maturity date of 31 December 2029; ISIN LI0476476259; 
• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 CHF with maturity date of 31 December 2029, ISIN LI0477071505; 
• THOMASLL. 4.75/29 CHF with maturity date of 31 December 2029; ISIN LI0547576905; 
• THOMASLL. 3.075/31 CHF with maturity date of 31 December 2031; ISIN: LI1111628312; 
• THOMASLL. 5.80/2027 CZK with maturity date of 31 December 2027, ISIN LI0395604734; 
• THOMASLL. 7/2027 CZK with maturity date of 31 December 2027, ISIN LI0395604684; 
• THOMASLL. 5.80/29 CZK with maturity date of 31 December 2029, ISIN LI0476476267; 
• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 CZK with maturity date of 31 December 2029, ISIN LI0477071521; 
• THOMASLL. 6.525/30 CZK with maturity date of 31 December 2030; ISIN LI0543289131; 
• THOMASLL. 4.175/27 EUR with maturity date of 31 December 2027, ISIN LI0423561583; 
• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 EUR with maturity date of 31 December 2029, ISIN LI0477071513; 
• THOMASLL. 5.175/29 EUR with maturity date of 31 December 2029, ISIN LI0477071539; 
• THOMASLL. 3.075/31 EUR with maturity date of 31 December 2031, ISIN LI1111628296; 
• THOMASLL. 5.075/31 EUR, with maturity date of 31 December 2031; ISIN LI1111628304; 
• THOMASLL. 3.075/30 USD with maturity date of 31 December 2030, ISIN LI0523015944; 
• THOMASLL. 5.625/30 USD with maturity date of 31 December 2030, ISIN LI0523015951; 
• THOMASLL. 3.075/30 GBP with maturity date of 31 December 2030, ISIN LI0538127007; 
• THOMASLL. 5.325/30 GBP with maturity date of 31 December 2030, ISIN LI0538127015; 
• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 19/27 EUR (continuation of THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 18/27 EUR)  

with maturity date of 31 December 2017; ISIN: LI0431500078; 
• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 19/28 CZK with maturity date of 31 December 2028; ISIN: LI0488506614; 
• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 19/28 CHF with maturity date of 31 December 2028; ISIN: LI0498822704; 
• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 20/29 EUR with maturity date of 31 December 2029; ISIN: LI0560391513. 

No bonds are subordinated; the obligations of the Issuer under the aforementioned issuances are therefore of the same ranking as the 
Issuer’s obligations resulting from this issuance. 

Risks associated with claims based on the letters of support 
Although this issuance is governed by Liechtenstein law and jurisdiction for any disputes relating to this issuance has been assigned to 
the courts of Zurich, any relevant letters of support for this issuance between the Issuer and ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH shall be governed by German law. It is agreed that any disputes arising out of or relating to the letter of support shall fall 
under the jurisdiction of the courts of Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany. Should the Issuer fail to meet its obligations 
resulting from this issuance, and should the bondholders wish to press their claims resulting from this issuance against ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH on the basis of the letter of support, they shall therefore instigate proceedings under German 
law in the competent court of Frankfurt am Main. Enforcing claims in the German courts can be costly and complicated, such that bond-
holders may need to engage the services of a German lawyer. The enforcement of any claim on the basis of the letter of support may 
therefore be a time consuming process. 

Risk of Insolvency 
Under the Insolvency Act (Insolvenzordnung) of the Principality of Liechtenstein, a debtor shall be treated as bankrupt if it is insolvent or 
overindebted. Insolvency is notably constituted if a debtor ceases to make payments, is unable to meet due liabilities within the foresee-
able future due to lack of available funds and is also unable to immediately obtain the required funds. A debtor is overindebted if the 
liquidation value is determined to be negative and it is deemed not to be a going concern. 
Prior to the initiation of insolvency proceedings at the request of a creditor, the Insolvency Act provides for examination of the debtor’s 
position such that unjustified insolvency applications do not lead to the initiation of insolvency proceedings. The possibility cannot be 
ruled out, however, that unjustified insolvency applications will be issued. All rulings by courts at which insolvency proceedings have 
been initiated will be published via edict. The debtor shall no longer be at liberty to dispose of its assets as it deems fit from the day 
following the publication of any such insolvency edict, and the administration and/or (temporary) continuation of the creditor’s business, 
as applicable, shall be taken over by a court-appointed liquidator. 
Should any unjustified insolvency applications be brought against the Issuer and be successful, against all expectations, the possibility 
cannot therefore be ruled out that the Issuer will be temporarily or permanently deprived of free disposal of its assets and that further 
restrictions will be placed thereon, which may have negative consequences on the financial situation and business operations of the 
Issuer and therefore on its ability to meet its obligations under this issuance.  

Should insolvency proceedings be initiated against the Issuer, the investor must assert its claims as insolvency creditor with the liquida-
tor. Payments to the investor out of the insolvency assets will then only be made once all other prior rights have been satisfied in full. 
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The amounts of actual payments therefore depend on the amount of the insolvency estate. Should the insolvency estate be insufficient 
to meet the claims of the insolvency creditors involved in the proceedings, the investor may lose all of its capital investment.  

Risks relating to Internal Control 

Conflicts of Interest 
The Issuer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. The Issuer cannot rule out the possi-
bility of future changes to the strategy or that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH (or other parties vis-à-vis Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH) will implement measures (mergers, spin-offs, transactions, acquisitions, profit distribu-
tions, sale of assets, etc.) which are in the interests of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH (or of another third party) 
but not in the interests of the Issuer. Such developments may significantly affect the financial situation of the Issuer in relation to its 
bondholders. 
One member of the Issuer’s board, Mr Matthias Klein, also occupies posts at companies associated with ThomasLloyd Cleantech  
Infrastructure Holding GmbH and notably acts as managing director of ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. as well as of several subsidiaries of 
ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. and of several subsidiaries of ThomasLloyd Group Ltd. When relevant persons act in the name of the Is-
suer, their actions and decision-making processes in relation to the interests of the Issuer may be influenced by a conflict of interest. In 
such situations, when different and frequently opposing interests must be taken into consideration, the possibility cannot be ruled out 
that said persons will take decisions that they would not have taken had the aforementioned interrelations not existed. The possibility 
cannot be ruled out that such decisions will have a negative impact on the results and financial situation of the Issuer and on its ability 
to meet its obligations under this prospectus.  

 Risks associated with ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 
and its business activities 

The issue proceeds from the bonds and from any further financial instruments issued by the Issuer will be invested in full in 
subscriptions to global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. Furthermore, cost absorp-
tion agreements exist between ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH in favour of the Issuer in addition to 
letters of support from ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH in favour of the Issuer, securing the latter’s obli-
gations towards investors. 
Consequently, the following significant risks relating to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH are also of direct rele-
vance to the Issuer. 

Risks associated with the business activity and sector of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

Risks associated with the selection of Investment Projects 
The terms of the global bond issuances do not specify the projects in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH must 
invest the funds received from the Issuer via subscription to the global bond issuances. As at the date of this prospectus, it has not yet 
been established in which specific projects ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH will invest the funds received from the 
Issuer. Such future investment projects cannot be specified as at the date of this prospectus. The earnings, financial position and ability 
of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations depend on the capacity of ThomasLloyd Cleantech In-
frastructure Holding GmbH to identify sufficient investment opportunities and to correctly assess the associated income opportunities 
and risks. There exists no certainty that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH will enjoy the required competence in 
this regard in the future. Nor can the possibility be ruled out in specific cases that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 
will make project investments in accordance with its generally defined investment objectives and strategies which a bondholder may 
judge to be inappropriate or unacceptable. 

Risk of lack of Investment Projects 
Since ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and the companies in which it invests establish particular requirements for 
their investment projects, at any given moment in time there may not be sufficient suitable projects in which investments may be made 
or which meet their specified objectives. In such cases, where insufficient income is generated from investments, there exists the risk of 
the anticipated results not being achieved. This could in turn have a negative impact on the results and financial situation of Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and therefore on its ability to meet its obligations. 

Risks associated with lack of diversity 
The possibility cannot be ruled out that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH will only directly or indirectly acquire a 
limited number of participations or only participates in a limited number of projects. Poor results from few investments could more nega-
tively impact the income and financial position of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH than would be the case with a 
more comprehensive portfolio of projects and holdings.  

Contract Risk 
The economic performance of the investment projects of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is dependent on factors 
such as the relevant contracting parties meeting their contractual obligations. Any contractual breach by contracting parties or the insol-
vency of the latter can lead to termination of contracts with the further consequence of investment projects not being completed and/or 
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pursued or only at higher cost. This could in turn have a negative impact on the results and financial situation of ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and therefore on its ability to meet its obligations.  

Competition Risk 
Competition in the infrastructure sector (e.g. due to new products, pricing policies and other strategies) can lead to a lower market 
share for ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH in the sector in question and to a fall in average return on investment. 
Both of the aforementioned factors may negatively affect the operating results and financial position of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH and, over the longer term, may affect the ability of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to 
meet its obligations. 

Control of Participations 
The Issuer cannot rule out the possibility that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH will seek to demand control or a 
controlling influence over the management and strategic orientation of the target (i.e. those companies via which ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is involved in investment projects). The exercise of control over a company is associated with addi-
tional risks such as the risk of liability for environmental damage, product defects, supervisory failings, etc.). The possibility cannot be 
ruled out that such liability will lead to liability being transferred to the investor and consequently also to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH. The exercise of control may also require ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to be repre-
sented on management and other decision-making bodies of the acquired participations. Such positions may well be important for 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH but can also be associated with additional liability risks relating to the obligation 
to perform management functions in a diligent manner. This entails potential liability that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH would not bear purely as an investor. Should such a situation come to pass, the persons representing ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH on the corresponding bodies will demand the assumption or indemnification of claims to which said per-
sons may be exposed as a result of their functions. All such risks can lead to additional obligations, costs and/or losses and to a wors-
ening of the operating result, financial position and even the ability of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its 
obligations.  

Subsidisation of other Technologies 
The possibility cannot be ruled out that technologies other than those favoured by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH will be supported by state or other organisations. In such cases, the operation of infrastructure facilities and projects may be-
come uneconomical, which may have a negative impact on the operating results and financial position of a ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH participation and therefore indirectly on the results of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH. 

Documentation Risks 
The greater part of the investments of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH are made in projects and companies 
whose activities are subject to a significant degree of public oversight. Such activities are frequently dependent on concessions and 
contracts with administrative authorities or public bodies, which are generally highly complex and can lead to disputes over interpreta-
tion and enforceability. The interpretation of such contracts and concessions can lead to fines and even to the loss of operating permits 
for the infrastructure facilities in question. If operations at infrastructure facilities require a concession contract with a public body, this 
can lead to said operations being placed under restrictions that may prevent or limit the ability to structure operations in a manner de-
signed to maximise profit. Concession contracts can also contain clauses that favour administrative authorities or public bodies more 
than would be the case under commercial contracts between private sector operators. For example, the concession contract may entitle 
the authority or public contracting party to terminate the contract under certain circumstances (e.g. minor breaches of investment or 
maintenance obligations) yet without any requirement to pay appropriate compensation. It may also be that administrative authorities or 
public bodies must be given the right to modify operating conditions at their own discretion. Furthermore, the country in question may 
also issue laws, provisions or decrees that may affect operations at facilities. This may occur independently of any contractual rights 
demanded by the authorities or public bodies. The authorities and public bodies enjoy relatively wide scope to substantially affect infra-
structure investments through the introduction of statutory and regulatory provisions. Such decisions and measures may be influenced 
by political interests and lead to decisions that may negatively affect the company in question and/or its operations. Nor can the possi-
bility be ruled out that sectors not subject to public supervision, as of the publication and approval date of this prospectus, may become 
subject to future regulation. The risk also exists that authorities in countries where ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH invests may introduce or modify regulations affecting the permissible fees, prices or other economic parameters relating to the 
operation of infrastructure facilities. This could in turn negatively impact the results, financial position and ability of ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations. 

Third-party Information and Statements 
When evaluating investment opportunities, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH employs the services of external con-
sultants specialising in fields such as finance, law, taxation, technology and the environment. ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH frequently bases its decision-making processes on assessments, expert opinions and other reports from such consult-
ants without the company itself at all times being able to judge whether such information is complete and/or accurate. It must also be 
taken into consideration that external consultants frequently make subjective assessments. Overall, the possibility cannot be ruled out 
by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH that such information, relied on by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH during the performance of its activities, may be inaccurate or inadequate. 
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Investments in Greenfield Projects 
To the extent that investments are made in projects at the development and/or construction phase (so-called Greenfield projects), the 
investor bears the risks that the project will not be completed within budget or schedule or in accordance with the agreed specifications. 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is therefore indirectly exposed to the risk of additional costs or losses resulting 
from a modified budget or schedule. Greenfield projects are usually acquired on the basis of specific assumptions regarding potential 
demand, market environment, profitability, etc. Given the lengthy lead time between project commencement and completion, a project 
originally classified as attractive may become an economically unattractive investment due to market changes, affecting factors such as 
investment behaviour, the financial markets or demand for the service. These risks could have a negative impact on the results and 
financial situation of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and on its ability to meet its obligations. 

Risk of the loss of Key Personnel  
Should ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH or its participations lose key personnel, the risk may exist that the re-
quired competence is no longer available, leading to qualified and comprehensive investment and risk management no longer being 
performed within participations or within ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH.  

Risk of Commodities Price Changes 
The operation of infrastructure facilities, especially energy production plants, requires contracts covering the delivery of necessary 
source materials. Suppliers may breach the related contracts and/or the plant may be unable, for other reasons, to acquire sufficient 
source materials. In certain cases, this may lead to lower production (electricity and heat) which in turn can negatively affect the results 
of the participation and, therefore, indirectly impact the results and financial position of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH. Furthermore, in general there are no long-term contracts covering the supply of feedstocks guaranteeing delivered quantities, 
quality and price. Nor can there be any certainty that any increases in commodities purchase prices can be offset by corresponding 
increases in selling prices. This could in turn have a negative impact on the results and financial situation of ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH and therefore on its ability to meet its obligations.  

Risk of Contracting Parties’ Insolvency 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH intends to enter into contracts for its participations with small and/or mid-market 
companies, notably contracts for the construction of sustainable infrastructure facilities. Should one or more significant contracting par-
ties become insolvent, the risk exists that certain services may not be delivered and that new contracts will have to be concluded with 
other providers. The conclusion of new contracts and the related delays would lead to additional costs. In the event that new contracts 
are concluded, the risk also exists that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH may be forced to pay higher prices and 
fees to the new contracting parties. This could in turn have a negative impact on the results and financial situation of ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and on its ability to meet its obligations. 

Customer Risk 
In certain circumstances, the participations in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH invests and which operate 
infrastructure facilities may have a limited number of clients. Should such clients or contracting parties no longer require the services of 
the infrastructure facilities or fail to meet their contractual obligations, the participation may lose significant income which it may be una-
ble to replace. This would not only have negative consequences for the profitability of the participation but may also negatively impact 
the results and financial position of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and its ability to meet its obligations. 

Construction and Operational Risks 
The long-term profitability of infrastructure facilities in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH directly and indirectly 
invests depends on the effectiveness of their design, construction method, operation and maintenance. The construction and operation 
of infrastructure facilities is generally outsourced to third-party contractors. Any design or construction defects and/or inefficient opera-
tion and ineffective maintenance of facilities by such third-party contractors, and/or the exceeding of any liability limits by sub-contrac-
tors, may undermine the profitability of the infrastructure facilities. Should such risks come to pass, this may have a corresponding neg-
ative impact on the value and profitability of the investment. During the useful life of infrastructure facilities, it may become necessary to 
replace or comprehensively refurbish and/or service certain components, buildings or parts thereof. In such cases, the subsequent 
costs that cannot be passed on to subcontractors must be borne by the participation. The possible termination of project contracts must 
also be treated as an operational risk. Contracts relating to infrastructure projects, including energy purchase, lease, rental and financial 
contracts, generally include termination clauses in favour of the contracting parties. Any termination of such contracts may correspond-
ingly undermine the operation and profitability of the infrastructure facilities and of the relevant participation. This could in turn have an 
indirect negative impact on the results and financial situation of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and on its ability 
to meet its obligations. 

Environmental Risks 
Infrastructure facilities are frequently subject to a wide range of environmental laws, regulations, orders and standards. Regarding in-
vestments, such standards may require the elimination of any existing environmental pollution, including the contamination of soil and 
groundwater by fuel, hazardous materials or other contaminants. Under applicable environmental protection laws and standards, the 
(previous) owner or operator may be held liable for any failure to comply with applicable environmental protection and/or health and 
safety provisions and for the costs of investigating, monitoring, eliminating or rehabilitating environmental damage. Such liability gener-
ally applies regardless of the owner or operator having prior knowledge of the presence of such contaminants, or of it being or having 
been responsible for any such damage. The existence of hazardous substances may also lead to claims for personal injury or material 
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or other damage. Persons charged with eliminating or treating hazardous substances may also be held liable for the costs of eliminating 
or rehabilitating such materials, regardless of whether the facilities and/or the property from which the hazardous substances are to be 
eliminated are owned by the person causing or having caused the need for elimination or treatment, or if the facilities are or have been 
operated by said person. 
There exists the risk of legal action relating to breaches of environmental regulations that may lead to costs that could exceed the value 
of an investment. Furthermore, changes in environmental regulations may lead to costs or obligations that did not exist and which were 
unforeseeable at the time the investment in the infrastructure facilities was made. For example, new environmental regulations may 
require costly adaptation works to be carried out. 
Infrastructure facilities may also have a significant impact on the environment. This can lead city councils, municipalities, environmental 
groups, etc. to object to the development or operation of infrastructure facilities. Such objections may lead to governments introducing 
measures that act against the interests of the owners of infrastructure facilities. The normal operation of infrastructure facilities or the 
occurrence of an accident can lead to significant environmental damage, generating substantial financial disadvantage for participations 
owning or investing in the infrastructure facilities. The costs of cleaning up any environmental damage and of re-establishing good rela-
tions with the relevant city councils, municipalities or communities can be significant. 

Risks associated with the financial position of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

Risk associated with the availability of Debt capital 
In order to establish an optimum capital structure, in addition to the availability of own funds during the acquisition and/or refinancing of 
projects it is also of primary importance that debt capital can be raised on the markets in sufficient quantity and under acceptable terms. 
Any lack of debt capital availability may prevent investments being made at the planned level or only at higher debt capital costs. This 
could in turn have a negative impact on the results and financial situation of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and 
on its ability to meet its obligations. 

Financing Risks 
Projects and companies in the infrastructure sector are frequently financed. To a significant degree, by debt capital and are therefore 
more sensitive to interest rate changes, economic downturns, capital market movements and debt servicing than projects and compa-
nies with lower or no exposure to debt capital. This may lead to the participations and/or investment projects of ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH not being completed or no longer being able to finance future operations or capital requirements. This may 
in turn lead to restrictive financial and operational requirements being specified by the banks, such as the (temporary) requirement to 
suspend distributions or dividend payments. In certain circumstances, interest rate changes may also affect the discounting rate to be 
used for project and company assessment purposes. Such assessment is therefore liable to fluctuation. This can negatively affect the 
prices received on disposal of participations. Furthermore, the regulatory authorities overseeing projects and companies subject to state 
supervision generally refer to market interest rates when determining authorised pricing. This can lead to lower than forecast revenue. 
This may in turn have a negative impact on the planned income of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH due to lower 
operating results.  

Risk of higher additional costs of an Investment Project 
The investment activities of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH are generally exposed to the risk that the costs asso-
ciated with a given investment project may be higher than the investment plan and budget (e.g. production costs, plant costs) due to 
unforeseen changes or incomplete or inaccurate information, which had formed the basis for the investment decision taken by Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. Should ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH participate in the tender 
process relating to an investment and the offer made by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is unsuccessful, there 
exists the risk of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH or of the division developing the investment project (the target 
business) having to bear the costs of third parties associated with the tender process, in addition to its own costs. Such higher or addi-
tional costs can have a negative impact on the results, financial situation and even the ability of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH to meet its own obligations.  

Legal and Political Risks 

Political Risks 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH invests in sustainable infrastructure projects on a worldwide basis with a geo-
graphic focus on high growth and emerging markets. It is therefore exposed to political and legal risks of the countries in which it oper-
ates as a result of its investment activities. Such political risks notably include the risk of uncertainty relating to the future political orien-
tation of a given state, its involvement in supranational structures, the signing and implementation of international agreements and the 
risk of a government falling, with the disturbance of general social order and stability of said state (e.g. conflict with trade unions or lob-
bying by public and private sector organisations that may lead to strikes, blockades or other actions, which in turn may undermine the 
planned completion, operation or development of investment projects). Legal risks are the risks of the potential development of the reg-
ulatory standards of a state, which in turn may impact the investment projects in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH participates. Such risks may lead to project development being extended and/or delayed, to a project being aborted or to the 
additional costs or losses of an investment project. Due to the frequently significant public interest associated with services, projects 
and companies in the infrastructure sector, the possibility cannot be ruled out that the attitude of public institutions issuing concessions, 
licences and leases will be influenced by political motives. Such political interests may not necessarily converge with those of the partic-
ipation in question and may lead to project development being extended and/or delayed, to a project being aborted or to additional 
costs or losses of an investment project. 
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As at the date of this prospectus, the investment projects of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH are in the Philippines 
and in India. ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is therefore exposed to political risks associated with this countries. 
Nevertheless, the focus of the investment activity of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH lies not only in the Philip-
pines and India. Accordingly, the geographical distribution of the investments of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 
and subsequently the risk associated with its involvement in a given country may change significantly. 
The notable political risks in the Philippines include extensive corruption, low enforceability of legal claims and inconsistent application 
of legal provisions, including regulations covering public procurement, tax and land use. The courts process legal disputes at a very 
slow pace and public confidence in the legal system is low. The public authorities enjoy limited capacity and inadequate resources to 
satisfactorily perform their tasks. In the context of both public financial administration and public procurement, there exists a significant 
risk of non-compliance with relevant legal standards regarding the administration of assigned assets, which may become exacerbated 
due to an inadequate legal framework, inefficient implementation of budgetary policy, general lack of confidence in budgetary policy, 
poor resource allocation strategy and shortcomings in internal control mechanisms, accounting practices and reporting. In India, struc-
tural public sector deficits, high debt levels and high government spending could lead to political risks. 

Capital Controls 
To the extent that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH invests in countries in which capital controls exist or may be intro-
duced, it may not be possible to repatriate investments or distribute profits from investment projects to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastruc-
ture Holding GmbH in Germany. This could lead to a significant worsening of the financial position of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH and negatively affect the ability of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations.  

Risk of Restrictions and Discrimination affecting Foreign Investors 
In the Philippines, the activities of foreign companies are subject to certain restrictions. Under Philippine law, the majority of the shares 
of a company operating in a sector defined by the government as key (e.g. energy) must be owned by one or more local companies. In 
the energy sector, foreign companies may not hold more than 40% of the voting rights and they may not exercise negative control 
rights. Foreign investors may only be represented on the supervisory board or board of directors of a Philippine company in proportion 
to the given investor’s participation. Emerging countries typically apply restrictions and specific measures designed to prevent strategic 
sectors and significant production assets from falling under foreign control or in order to protect local companies. The possibility of such 
restrictions and protectionist measures being implemented or strengthened in the Philippines in the future cannot be ruled out. Such 
developments could significantly and negatively impact the financial position of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 
and its ability to meet its obligations. 

Risk of Regulatory Developments  
As a result of possible future changes or restrictions to the regulatory supervision of financial services, there exists the risk of Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH being unable to implement its investment policy or of being obliged to change its in-
vestment policy and/or to comply with additional requirements. Any change to the investment policy and/or the obligation to comply with 
additional requirements could have a negative impact on the results, financial position and ultimately the ability of ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations. 

Force Majeure Risk 
Force majeure events such as social unrest, riots, conflict, war, flooding, earthquakes, lightning strikes and storms may affect the in-
vestments in the infrastructure facilities directly or indirectly held by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. The con-
struction and operation of infrastructure facilities are generally carried out subject to contracts and legal documents containing force 
majeure clauses relating to parties such as insurers, contracting partners, operators and public authorities and bodies. Nevertheless, 
situations may arise caused by a force majeure event that may lead to heavy losses and even the insolvency of participations holding 
affected facilities. This may apply, for example, if the force majeure risks are only partially imposed on third parties, if contracting parties 
fail to meet their obligations due to a force majeure event or if the force majeure event, owing to its scope or duration, has significant 
consequences on the economy and stability of a region or country.  

Terrorist Attacks or Armed Conflicts Risk 
Terrorist attacks and armed conflict may directly affect infrastructure facilities or may otherwise have a negative impact on the investments of 
the participations in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has directly or indirectly invested. There can be no certainty 
that there will be no terrorist attacks against, in or which affect countries where the infrastructure facilities are located and where Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has directly or indirectly invested. Losses resulting from such events are uninsurable. 

Effects of Health Crises and Other Catastrophic Events  
Health crises, such as pandemic and epidemic diseases, as well as other catastrophes that interrupt the expected course of events, 
such as natural disasters, war or civil disturbance, acts of terrorism, power outages and other unforeseeable and external events, and 
the public response to or fear of such diseases or events, have and may in the future have an adverse effect on the Fund’s investments 
and the Fund’s operations. For example, any preventative or protective actions that governments may take in respect of such diseases 
or events may result in periods of business disruption, inability to obtain raw materials, supplies and components, and reduced or dis-
rupted operations for the Fund’s investments or portfolio companies. In addition, under such circumstances, the operations, including 
functions such as trading and valuation, could be reduced, delayed, suspended or otherwise disrupted. Further, the occurrence and 
pendency of such diseases or events could adversely affect the economies and financial markets either in specific countries or world-
wide. 
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Foreign Exchange / Currency Risks 

Foreign Exchange / Currency 
The parent company, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has invested in a number of geographies and therefore a 
number of foreign currencies other than the Euro, which is the functional currency of the parent company. Therefore, it is exposed to 
both translational and transactional currency risks where investments are held in foreign currencies and where income streams are 
receivable in foreign currencies.  

Revenues and profits may be negatively impacted by fluctuations in the value of investments made in foreign currencies, other than the 
Euro. The portfolio is impacted by both realised and unrealised foreign exchange movements.  As of the date of this prospectus, the 
investment portfolio is held in US dollars, Philippines Peso and Indian Rupee, with the majority being denominated in US dollars. 

The commitments of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH may significantly change over time in terms of any given 
currency, primarily as a result of new investments, the restructuring of existing investments or divestment. 

 Bond-related Risks 
The risks for the investor associated with subscribing to and holding this bond notably entail the risks set out below. 

Risks associated with the composition of the security 

General risk associated with the bond 
This bond is a complex financial instrument. Every potential investor in this bond must make their own decision regarding the appropri-
ateness of the investment. 

Each investor must notably: 

• Have sufficient knowledge and experience to be able to assess this bond and the benefits and risks of an investment in this bond, 
including the information provided in this prospectus and in any subsequent revisions; 

• Be familiar with and enjoy access to appropriate analytical evaluation programmes and techniques and be able to apply the forego-
ing in the light and in consideration of the current financial position of the investor, of the investment in this bond and of the effect of 
this investment on the full investment portfolio of the investor; 

• Enjoy sufficient financial resources and liquidity to be able to bear the possible effect of the risks associated with this investment; 
• Understand in full the conditions of this issuance (notably the securities note contained in this prospectus and in any revisions) and 

be aware of trends and of movements affecting relevant indicators and financial markets; 
• Either personally or with the support of a financial advisor, be able to assess trend scenarios affecting the economy, interest rates 

and other factors that may affect any investment in this bond, in addition to the ability of the investor to bear the potential risks. 

The investor bears the risk of an investment in this bond not meeting its particular needs. 

Ranking 
The investor may not demand of the Issuer that the bondholder’s claims to capital repayment or interest payments be treated preferen-
tially vis-à-vis the other claims on the Issuer, where any such other claims are of equal ranking with the bondholder’s claims. This also 
applies to claims of investors arising out of any subsequent financial securities issued by the Issuer. In the event of the bankruptcy or 
liquidation of the Issuer, in certain conditions the claims of the bondholder will only be met after satisfying the secured claims of other 
creditors (e.g. credit institutions).  
Should the Issuer exercise the right provided for in this prospectus to convert the bonds into shares, the bondholder’s claim shall be 
correspondingly converted into an equity interest in the Issuer. In Liechtenstein law applicable to stock companies (Aktiengesellschaf-
ten), equity claims are subordinate to creditors’ claims. 

Participation and Property Rights 
The investor as bondholder of the Issuer only enjoys a claim against the Issuer. The company shall solely be represented by the admin-
istrative board of the Issuer. The bondholder enjoys no objection or approval rights regarding measures and decisions taken by senior 
management. The investor enjoys no direct influence over the investment decisions of the Issuer.  

Exchange Rate Risk 
Investors from the EUR monetary area are not exposed to any exchange rate risk as the bond is issued in EUR and payments are 
made to investors in EUR. Investors from other monetary areas may be exposed to currency risks from this EUR denominated bond.  
All investors may also be exposed to direct exchange rate risks, as the EUR may fall against the investor’s domestic currency over the 
term of the bond.  

General Tax Risk 
Potential purchasers or sellers of this bond should take into account that they may be obliged to pay taxes or fees in accordance with 
the applicable provisions of the country in which the bond is transferred, of which they are a citizen or in which they are resident for tax 
purposes, or the provisions of which may otherwise apply to said seller or purchaser. In some states there may not exist official pub-
lished rulings or decisions from the tax authorities relating to the taxation of financial instruments such as this bond. In relation to any 
purchase, sale or buyback of the bonds, the investor should not rely on the short summary of the tax provisions of individual states con-
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tained in this prospectus, but instead seek the advice of a tax advisor based on the investor’s individual tax situation. Statutory develop-
ments may lead to a reduction in effective income from this bond and from the net proceeds the bondholder may receive from any sale 
or buyback vis-à-vis the bondholder’s initial expectations.  
Despite the principle of so-called non-retroactivity, the possibility cannot be ruled out that the bond will be affected by future tax, corpo-
rate or other similar legal developments requiring a withholding to be applied to payments, thereby no longer enables the calculated 
return to be achieved or that the investor may incur tax liability. Such risks are solely borne by the investor. Under no circumstances 
may the Issuer be held liable in this regard. 

Risks associated with ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

Risk of Payment Default 
The ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations under this issuance is mainly a function of the creditworthiness and solvency of the par-
ent company, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, which is in turn a debtor of the Issuer on the basis of the global 
bond issuances conducted by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and all further financial instruments in which the 
Issuer invests the proceeds of this bond issuance. 
As with all other financial obligations, there exists the risk of the Issuer being unable to meet the obligations under this issuance. The 
redemption amount on maturity may be lower than the amount originally invested by the bondholder; in certain circumstances there 
may be no payment at all of interest or of capital redemption on maturity.  
Bonds are capital investments that do not benefit from any statutory deposit guarantee scheme. 

Interest Rate Risk 
An investor who has invested in fixed-rate bonds bears the risk of the bond price falling due to movements in market interest rates. 
While the interest rate of the bond is fixed for the duration of its term, the actual interest rate on capital markets usually varies from day 
to day (the “market interest rate”). Market interest rate changes lead to changes in the prices of fixed-rate bonds in the opposite direc-
tion. Therefore, if the market interest rate rises, the price of a fixed-rate bond will usually fall to a level causing the total return from such 
a bond to approximately correlate with the market interest rate. On the other hand, if the market interest rate falls, the price of a fixed-
rate bond will usually climb to a level causing the total return from such a bond to approximately correlate with the market interest rate. 
This can lead to negative consequences for the value and trends relating to investments in the bond. 
This risk exists if the bond is sold on the secondary market but not if it is redeemed or bought back by the Issuer on maturity. 

Risks associated with the public offering and/or the admission of the security to trading on a regulated market 

Liquidity Risk 
The Issuer has not applied for the bonds to be admitted to trading on a regulated or unregulated market.  
Regarding bonds not admitted to trading on a regulated or unregulated market, there is no guarantee that a secondary market will be 
formed or, where one exists, that it will continue to exist or offer liquidity. At the same time, it can be difficult to value such bonds, which 
can also have a negative impact on liquidity. Where the market offers liquidity, in certain circumstances the investor may not be able to 
sell its bonds at an appropriate price or at a price that is at least equal to its capital investment, or any sale may also be practically im-
possible. This can have a negative impact on the value of the bond investments.  

The bonds may be freely transferred in accordance with the terms and conditions of SIX SIS AG. The Issuer reserves the right to apply 
for the bonds to be admitted to trading on a regulated or unregulated market. 

Lock-up period and Put Option 
Unless otherwise provided for under statutory provisions, it is not permitted to withdraw from subscriptions to this bond or to revoke 
subscription declarations. A put option may only be exercised in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in this prospectus. 
The nominal value paid by the investor is accordingly subject to a medium-term lock-up period.  
Should the Issuer exercise the right provided for herein to convert the bonds into shares, there will be no redemption of the nominal 
value on (extended) maturity. In any such case, the bondholder shall receive shares of the Issuer. Shareholders receiving shares under 
exercise of the conversion option by the Issuer shall enjoy the same economic rights (notably entitlement to receive dividend payments) 
as those specified in the articles of association of the Issuer as applicable to all existing shares or those to be issued in line with the 
listing. Shares may be traded on the stock market. 

Reduction and Closing Right 
The Issuer is entitled to reduce subscription amounts without falling below the prescribed minimum, without having to seek the inves-
tor’s approval or provide justification. The risk therefore exists that the investor will not receive the desired allocation. The Issuer is also 
entitled to close the bond placement before the entire tranche has been subscribed to, without having to seek the investor’s approval or 
provide justification. 
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 Prospectus Responsibility and Approval 

 Responsible Persons 
Responsibility for the contents of this prospectus lies with the Issuer, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, 
Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers, Principality of Liechtenstein.  
The senior management body of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is the administrative board. The members of 
the administrative board are Mr Matthias Klein and Mr Clemens Laternser. 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG and the members of the administrative board hereby declare that, to the best 
of their knowledge, the information and data contained in this prospectus are accurate and no facts have been omitted that are likely to 
affect the materiality of this prospectus or registration form. The responsible persons have ensured that all due attention has been paid 
in this regard. 
To the extent that data in this prospectus has been obtained or quoted from third parties, it is hereby confirmed that said data has been 
faithfully reproduced and, to the best knowledge of the Issuer as can be ascertained from the data published by any such third party, 
has not been presented in an inaccurate or misleading manner. Where data from third-party sources is used, this is indicated at the 
appropriate location and the source identified. 

 Approval  
This securities prospectus was approved on 20 May 2021 by the Financial Market Authority of Liechtenstein as the competent body, in 
accordance with Regulation (EU) No. 2017/1129.  
Prospectuses are approved by the Financial Market Authority of Liechtenstein after verification of the completeness, clarity and con-
sistency of the prospectuses and should not be treated as an endorsement of the Issuer or confirmation of the quality of the securities 
covered by said prospectus. Investors are required to independently verify the appropriateness of the security offered against their own 
investment objectives. 

 Information on the Issuer 

 Information on the Issuer 

 Commercial History of the Issuer 
 Legal and Commercial name of the Issuer 

The legal and commercial name of the Issuer is ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG. 
 Place of Registration and Registration number of the Issuer 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is listed on the trade register of the Principality of Liechtenstein under the 
registration number FL-0002.543.640-8. The company’s LEI is 391200KABA0XCWJDTK89. 

 Date of Incorporation and Duration of the Issuer 
The Issuer was founded by way of a decision of the founding shareholder on 21 March 2017 with registration at the trade registry taking 
place on 23 March 2017. ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG has an unlimited duration.  

 Registered Office, Legal Form and Applicable Law of the Issuer 
The registered office address of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is Landstrasse 14, FL-9496 Balzers,  
Liechtenstein. The company’s investor administration department can be contacted by phone on +41 (0) 44 213 67 67, or by e-mail at 
support@thomas-lloyd.com. 

The company was incorporated as a stock company (Aktiengesellschaft) in accordance with Art. 261 et seq. PGR (Liechtenstein Per-
son and Company Law) and therefore incorporated under the law of the Principality of Liechtenstein, by which it shall also be governed.  
Further information on the Issuer is available at www.thomas-lloyd.com. Data contained on the website does not form part of the pro-
spectus. 

 Key Events in the Development of the Issuer’s Business Activities 
The Issuer is a special purpose vehicle, i.e. a company founded solely for the purpose of issuing bonds, including these bonds. 
The proceeds from the bond issuances of the Issuer will be invested in full by the Issuer by subscribing to global bond issuances of the 
parent company, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. The only significant assets and revenue sources of the 
Issuer are (a) the global bond issuances of the parent company in which the issue proceeds are invested, (b) a letters of support from 
the parent company, and (c) a cost absorption agreement between ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and the Is-
suer in favour of the Issuer. 
The ability of the Issuer to meet its financial obligations towards bondholders is therefore mainly a function of the ability of ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obligations relating to global bond issuances, letters of support and the cost absorp-
tion agreement. 
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The Issuer has conducted the following previous bond issues and achieved the following issue proceeds: 

• THOMASLL. 3.75/21 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2021, maximal extension to 31 December 2023;  
ISIN LI0363131512, issue proceeds (excl. premium): CHF 7,820,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 2.50/28 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2028,  
ISIN 0363131504, issue proceeds (excl. premium): CHF 330,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 4.75/29 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029,  
ISIN LI0476476259, issue proceeds: CHF 2,828,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071505, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: CHF 4,181,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 4.75/29 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0547576905, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: CHF 3,268,000; 

• THOMASLL. 5.80/2027 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, 
ISIN LI0395604734, issue proceeds: CZK 49,238,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 7/2027 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, 
ISIN LI0395604684, issue proceeds CZK 722,271,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.80/29 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0476476267, issue proceeds CZK 41,441,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071521, issue proceeds: CZK 21,807,000 (placement phase completed) 

• THOMASLL. 6.525/30 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0543289131, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: CZK 51,679,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 4.175/27 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, 
ISIN LI0423561583, issue proceeds EUR 2,189,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071513, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: EUR 14,444,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.175/29 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071539, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: EUR 16,724,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/30 USD - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0523015944, issue proceeds: USD 4,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.625/30 USD - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0523015951, issue proceeds: USD 438,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/30 GBP - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0538127007, issue proceeds: GBP 13,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.325/30 GBP - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0538127015, issue proceeds: GBP 10,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 19/27 EUR (continuation of THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 18/27 EUR) 
- with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, ISIN LI0431500078, issue proceeds: EUR 8,712,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 19/28 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2028, 
ISIN: LI0488506614, issue proceeds: CZK 7,689,000, (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL: Green Growth Bond 19/28 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2028, 
ISIN: LI0498822704, issue proceeds: CHF 625,000, (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 20/29 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0560391513, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: EUR 3,364,000. 

The issue proceeds achieved have been fully invested in global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH, Germany.  

 Main Current Investments 
The Issuer intends to invest all the proceeds from this issue by subscribing to global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany, for further investments in sustainable infrastructure projects on a worldwide 
basis with a geographic focus on high growth and emerging markets. 

 Main Future Investments 
The Issuer reserves the right to engage in further bond issues to generate proceeds for indirect investments via group companies, nota-
bly via ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, in sustainable infrastructure projects on a worldwide basis with a geo-
graphic focus on high growth and emerging markets. However, no firm decisions have been made in this regard. 
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 Business Overview  

 Main Business Sectors 
 Main Business Activity of the Issuer 

The corporate object of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is the provision of financing, notably to enhance the 
expansion potential and to finance the growth strategy of the ThomasLloyd Group, to hold and manage its own assets (such as partici-
pations, intangible rights and real estate) and the execution of all transactions relating to such activities.  

From the anticipated issue proceeds, the Issuer intends to finance sustainable infrastructure projects on a worldwide basis with a geo-
graphic focus on high growth and emerging markets by financing the business and investment activities of ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH through subscriptions to global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH.  

 Main New Products and/or Services 
In pursuit of its business model, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG has already conducted bond issuances and 
will continue to do so. 

 Main Markets 
The Issuer invests the issue proceeds by subscribing to global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 
to finance sustainable infrastructure projects on a worldwide basis with a geographic focus on high growth and emerging markets.  

 Competitive Position of the Issuer 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is in a competitive environment composed of domestic and international compa-
nies operating or financing sustainable infrastructure projects on a worldwide basis with a geographic focus on high growth and emerg-
ing markets, the relevant risks of which also therefore apply to the Issuer. 

 Organisational Structure 

 Description of the Group and Position of the Issuer within this Group 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Hold-
ing GmbH, Hanauer Landstrasse 291b, 60314 Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany. For its part, ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd, 160 Victoria Street, London SW1E 5LB, UK, 
which is owned by MNA Capital Pte Ltd, 80 Robinson Road, 068898 Singapore. 

The corporate object of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is the indirect financing of infrastructure projects by 
subscribing to global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. 
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Further information on the ThomasLloyd Group and the companies of the Group is available at www.thomas-lloyd.com. The aforemen-
tioned website and its contents do not form part of this prospectus. 

 Trends 
Since the founding of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, there have been no notifications of any negative 
changes to the business activity and outlook of the Issuer. This also applies to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. 

The Issuer has no knowledge of any trends, uncertainties or other events that are likely to significantly affect the business prospects of 
the Issuer during the current financial year. This also applies to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH.  

 Earnings Forecasts and Estimates 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG does not issue any earnings forecasts or estimates. 
The Issuer invests the issue proceeds in subscriptions to global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH, resulting in the Issuer receiving interest income and capital repayments in amounts and at times which will enable the Issuer to 
meet its obligations under this bond issue. The Issuer also benefits from a letter of support from ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH. ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has also undertaken to bear the costs of the Issuer relating to the 
incorporation of the latter (formation costs), the costs of this issuance (interest expense) and the Issuer’s running costs (materials, per-
sonnel and other business expenses). 

Against this background, the Issuer expects to break even over the term of the bond.  

 Administrative, Management and Supervisory Bodies 

 Information on Management Bodies and Senior Managers 
The members of the board of directors of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG and at the same time its executive 
directors are Mr Matthias Klein and Mr Clemens Laternser, who hold collective signature authority. The business address of the per-
sons stated below is the address of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, namely Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers, 
Principality of Liechtenstein. The company currently has no other employees but may exploit the services of the personnel of the Thom-
asLloyd Group for administrative matters. 

Mr Matthias Klein is the chairman of the administrative board of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG. Mr Mat-
thias Klein is a graduate in Economics and Romance Studies majoring in Financing, Credit and Business Informatics, followed by part-
time studies leading to an MBA from the Graduate School of Business Administration, Zurich (CH), and from State University of New 
York at Albany (Albany NY, USA).  
Mr Klein has many years’ of experience in the administration, management and disposal of real estate projects, in the coordination and 
launch of real estate funds, in corporate consulting services in the procurement of equity and debt capital and in corporate finance, fi-
nancial services (distribution agreements, investor administration, departmental management in law, organisation & administration, 
investment services, treasury, accounting and IT) and in the entrepreneurial management of holding companies. 
Mr Matthias Klein is managing director of ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. and of multiple subsidiaries of the ThomasLloyd Group Ltd. and of 
ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd., which are issuers of investment products and/or securities and/or have been entrusted with the distribution 
of investment products and/or securities. Mr Matthias Klein notably acts as managing director or board or administrative board member 
of the following companies (amongst others), which are of relevance to this issuance as far as the Issuer is concerned: ThomasLloyd 
Global Asset Management (Switzerland) AG (administrative board); ThomasLloyd Global Asset Management GmbH (managing direc-
tor); Cleantech Treuvermögen GmbH (managing director); Cleantech Management GmbH (managing director); Vierte Cleantech Infra-
struktur GmbH (managing director); Cleantech Infrastruktur GmbH (managing director); DKM Global Opportunities Fund 01 GmbH; 
ThomasLloyd Investments GmbH (managing director); ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. (managing director); ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure (Czech) a. s. (managing director). 
Mr Matthias Klein has held directorships in the following companies (amongst others), which are of relevance in relation to the business 
activities of the Issuer and the expertise of Mr Matthias Klein: FAKT Immobilien AG (chairman of the board); FAKT Financial Services 
AG (board member) until February 2015 inc.; FIHM Fonds- und Immobilien Holding München AG (board member) until December 2012 
inc. Other posts held by Mr Matthias Klein during his career include general representative for sales and marketing at Wölbern Invest 
KG; board member of the bank Vontobel Europe AG; head of private banking at Bauer Privatbank, Stuttgart; board member of Spar-
kasse Gelsenkirchen; director of Metzler Asset Management GmbH; and head of risk controlling at Westfalenbank AG. 

Mr Clemens Laternser is a member of the administrative board of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG. An ex-
pert in international tax law, he is a partner at TTA Trevisa-Treuhand-Anstalt, a medium-sized trust company based in Balzers, Liech-
tenstein. His main duties in this regard are structural advisory, tax planning and compliance. Mr Clemens Laternser has over 20 years’ 
of experience in trust law, during which time he spent 10 years on the board of the Liechtenstein chamber of fiduciaries and as manag-
ing director of ZEN Tax Consulting Trust and of ZEN Vermögensverwaltungs-AG. At the same time, he was chairman of the administra-
tive board of Liechtensteinischer Rundfunk and also acted on behalf of multiple charitable institutions.  
Mr Clemens Laternser is a graduate in Business Economics from the University of St. Gallen and is a state-certified trustee in Liechten-
stein. He also holds a Master’s in International Tax Law from Liechtenstein University. 
Neither of the aforementioned persons has been convicted of any offence relating to fraud; neither of the aforementioned persons has 
ever been the subject of any bankruptcy proceedings; neither of the aforementioned persons has been the subject of any public 
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charges or sanctions instigated by the public authorities or any regulatory authority (including industry associations); neither of the 
aforementioned persons has been barred by the courts from holding a post on a management or supervisory body of an issuer or from 
performing a management role for an issuer.  

 Information on the Founding Company and Sole Shareholder 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG was founded by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH,  
Hanauer Landstrasse 291b, 60314 Frankfurt am Main, Germany (a member of the ThomasLloyd Group) and is wholly owned by said 
company. 

 Potential Conflicts of Interest 
Due to the fact that some of the same individuals are on the management bodies of ThomasLloyd group companies, there exist distinct 
interrelations and/or conflicts of interest in a legal, economic and personal sense.  

One member of the Issuer’s board, Mr Matthias Klein, also occupies posts at companies associated with ThomasLloyd Cleantech  
Infrastructure Holding GmbH and notably acts as managing director of ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. as well as of several subsidiaries of 
ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. and of several subsidiaries of ThomasLloyd Group Ltd. When relevant persons act in the name of the Is-
suer, their actions and decision-making processes in relation to the interests of the Issuer may be influenced by a conflict of interest. In 
such situations, when different and frequently opposing interests must be taken into consideration, the possibility cannot be ruled out 
that said persons will take decisions that they would not have taken had the aforementioned interrelations not existed. The possibility 
cannot be ruled out that such decisions will have a negative impact on the results and financial situation of the Issuer and on its ability 
to meet its obligations under this prospectus.  

Mr T.U. Michael Sieg is Group Chief Executive Officer of the ThomasLloyd Group and Chairman of the Board of Directors of  
ThomasLloyd Group Ltd. At the same time, Mr T.U. Michael Sieg is Managing Director of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Hold-
ing GmbH and a board member of ThomasLloyd Capital Partners S.à.r.l. He is also a stakeholder of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastruc-
ture Holding GmbH and of companies and structures in which the latter invests. He is partly delegated to sit on management and super-
visory bodies of the companies in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH or its participations invest. 
Further interrelations exist in the legal and economic sense such that:  

• Companies in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH invests receive advice for planning, development, pro-
ject planning, financing, building, construction, operations, acquisition, sale, rental and lease of technical facilities, projects, land, 
and companies in the sectors of infrastructure, energy production, energy storage, energy infrastructure, energy efficiency, mobility, 
air and environment, water treatment, manufacturing, production, materials, economics, waste and recycling from, inter alia, the 
investment bank ThomasLloyd Capital LLC and/or other companies belonging to or associated with the ThomasLloyd Group, 
whereby compensation is established under normal market conditions. 

• Companies that provide further capital for ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, belong to the ThomasLloyd Group 
and they are also subsidiaries of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH via bonds in which ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH has a participation. 

 Management Practices 

 Term of Office, Role Allocation and Compensation 
The administrative board of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG was appointed for an indefinite term on the 
founding of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG by general meeting of the shareholders in accordance with the 
articles of association of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG. All board members have been assigned equal rep-
resentative authority in accordance with the articles of association of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG.  
Mr Matthias Klein has been appointed chairman of the administrative board and Mr Clemens Laternser holds responsibility for adminis-
trative matters of the Issuer.  
There are no contracts between board members and the Issuer or other companies of the ThomasLloyd Group under which the board 
members of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG will receive any benefits in respect of said functions on termina-
tion thereof.  

 Audit Committee & Corporate Governance 
The Issuer has not created an audit committee and, as an unlisted company, is not subject to the corporate governance regulation. 

 Auditor  
The independent auditor of the Issuer as at and for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 was CONFIDA Wirtschaftsprüfung AG, 
Kirchstrasse 3, 9490 Vaduz, Liechtenstein.  
CONFIDA Wirtschaftsprüfung AG is one of the leading accounting and audit firms in Liechtenstein and conducts its activities in accord-
ance with local and international accounting standards (PGR, IFRS, Swiss GAAP FER, OR). CONFIDA Wirtschaftsprüfung AG has 
been formally authorised by the Financial Market Authority of Liechtenstein (FMA), registration number 30033, to undertake audit en-
gagements in relation to investment companies. CONFIDA Wirtschaftsprüfung AG is a member of the Liechtenstein Association of Cer-
tified Public Accountants (Wirtschaftsprüfervereinigung). 
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 Principal Shareholders 
The principal and sole shareholder of the Issuer is ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, Hanauer Landstrasse 291b, 
60314 Frankfurt am Main, Germany. The founding capital of the Issuer, CHF 50,000, is authorised and fully paid.  
No controlling shareholder agreement or profit transfer agreement has been concluded. The issuer will ensure, during the course of its 
activities, that any and all legal transactions between the issuer and its parent company are conducted on an arm's length basis. 

 Related-party transactions 
The Issuer has conducted the following previous bond issues and achieved the following issue proceeds: 

• THOMASLL. 3.75/21 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2021, maximal extension to 31 December 2023;  
ISIN LI0363131512, issue proceeds (excl. premium): CHF 7,820,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 2.50/28 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2028,  
ISIN 0363131504, issue proceeds (excl. premium): CHF 330,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 4.75/29 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029,  
ISIN LI0476476259, issue proceeds: CHF 2,828,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071505, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: CHF 4,181,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 4.75/29 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0547576905, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: CHF 3,268,000; 

• THOMASLL. 5.80/2027 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, 
ISIN LI0395604734, issue proceeds: CZK 49,238,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 7/2027 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, 
ISIN LI0395604684, issue proceeds CZK 722,271,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.80/29 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0476476267, issue proceeds CZK 41,441,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071521, issue proceeds: CZK 21,807,000 (placement phase completed) 

• THOMASLL. 6.525/30 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0543289131, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: CZK 51,679,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 4.175/27 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, 
ISIN LI0423561583, issue proceeds EUR 2,189,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071513, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: EUR 14,444,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.175/29 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071539, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: EUR 16,724,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/30 USD - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0523015944, issue proceeds: USD 4,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.625/30 USD - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0523015951, issue proceeds: USD 438,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/30 GBP - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0538127007, issue proceeds: GBP 13,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.325/30 GBP - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0538127015, issue proceeds: GBP 10,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 19/27 EUR (continuation of THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 18/27 EUR) 
- with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, ISIN LI0431500078, issue proceeds: EUR 8,712,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 19/28 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2028, 
ISIN: LI0488506614, issue proceeds: CZK 7,689,000, (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL: Green Growth Bond 19/28 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2028, 
ISIN: LI0498822704, issue proceeds: CHF 625,000, (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 20/29 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0560391513, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: EUR 3,364,000. 

All issue proceeds have been and will be invested by way of subscription in the global bond issuances of the Issuer's parent company, 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. In this regard, as at 31 March 2021, the Issuer has invested CHF 19,052,000; 
CZK 894,125,000; EUR 45,429,000; USD 442,000 and GBP 23,000 in global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH. 
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 Selected historical financial information of the Issuer 

 Audited financial information of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, Balzers, as at and for the 
year ended 31 December 2019, 2018 and 2017 
The following financial information has been extracted without material adjustment from the historical audited financial statements of the 
Issuer as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the audited financial statements of the Issuer as at and for the year ended 
31 December 2018 and the audited financial statements of the Issuer as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017. The historical 
financial information has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in Liechtenstein.   

  

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG 

Balance sheet in CHF 

Assets 2019 2018 2017 
A. Non-current assets    

I. Intangible assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 
II. Tangible assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 
III. Financial assets 60,794,250.85 29,556,657.46 1,432,427.45 

Total non-current assets 60,794,250,85 29,556,657.46 1,432,427.45 
B. Current assets    

I. Inventories 0.00 0.00 0.00 
II. Receivables 3,366,040.13 677,520.23 248,106.89 

./. del credere    
of which with a residual maturity of up to 1 year: CHF 3,366,040.13;  
previous year: CHF 677,520.23 

   

of which with a residual maturity of over 1 year: CHF 0;  
previous year: CHF 0 

   

III. Securities 0,00 0,00 0.00 
IV. Cash in banks, post office account credit balances, cheques and  

cash-in-hand 
1.134.401,10 2.020.589,16 126,456.26 

Total current assets 4,500,441.23 2,698,109.39 374,563.15 
C. Prepayments and accrued income 5,204,970.79 1,060,274.82 106,565.43 
Total Assets 70,499,662.87 33,315,041.67 1,913,556.03 
Liabilities    
A. Shareholder’s equity    

I. Share capital 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 
II. Capital reserves 0.00 0.00 0.00 
III. Earning reserves 0.00 0.00 0.00 
IV. Retained earnings 0.00 0.00 0.00 
V. Loss for the period 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total Shareholder’s equity 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 
B. Provisions 0.00 0.00 0.00 
C. Payables 70,373,177.28 33,222,043.56 1,817,162.62 

of which with a residual maturity of up to 1 year: CHF 8,640.88;  
previous year: CHF 0.00 

   

of which with a residual maturity of over 1 year: CHF 70,364,536.40;  
previous year: CHF 33,222,043.56 

   

D. Accrued expenses and deferred income 76,485.59 42,998.11 46,393.64 
Total liabilities 70,499,662.87 33,315,041.67 1,913,556.03 
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 Operating and Financial Review and prospects of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG 
The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the year ended and as at 31 December 2019, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 
were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards in Liechtenstein, as contained within the amendment to the 
Persons and Companies Act (2015) (“PGR”). The independent auditor has issued unqualified opinions in relation to the financial state-
ments for the years ended and as at 31 December 2019, 2018 and 2017.  

The audited financial statement of the issuer for the year ended and as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are included in 
Appendix 3. 

 Legal Action and Arbitration Proceedings 
There is nor has there been any information relating to the Issuer concerning any state interventions, legal or arbitration proceedings 
still pending or which may be instigated involving either the Issuer or ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH with any 
significant potential impact on the financial position or profitability of the Issuer and/or of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH. 

 Significant Changes to the Financial Position or Commercial Situation of the Issuer or ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH 
As at the date of this Prospectus, there has been no significant change in the financial position or financial performance of the Issuer 
and/or of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH since 31 December 2019, being the end of the last financial period for 
which the financial information has been published. 

 Additional Data 
The founding capital of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is CHF 50,000 and has been paid up in full. The 
share capital consists of 50 registered shares, each with a nominal value of CHF 1,000. 

The articles of association of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG were registered with the trade registry of the 
Principality of Liechtenstein under the number FL-0002.543.640-8 and are available for consultation purposes at any time.  
The corporate object of the company (Article 3 of the articles of association) is the provision of financing, notably to enhance the expan-
sion potential and to finance the growth strategy of the ThomasLloyd Group, to hold and manage its own assets (such as participations, 
intangible rights and real estate) and the execution of all transactions relating to such activities. 
The administrative board of the Issuer shall be composed of one or more members appointed by general meeting of the shareholders 
for an indefinite term. The administrative board may be expanded by way of co-option, subject to approval at the next general meeting 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG 

Income statement in CHF 

 01/01/2019 – 
31/12/2019 

01/01/2018 – 
31/12/2018 

23/03/2017 – 
31/12/2017 

1.-5. Gross profit 334,385.61 870,506.06 199,508.74 
6. Personnel expenses    

a) Wages and salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 
b) Social security, pension and other benefit costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 

7. Depreciation and value adjustments    
a) on intangible assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 
b) on current assets, insofar as these exceed the value adjustment customary 

in the company 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8. Other operating expenses (220,673.50) (200,392.57) (196,769.82) 
9. Income of movements 0.00 0.00 0.00 

of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00    
10. Income from other securities and receivables classified as financial assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 

of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00    
11. Other interest and similar income 1,942,283.91 4,207.08 0.00 

of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0,00    
12. Depreciation on financial assets and value adjustments on securities classified 

as current assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 

13. Interest and similar expenses (2,054,196.02) (672,520.57) (938.92) 
of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous years CHF 19,073.00    

14. Taxes on annual result (1,800.00) (1,800.00) (1,800.00) 
15. Annual result after taxes 0.00 0.00 0.00 
16. Other taxes (if not included in 1 to 15)  0.00 0.00 0.00 
17. Loss for the period 0.00 0.00 0.00 
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of the shareholders. Administrative board members may be removed at any time without justification by general meeting of the share-
holders and they may also resign at any time with immediate effect. The administrative board represents the company vis-à-vis third 
parties. Its responsibilities consist of all matters not assigned to the general meeting of the shareholders, notably management of the 
company, selection of directors and authorised signatories, accounting, preparation of the annual financial statements and preparation 
of general meetings of the shareholders. The administrative board reaches decisions by simple majority, with the exception of decisions 
specified as requiring unanimity. 

The company’s articles of association, including the provisions of the latter relating to shareholders' rights and obligations, may be mod-
ified at the general meeting of the shareholders by an absolute majority of votes represented. 
The shareholders shall meet at least once a year at the general meeting of the shareholders. The general meeting of the shareholders 
shall be convened and the agenda issued at least 14 days prior to the date of said meeting. Provided that the shareholders are known 
to the administrative board, meetings shall be convened by standard post, fax or e-mail, or via the company's official publication me-
dium (Liechtensteiner Vaterland). 

 Significant Contracts 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG has concluded the following contracts of major significance to investors vis-à-
vis the company's obligations relating to the bond issue. 

 Letter of support 
In order to support the Issuer's obligations relating to the bonds towards bondholders, a letter of support has been provided by the Issu-
er's parent company, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, dated March 2017, and amended as at November 2018. 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH therefore assumes an unrestricted, unconditional, indefinite and irrevocable obli-
gation towards bondholders by way of a genuine contract in favour of third parties (echter Vertrag zugunsten Dritter) governed by Ger-
man law (Art. 328 (1) of the German Civil Code (BGB)), to ensure that ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG contin-
ues to be supported with regards to its ongoing financial structuring and management, so that it remains creditworthy and is at all times 
able to meet its obligations resulting from the bond issue in terms of capital and interest payments as set out in the terms and condi-
tions of issue. 

Under the letter of support, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has issued a guarantee to meet all or any of the Is-
suer’s obligations as they fall due, including but not limited to, any interest and redemption claims. Should due claims on ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG arising out of the bearer bonds not be met, the bondholder may directly demand that Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH take the necessary steps to ensure that the claims arising out of the Issuer's bearer 
bonds are satisfied. Should ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH fail to meet any justified bondholder claim, the bond-
holder can demand indemnification from ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH for all resulting damage. 
In the event of any termination restrictions specified in the terms and conditions of this bond (notably securities note), ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH shall not be obliged to dismiss any cause for deferral by the Issuer. 

 Cost Absorption Agreement 
On 24 March 2017, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and the Issuer, entered into a cost absorption agreement, 
whereby the Issuer’s parent, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is obligated to absorb the costs of this issuance 
(interest expense) and the Issuer's running costs (materials, personnel and other business expenses). 

 Paying Agent Contract 
The Issuer has concluded a paying agent contract with Bank Frick & Co. AG, Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers. Under this agreement, 
Bank Frick & Co. AG acts as paying agent for the bonds. 

The paying agent assumes no liability nor does it provide any guarantee in principle or in amount for any of the Issuer's payment obliga-
tions under this prospectus. 

 Accessible Documents 
The articles of association of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG may be requested and accessed at the trade 
registry at the Office of Justice, under the number FL-0002.543.640-8.  
Investors may request free copies of the articles of association, annual financial statements and auditor's reports of the Issuer and of 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH by writing to the Issuer at ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) 
AG, Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers, Principality of Liechtenstein, providing an e-mail address for the receipt of said documents. All docu-
ments may also be accessed at the Issuer's website, https://www.thomas-lloyd.com/en/investors/. Data contained on the website does 
not form part of the prospectus. 
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 Information on ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

 Name, Registered Office, Business Address 
The name of the company is ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH.  
The registered office of the company is located in Langen, Emsland, Federal Republic of Germany. The management of the company is 
located in Frankfurt am Main, Federal Republic of Germany (business address: Hanauer Landstraße 291b, 60314 Frankfurt am Main, 
Tel: 00800 090 000 66). 

 Incorporation, Legal Form, Applicable Law and Duration 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH (LEI 391200RVK5MPKRZEMA60) was founded under the name SRG Ein-
hundertsechsundzwanzigste Vermögensverwaltungs- und Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH under articles of association dated 1 March 
2010 in the legal form of a limited liability company (Gesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung) under German law with an indefinite dura-
tion and governed by German law. At general meeting of the shareholders on 4 January 2011, a resolution was passed to change the 
name to Cleantech Projektgesellschaft mbH. The company's name was further changed by resolutions passed at the general meeting 
of the shareholders on 5 February 2013 and 15 May 2018 to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Fund GmbH and ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH respectively. 

The company was registered at the trade registry at Frankfurt am Main district court on 17 January 2011 (still under its previous name 
of Cleantech Projektgesellschaft mbH) under the number HRB 89949. In 2016, the registered office was transferred to Langen, 
Emsland, Federal Republic of Germany, and the company has been registered with Osnabrück district court under the number HRB 
210568 since 23 June 2016. 

Further information on ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is available at www.thomas-lloyd.com. Data contained on 
the website does not form part of the prospectus. 

 Corporate Object 
The corporate object of the company as stated in Article 3 of the articles of association dated 23 May 2018 is as follows: “The corporate 
object of the company in the field of clean technology is the planning, construction, operation, rental and lease of technical facilities and 
projects, the financing and exploitation of patents and licences, the management of own assets on an own account basis and participa-
tion in other companies, including management of such companies. The corporate object of the company also includes the acquisition 
of land and the project planning and implementation of the construction on such land and the sale or leasing thereof on completion of 
construction works.” 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH mainly finances its activities from the proceeds of the stated investment activities 
and from the issuance of bonds, which are generally subscribed to and financed via group companies. 

 Financial Year and Legal Announcements 
The financial year of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is the calendar year. The company's legal announcements 
concerning shareholders are published in the Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger). 

 Nominal Capital, Subscribed Capital and Subordinated Capital 
The subscribed share capital of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is EUR 25,000, fully paid up by the founding 
shareholder and freely available to the company's management. The share capital is composed of one share with a nominal value of 
EUR 25,000. Multiple silent partners also participate in ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH who have paid in a total 
of some EUR 576m as at 31 December 2019. The claims of the silent partners are subject to a payment restriction and, in the event of 
the insolvency or liquidation of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, are subordinated (a so-called qualified subordina-
tion agreement), whereby silent partners enjoy partial withdrawal rights and certain withdrawals have already taken place. 

 Senior Management 
Senior managers are required to manage the company under their own responsibility and to represent the company in both judicial and 
extrajudicial contexts. Senior management notably decides on all matters affecting the company's ongoing operations, general ques-
tions relating to refinancing, terms applicable to borrowing and lending transactions and the acquisition and disposal of real estate. 

The current managing director of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is Mr. T.U. Michael Sieg. He is the sole author-
ised representative of the Issuer’s parent and is not subject to the provisions of Section 181 BGB (self-contracting restrictions). 

 Auditor 
The auditor of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is PKF Wulf & Partner Partnerschaft mbB, Stuttgart, an auditing 
and tax advisory firm, located at Löffelstrasse 44, 70597 Stuttgart, Federal Republic of Germany. 
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PKF Wulf & Partner is a member of PKF International, a global network of legally independent firms operating in the fields of audit, tax 
advisory and business/management consulting.  

 Selected Historical Financial Information of 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 

 Selected historical financial information on ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and Operating and 
Financial Review and prospects 
The following financial information of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has been extracted without material adjust-
ment from the historical audited financial statements of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH as at and for the year 
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, included in Appendix 4 to this Prospectus. The historical financial information has been prepared 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”). 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – Statement of financial position (IFRS) 
in TEUR 

Assets 2019 2018 
(unaudited) 

Non-current assets   
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") 185,947 60,741 
Financial assets at amortised costs 206,325 231,862 
Deferred borrowing costs - 802 

Total non-current assets 392,272 293,405 
Current assets   

Other receivables – related parties 45,543 35,794 
Accrued interest – related parties 13,891 6,933 
Deferred borrowing costs - 2,104 
Prepayments and other receivables 233 123 
Corporation tax receivables 26 72 
Cash and cash equivalents 19,287 4,357 

Total current assets 78,980 49,383 
Total assets 471,252 342,788 
Liabilities   
Current liabilities   

Silent partnerships 6,266 5,635 
Bonds 392 415 
Convertible bonds 617 326 
Other payables – related parties 2,329 2,789 
Accruals and other payables 7,984 9,838 

Total current liabilities 17,588 19,003 
Non-current liabilities   

Silent partnerships 360,732 257,779 
Bonds 44,623 42,419 
Convertible bonds 48,311 23,592 

Total non-current liabilities 453,665 323,790 
Total liabilities 471,254 342,793 
Equity   

Share capital 25 25 
Retained earnings (27) (30) 

Total equity (2) (5) 
Total equity and liabilities 471,252 342,788 
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ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – Statement of comprehensive income (IFRS) 
in TEUR 

 2019 2018 
(unaudited) 

Income and movements on financial assets   
Interest from loan and receivables 17,407 751 
Unrealised foreign exchange gain/(loss) on financial assets 1,767 (375) 
Unrealised M2M losses on financial assets held at FVTPL (6,368) (17,165) 

Total net income and movements on financial assets 12,806 (16,789) 
Fees and expenses   

Management fees (9,428) (5,838) 
Acquisition costs (3,533) (1,486) 
Other operating expenses (3,311) (886) 

Total fees and expenses (16,272) (8,210) 
Operating loss (3,466) (24,999) 

Interest income – related parties 310 416 
Interest expenses – related parties (5,684) (6,016) 

Loss before taxes and before silent partnerships (8,840) (30,599) 
Silent partnerships’ profit participation under local accounting standards (4,903) (9,057) 
Tax - - 

Total loss for the period (13,743) (39,656) 
Other comprehensive loss - - 

Silent partnerships’ profit participation 13,744 39,653 
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders (1) (3) 

Financial information for the years ended 2019 and 2018 
As at 31 December 2019, the amount of non-current assets of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding was EUR 392.28m. The 
participation in the subsidiary ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holdings Ltd. (EUR 89.02m), the participation in Solar Arise (EUR 33.43m), the 
participation in the sub-fund ThomasLloyd SICAV – Sustainable Infrastructure Income Fund (EUR 66.38m), the participation in the fund 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Fund SICAV (EUR 0.97m) and a loan receivable from ThomasLloyd Asia Holdings Ltd. (EUR 
206.33m) represent the main part of non-current assets. 
As at 31 December 2019, the amount of current assets of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH was EUR 78.98m. The 
other receivables from related parties (EUR 45.54m), accrued interest from related parties (EUR 13.89m), other receivables (EUR 
0.23m), corporation tax receivables (EUR 0.03m) and cash and cash equivalents (EUR 19.29m) represent the main part of current as-
sets. 
As at 31 December 2019 the current liabilities of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH was EUR 17.59m. The silent 
partnerships (EUR 6.27m), bonds (EUR 0.39m), convertible bonds (EUR 0.62m), other payables to related parties (EUR 2.33m) and 
accruals and other payables represent the main part of the current liabilities. Essentially, the other payables to related parties represent 
liabilities from accrued (accumulated) interest (EUR 2.10m) to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. in connection with 
bond issuances. 
As at 31 December 2019 the non-current liabilities of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH was EUR 453.67m. The 
silent partnerships (EUR 360.73m), bonds (EUR 44,62m) and convertible bonds (EUR 48.31m) represent the non-current liabilities. 
The underlying bonds are bonds acquired by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. and ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure (Liechtenstein) AG through the proceeds of their own bond issues. For the contracts below stated in section J. “Significant 
contracts“, subparagraph 1 “Silent partners“, the contributions from silent partners rose from EUR 263.41m as at 31 December 2018 to 
EUR 367m as at 31 December 2019.  
In 2019, net income and movement on financial assets was EUR 12.81m after EUR -16.79m in the previous year. In 2019 the fees and 
expenses was EUR 16.27m after EUR 8.21m in the previous year. Included in the fees and expenses are management fees (EUR 
9.43m). Management fees are calculated on the year end`s total assets of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. Total 
loss for 2019 was EUR 13.74m after a total loss of EUR 30.60m in the previous year.  

The company prepares annual financial statements in accordance with the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch). These 
show the balance sheet total as at 31 December 2019 of EUR 528.89m and a result before partial profit transfer in the amount of EUR 
4.90m. 

The comprehensive audit report on the annual financial statements of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH as at 31 
December 2019, including the management report and the audit opinion, is attached to this prospectus as Appendix 4 and may also be 
requested during the term of this Bond issue offer by writing to the Issuer at ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, 
Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers, Principality of Liechtenstein, including an e-mail address for receipt of the documents.  
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No significant changes have impacted the financial or earnings position of the company since publication of the most recent audited 
annual financial statements. Earnings forecasts or estimates are not provided. 
The following financial information of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has been extracted without material adjust-
ment from the historical audited financial statements of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH as at and for the year 
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. The historical financial information has been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”). 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – Statement of financial position (IFRS) 
(in TEUR) 

 2018 2017 
Assets   
A. Non-current assets   

I. Financial assets   
1. Shares in affiliates 123 123 
2. Shares in investment companies 60,618 54,617 
3. Other securities (bonds) 114,831 23,005 
4. Other assets 802 2,705 

II. Receivables and other assets   
Receivables from affiliated companies 117,031 - 

Total non-current assets 293,405 80,450 
B. Current assets   

I. Financial assets   
Other securities (bonds) 0 1,417 
Other assets 6,933 5,891 

II. Receivables and other assets   
1. Receivables from affiliated companies 11,486 133,050 
2. Receivables from related parties 20,525 31,491 
3. Other assets 5,080 1,080 
4. Income tax receivables 72 72 

III. Cash and cash equivalents 4,357 16,563 
Total current assets 48,453 189,564 
Total assets 341,858 270,014 
Equity and liabilities   
A. Equity   

I. Subscribed capital 25 25 
II. Retained earnings 24 26 
III.  Asset revaluation reserve -54 -54 

Total equity -5 -3 
B. Liabilities   

I. Non-current liabilities   
1. Liabilities to silent partners 257,779 210,555 
2. Convertible bonds 26,151 3,214 
3. Bonds 36,846 38,007 

Total non-current liabilities 320,776 251,776 
II. Current liabilities   

1. Liabilities to silent partners 5,635 3,530 
2. Bonds 3,755 3,205 
3. Trade payables and other liabilities 8,755 9,886 
4. Liabilities to affiliated companies 2,762 1,516 
5. Liabilities to related parties 180 102 

Total current liabilities 27,087 18,241 
Total liabilities 341,863 270,014 
Total equity and liabilities 341,858 270,014 
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ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – Statement of comprehensive income (IFRS) 
(in TEUR) 

 2018 2017 
1. Operating income   

a) Other operating income 25,177 49,628 
b) Other net changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,735 - 

Total operating income 29,912 49,628 
2. Operating expenses   

a) Management and performance fee (5,838) (5,747) 
b) Other net changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - (29,989) 
c) Write-downs on receivables (43,978) - 
d) Legal and consulting fees (193) (177) 
e) Transaction costs (1,530) (649) 
f) Net foreign currency losses on cash and cash equivalents (22) (40) 
g) Other operating expenses (4,100) (8,086) 

Total operating expenses (55,661) (44,688) 
3. (Loss) / profit earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) (25,749) 4,940 
4. Financial income and expenses   

a) Interest income 1,167 3,432 
b) Interest expense (6,016) (4,496) 
c) Other net changes in the fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 30,596 (3,881) 

Total financial result 25,747 (4,945) 
5. Before tax (EBT) (2) (5) 
6. Income taxes   

Corporation tax expenses - 6 
Total income taxes - 6 
(Loss) / profit for the year (2) 1 

Financial information for the years ended 2018 and 2017 
As at 31 December 2018, the amount of non-current assets of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding was EUR 293.405m. 
Investment shares in the sub-fund ThomasLloyd SICAV – Sustainable Infrastructure Income Fund (EUR 60.62m), shares in affiliates 
(TEUR 123), bonds (EUR 114.83m) and receivables from affiliated companies (117.03m) represented the main part of the non-current 
assets.  
As at 31 December 2018, the amount of the current assets was EUR 48.453m. Whereby receivable from affiliates parties (EUR 
11,486m), receivables from related parties (EUR 20.525m), other financial assets (EUR 6.933m) and other receivables (EUR 5.080m) 
and cash and cash equivalents (EUR 4.357m) presented the main part of the current assets. 
As at 31 December 2018, the bonds and convertible bonds issued by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. and Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, recognised as non-current liabilities, stand at a total of EUR 63m. Bonds recog-
nised as current liabilities total EUR 3.76m.  
The underlying bonds are bonds acquired by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. and ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure (Liechtenstein) AG through the proceeds of their own bond issues. For the contracts below stated in section J. “Significant 
contracts“, subparagraph 1 “Silent partners“, in 2018, the contributions from silent partners rose from EUR 214.09m as at 31 December 
2017 to EUR 263.41m as at 31 December 2018. 
Current liabilities to affiliated companies (EUR 2.762m) and related parties (TEUR 180) as at 31 December 2018 are mostly composed 
of liabilities of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. and Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG relating to bond issuances. These include accrued interest relating to the bonds 
issued by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and held by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. and/or 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, in addition to liabilities relating to the cost absorption agreement between 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. and/or ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG.  

Earnings before tax (EBT) of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH improved from EUR -5k in 2017 to EUR -2k in 
2018. The profit for the year felt from EUR TEUR 1 to TEUR -2.  

The company also produces annual financial statements in accordance with the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch). 
These show the balance sheet total as at 31 December 2018 of EUR 8,381.52m with a result before partial profit transfer in the amount 
of EUR 9.06m.) 

The comprehensive audit report on the annual financial statements of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH as at  
31 December 2018, including the situation report and the audit opinion, is attached to this prospectus as Appendix 4 and may also be 
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requested during the term of this bond issue offer by writing to the Issuer at ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, 
Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers, Principality of Liechtenstein, including an e-mail address for receipt of the documents.  
No significant changes have impacted the financial or earnings position of the company since publication of the most recent audited 
annual financial statements. Earnings forecasts or estimates are not provided. 

 Other Data 

 Relations with Participations 
As at 31 December 2019 and the date of this Prospectus, the parent company, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, 
holds a 100% stake in ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a. s., Prague, Czech Republic. Nominal capital stands at CZK 
2,000k. As at the balance sheet date 31 December 2019, the equity of this company stands at CZK 2,005k and result for the year 
ended 31 December 2019 was CZK 0. 
The parent company also owns 100% of the share capital of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG. 

 Administrative Body of the Company 
The managing director of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is Mr T. U. Michael Sieg (founder), London, UK. 

 Group Affiliation 
100% of the share capital of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is held by ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd., London, UK. 
Consolidated financial statements are not required to be prepared by ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd [as the company is an investment  
entity]. 
No controlling shareholder agreement or profit transfer agreement has been concluded. The company will ensure, during the course of 
its activities, that any and all legal transactions between the company and its principal shareholder are conducted on an arm's length 
basis. 

 Material Contracts 
Other than the contracts set out below, as at the date of this prospectus there are no further material contracts that could lead to mate-
rial commitments or claims that are likely to affect the ability of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to meet its obliga-
tions, notably those arising out of global bond issuances, the letters of support provided to the Issuer or the cost absorption agreement 
with the Issuer. 

 Silent Participations 
As of the publication of this prospectus, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has entered into a series of contracts 
with silent partners under which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH receives financing from silent partners which is 
in turn subsequently invested by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. Silent participations have been concluded with 
the following companies: 
a) Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG – contract dated 1 July 2011, amendment dated 18 July 2013. The contract 

was concluded for a fixed term and may not be terminated by any party prior to 31 December 2032; 
b) Zweite Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG – contract dated 10 October 2011, amendment dated 18 July 2013.  

The contract was concluded for an indefinite term and may be terminated by the silent partner as of 31 December 2018; 
c) Dritte Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG – contract dated 14 August 2012, amendment dated 18 July 2013.  

The contract was concluded for an indefinite term and may be terminated by the silent partner as of 31 December 2020; 
d) Vierte Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG – contract dated 14 August 2012, amendment dated 18 July 2013.  

The contract was concluded for an indefinite term and may be terminated by the silent partner as of 31 December 2020; 

e) Fünfte Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG – contract dated 8 March 2013, amendment dated 18 July 2013.  
The contract was concluded for an indefinite term and may be terminated by the silent partner from 15 years after the first public 
offering of limited partnership shares. 

On the basis of each of the aforementioned contracts, the silent partner may terminate its silent participation early with good cause. 
However, all the companies from a) to e) have provided ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH with a binding undertak-
ing that the right of termination would only be exercised within the same scope and time period as their own investors terminate the 
participation. The right termination right for good cause remains unaffected, regardless of the circumstances. As a matter of principle, 
the contributions of the silent partners may be made in tranches. The silent partners are under no obligation to make additional pay-
ments over and above their contribution. 
Silent partners are not entitled to participate in or contribute to the management of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH or the company's decision-making processes relating to their own business activity. 
Companies a), b) and e) participate in the profits, assets, hidden reserves and enterprise value of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastruc-
ture Holding GmbH. Company c) participates, in the amount of 12.95% of its contribution, in the profits of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infra-
structure Holding GmbH and in the amount of up to 25.25% of its contribution in the profits, hidden reserves and enterprise value of 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. Should the profit share of 12.95% p.a. in any given financial year not suffice, an 
additional payment claim shall apply to the profits of the next financial year. The silent partners do not participate in any loss.  
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Claims of the silent partners for redemption of their contributions and for payment of profit shares are subordinate to all claims of other 
creditors of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. In the event of the liquidation or bankruptcy of ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, the claims of the silent partners are subordinate to the claims of the global issuance bondholders of 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. For as long as global bond issuances have not been redeemed in full, all global 
issuance bondholders' claims for early redemption and all claims of silent for to redemption of their contribution or for a share of profits 
shall persist, provided that no such payment may lead to the instigation of insolvency proceedings against ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Holding GmbH. 

In addition to the aforementioned companies, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH allows qualified investors to directly 
invest in ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH in the form of silent participations under terms comparable to those ap-
plicable to the aforementioned companies.  

 Management Contracts  
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH concluded a contract covering risk management, asset allocation advisory and 
other services with ThomasLloyd Global Asset Management (Schweiz) AG and ThomasLloyd Global Asset Management (Americas) 
LLC (as service provider), effective from 1 January 2013. The service provider is entitled to remuneration consisting of a fixed and a 
variable component. The annual fixed component is 2% of the assets under management of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH, calculated as at 31 December of any given year. The variable component takes the form of participation in profits at the 
rate of 25% of the profits of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH if investors' return from the average participating 
capital stands at between 0% to 8%, 33% of profits if investors' return from average participating capital stands at between 8% to 15% 
and 50% of profits if investors' return from average participating capital is higher than 15%. The contract has a term of 18 years and 
may be terminated with effect from 31 January 2031 subject to a 6-month notice period.  

 Letter of support 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has provided a letters of support in favour of its subsidiary, ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH therefore assumes an unrestricted, unconditional, 
indefinite and irrevocable obligation towards bondholders of multiple bonds issued by the subsidiary ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastruc-
ture (Czech) a.s. by way of a genuine contract in favour of third parties governed by German law (Art. 328 (1) BGB), to ensure that 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. continues to be supported with regard to its ongoing financial structuring and man-
agement, so that it remains creditworthy and is always able to meet its obligations resulting from its bond issues in terms of capital and 
interest payments as set out in the terms and conditions of issue. Based on the letters of support, there accordingly exists a warranty 
obligation on ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH guaranteeing fulfilment of the obligations of the subsidiary Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s.  

An identical letter of support with the same obligations has been issued by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH in 
favour of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG in relation to all bonds that have been or will be issued by the latter. 

 Cost Absorption Agreements 
A cost absorption agreement exists between ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and its subsidiary ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. in favour of the latter. Under this cost absorption agreement, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastruc-
ture Holding GmbH has undertaken vis-à-vis ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. to bear all the costs of ThomasLloyd 
Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. relating to the founding of the latter (formation costs), relating to the issue of a bond by Thom-
asLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. (interest expense and the running costs of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) 
a.s. (materials, personnel expenses and other operating costs). 

An identical cost absorption agreement with the same obligations also exists between ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH and ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG in relation to all bonds that have been or will be issued by the 
latter. 

 Trends 

 Fundamentals of the company 

Business Model  
The main business activity of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is the purchase, sale, planning, construction, oper-
ation, rental and lease of technical facilities and projects, the financing and exploitation of patents and licences, the management of 
own assets on an own account basis and participation in other companies, including management of such companies. The corporate 
object of the company also includes the acquisition of land and the project planning and implementation of the construction on such 
land and the sale or leasing thereof on completion of construction works. 

 Strategy and Objectives 

2.1 Investment Strategy 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH directly and indirectly invests in a wide-ranging portfolio of infrastructure assets. 
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2.2 Investment Objective 
The investment objective of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is to achieve an attractive return on the invested 
capital while reducing investment risk through diversification in multiple countries, sectors and investment styles. 

2.3 Investment Policy 
In seeking to achieve its investment objective, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH directly and indirectly invests in a 
wide range of sustainable infrastructure assets operated by infrastructure companies and will also invest in the expansion thereof. The 
infrastructure companies operate plants on a worldwide basis with a geographic focus on high growth and emerging markets in the 
fields of: 

• Renewable energy; 
• Utilities; 
• Transport; 
• Social infrastructure; and 
• Communication. 
Investments in infrastructure facilities may take place at any project phase (development, construction or operations), including in 
Greenfield infrastructure facilities, Brownfield infrastructure facilities and in non-performing or low-profitability infrastructure facilities. 
Equity and/or debt capital instruments are acquired from infrastructure company issuers for the purposes of implementing the invest-
ment policy. 
Equity instruments include equity and quasi-equity instruments of an Infrastructure Company in the form of voting and non-voting corpo-
rate stock, limited partner interests, shares, preferred shares, and equity warrants, and other equity related interests ("Equity Instru-
ments"). A majority of capital and/or voting shares may also be acquired in infrastructure companies. 
Debt instruments include debt issued by an Infrastructure Company in the form of private and public project bonds (including converti-
ble bonds), zero bonds, notes, private or syndicated senior secured project loans, short term credit lines and bridge loans, mezzanine 
loans and other forms of debt or securitized debt ("Debt Instruments" and together with Equity Instruments, "Investments"). Debt In-
struments may either be amortising or interest-bearing only with its interest rate terms being fixed or tied to a floating rate index such as 
Libor or Euribor. Debt Instruments may moreover rank senior or subordinated.  
The choice to invest in Equity or Debt Instruments will depend inter alia on the legal and economic environment of the relevant jurisdic-
tion in which the Investment is made. 
During the investment process, an equity and debt capital approach will be selected, seeking return from gains on disposal rather than 
from current income. It cannot be ruled out, however, that current income will become the main objective of the investment policy at 
some point in the future. 
Investments may be sourced directly from developers, utilities, or through agents, brokers, professional advisers, government institu-
tions, development finance organisations, NGOs, financial institutions, institutional investors and other infrastructure market participants 
(including other capital management vehicles)  
Indirect participations may also be acquired in investments and a portfolio of such investments constructed by investing in structures 
including, but not restricted to, subsidiaries, another holding company and/or derivatives (such as total return swaps or credit default 
swaps). However, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has not acquired any derivatives as of today's date. 
The intended average investment holding period depends on the duration of the project's current development or construction phase, 
as applicable, and on the facilities, the technology, the financing structure, the transaction volume and the intended exit strategy. The 
initial assumption is for investments to be held for an average period of between two to five years. The objective is therefore for invest-
ments to be realised via (i) the direct sale of an investment or of an investment portfolio, (ii) floating an investment or investment portfo-
lio on the stock market, or (iii) refinancing all outstanding debt capital instruments. The possibility cannot be ruled out, however, that 
longer holding periods with the objective of subsequent value appreciation will also become an objective of the investment policy. 

Cash and cash equivalents may also be held, including (but not being limited to) money market instruments and shares in money mar-
ket funds for the purposes of redemption and cash management or as an interim investment prior to the investment of available funds 
not invested in accordance with the foregoing. 

2.4 Social and Responsible Investment Principles 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH make Investments with the aim of delivering economic and social progress, help-
ing to build resilient communities and supporting purposeful activity, whilst protecting natural resources and the environment. Invest-
ment decisions are both top-down, based on review of the macro-economic, legal and regulatory frameworks, and bottom-up on a de-
tailed assessment of the individual Infrastructure Company’s ability to meet the selection criteria 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH uses the following selection criteria:  

• Top-down criteria, including but not limited to: 
o UN anti-corruption lists 
o Transparency International Corruption Perception Index 
o World Bank Ease of Doing Business Index 
o Bertelsmann Stiftung’s Transformation Index (BTI)  
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• Bottom-up criteria, including but not limited to: 
o Good corporate governance including compliance with international accounting and reporting standards  
o Human Resources policies, including non-discrimination and fair pay.   
o Health and Safety standards and worker protection.  
o Social impact of goods and services 
o Anti-Money Laundering and prevention of bribery and corruption policy. 

• Environmental criteria, including but not limited to: 
o Greenhouse gas emissions 
o Energy performance 
o Biodiversity protection 
o Water preservation 
o Waste reduction  

2.5 Investment Restrictions 
The following investment restrictions apply. Investment diversification must ensure that risk is adequately spread. ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH shall consider ethically sustainable investment criteria (Environmental, Social and Corporate Govern-
ance (“ESG”)). The following restrictions shall therefore apply, provided that such information is available: 
a) Up to 50% of the assets of the full portfolio of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH may be invested in a single 

country as at the end of 2021, i.e. on conclusion of the planned portfolio build-up period; 
b) Up to 30% of the assets may be invested in a single facility, calculated at the time of said investment, subject to an initial build-up 

period; 

c) Investments may only be made in technologies offering proven economic benefit; 
d) The investment decision must give due regard to the ability of the main partners and service providers to apply best practice in 

terms of ethical and ecological responsibility; 
e) The ESG criteria of main partners must be assessed as part of the sustainability analysis; 
f) Both the positive criteria of the main players (in the fields of ecology, transparency, product and service range, process standards, 

etc.) as well as exclusion criteria (violation of human rights and employment rights, production or trading of armaments or illegal and 
prohibited products, gambling, pornography, etc.) must be taken into consideration in order to obtain a balanced overview. The ex-
clusion criteria may be offset by the positive criteria, provided that the contribution to income from the former is less than 5% of the 
total income of the infrastructure company in question; 

g) Investments may only be made in countries with a stable political system and a transparent legal system with enforceable rights. 
Countries are assessed using specific inclusion and exclusion criteria, the assessment of which is based on the main factors from 
an ethical standpoint, such as proven violations of human rights and significant acts of corruption; 

h) The investment currency must be freely convertible in the country in question; 
i) Investments may only be made in countries that specifically recognise the rights of foreign investors. 

The aforementioned quantitative investment restrictions and constraints shall not be affected by any variation in the price or value of 
investments solely resulting from market fluctuations or other events outside the control of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Hold-
ing GmbH, yet on occurrence of which ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH will take all necessary measures to main-
tain the relevant aforementioned quantitative restrictions and constraints, unless it may be reasonably judged that such action would 
cause additional damage to the interests of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and its investors. 

 Outlook for Growth and Development in Infrastructure Market 
The expansion and modernisation of infrastructure are among the greatest global and social challenges of the 21st century. Especially 
in Asia, which has developed into a global power centre, expansion of infrastructure has become a pressing need due to the constant 
increases in population and sustained economic growth. One-half of global domestic product is already being generated in Asia. The 
ranking forecast of the world's strongest economic powers is set to include just one European country by 2050 (Germany). Countries 
such as India and Indonesia will have entered the top four by this time.1 Further development in Asia will be defined by its ability to 
move from an export-focused economy to one driven by domestic demand. This will require Asian economic dynamism to have further 
penetrated the wider population, leading to higher domestic consumption. This will require infrastructure able to keep pace with eco-
nomic development and ensuring that regions outside the conurbations are also able to participate in the sustained growth.  

Multiple economies in south-east Asia are facing far-reaching structural challenges. A study conducted by the consulting firm McKinsey 
shows that infrastructure in most Asian countries is underdeveloped, despite recent economic growth. Energy production in India lacks 
some 20% below peak demand due to insufficient investment. Infrastructure investment in Indonesia has been reduced from around 
6% of gross domestic product in the 1990s to just 3% over the past decade. This had resulted in lower performance in sectors such as 
utilities, transport, housebuilding, communication and water supply and to lower economic growth of between 1 and 3 percent.2 Efforts 

 

 
1 PwC: The World in 2050 

2 Credit Suisse: Asia: Development, financial markets, infrastructure and consumption, China 
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must be intensified to make up for the deficit in regions that have seen underdevelopment in infrastructure over decades and to estab-
lish infrastructure that meets modern industrial standards. The regions of Asia suffering from inadequate electricity supply must be pro-
vided with reliable sources of energy. Ports, airports, roads and telecommunications networks must be constructed from scratch, or be 
adapted and/or expanded to meet the demands of economic growth. Particularly in Asia, significant investment in infrastructure is re-
quired to face the challenges posed by urbanisation. According to estimates, in 2020 some 50% of the population in the Asia-Pacific 
region will be urban dwellers. This equates to 500 million more people than in 2013.3 Conurbations require investment in public 
transport, utilities, waste disposal and housebuilding. There is also increasing demand for reliable and, above all, environmentally 
friendly sources of energy, means of transport, logistics and water and electricity supply.  
The infrastructure investment backlog in Asia is therefore immense. According to recent studies conducted by the Asian Development 
Bank (ADB), the investment requirement in infrastructure up to 2030 is estimated at USD 26bn.4 The sum of USD 1bn currently being 
debated in the US in relation to its 10-year infrastructure investment plan pales into insignificance by comparison. Asia would therefore 
need to invest USD 1.7bn per year (16% of which to offset climate change), corresponding to twice the current investments of USD 
881bn in this segment and more than twice the USD 750bn estimate of the Asian Development Bank in 2009. This is partly due to re-
cent studies including measures to offset climate change. Of much greater significance is the sustained rapid growth in Asia leading to 
higher demand for infrastructure investment. The costings for investment requirements in each sector are as follows: USD 16.7bn in 
energy, USD 8.4bn in transport, USD 2.3bn in telecoms and USD 800bn in water treatment. In the region as a whole, 400m people do 
not have access to energy. 300m people have no access to clean drinking water and some 1.5bn people lack basic sanitary facilities. 
The deficit in infrastructure investments (investment requirement vs current investment levels) equates to 2.4% of forecast GDP over a 
5-year period (2016-2020). 
Political decision-makers have already left the door wide open for private investors. Regulatory restrictions and previous investment 
obstacles have been fundamentally reformed and in many cases eliminated, accompanied by attractive investment incentives and ben-
efits for foreign investors. According to the ADB, ongoing reforms and optimisation of existing processes, laws, procurement principles, 
etc. should lead to an even stronger pipeline of projects eligible for bank and other financing via public-private partnerships (PPPs). 
Capital markets will also be boosted via integration and consolidation. 

Opportunities are above all presented to ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH as a result of the aforementioned long-
term trends which demonstrate that the infrastructure investment requirement and energy demand will continue to grow significantly, 
especially in emerging economies. It is also to be expected, for example, that electricity selling prices will rise further, which may well 
increase the profitability of existing and planned facilities.  

Furthermore, these medium and long-term conditions enhance the market prospects of the planned disposal of completed power sta-
tions and other infrastructure projects. 

Overall, ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH will significantly benefit from its edge in terms of expertise and experi-
ence in the emerging economies of Asia, providing it with a sustainable unique selling proposition in this market. It is also anticipated 
that the demand will increase further among investors from the developed economies for attractive tangible assets, given that the situa-
tion in the capital and money markets makes it increasingly difficult to find profitable financial investments with an attractive risk/return 
profile. Overall, the growth potential of infrastructure investments in emerging economies continues unchanged and is set to increase 
further. The estimated achievable medium and long-term returns are significantly higher than with comparable investments in more 
developed economies. 
No event has occurred which has significantly affected the economic prospects of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding 
GmbH since the publication of its most recent audited annual financial statements. 
 

 

 
3 United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (ESCAP): Marketing Growth More Inclusive for Sustainable Development 

4 Asian Development Bank: Meeting Asia's Infrastructure Needs, Publication in 2017 
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 Securities Note 

 Essential Information 

 Working Capital Declaration 
The founding share capital of the Issuer of CHF 50,000 is fully paid up. 
Under a cost absorption agreement, all the Issuer's costs relating to the costs of this issuance (interest expense) and the its running 
costs (materials, personnel and other business expenses) will be borne by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH also provides a letter of support in favour of bondholders guaranteeing that the 
Issuer's obligations will be met.  

Issue proceeds will be continually invested in global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, on the 
basis of which the Issuer will receive sufficient funds to service its obligation arising out of this issuance.  
In the view of the Issuer, the working capital of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is adequate for its current 
requirements.  

 Capital Formation and Debt Burden 
The Issuer has conducted the following previous bond issues and achieved the following issue proceeds: 

• THOMASLL. 3.75/21 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2021, maximal extension to 31 December 2023;  
ISIN LI0363131512, issue proceeds (excl. premium): CHF 7,820,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 2.50/28 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2028,  
ISIN 0363131504, issue proceeds (excl. premium): CHF 330,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 4.75/29 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029,  
ISIN LI0476476259, issue proceeds: CHF 2,828,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071505, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: CHF 4,181,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 4.75/29 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0547576905, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: CHF 3,268,000; 

• THOMASLL. 5.80/2027 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, 
ISIN LI0395604734, issue proceeds: CZK 49,238,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 7/2027 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, 
ISIN LI0395604684, issue proceeds CZK 722,271,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.80/29 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0476476267, issue proceeds CZK 41,441,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071521, issue proceeds: CZK 21,807,000 (placement phase completed) 

• THOMASLL. 6.525/30 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0543289131, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: CZK 51,679,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 4.175/27 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, 
ISIN LI0423561583, issue proceeds EUR 2,189,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/29 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071513, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: EUR 14,444,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.175/29 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0477071539, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: EUR 16,724,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/30 USD - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0523015944, issue proceeds: USD 4,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.625/30 USD - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0523015951, issue proceeds: USD 438,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 3.075/30 GBP - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0538127007, issue proceeds: GBP 13,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. 5.325/30 GBP - with a maturity date of 31 December 2030, 
ISIN LI0538127015, issue proceeds: GBP 10,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 19/27 EUR (continuation of THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 18/27 EUR) 
- with a maturity date of 31 December 2027, ISIN LI0431500078, issue proceeds: EUR 8,712,000 (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 19/28 CZK - with a maturity date of 31 December 2028, 
ISIN: LI0488506614, issue proceeds: CZK 7,689,000, (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL: Green Growth Bond 19/28 CHF - with a maturity date of 31 December 2028, 
ISIN: LI0498822704, issue proceeds: CHF 625,000, (placement phase completed); 

• THOMASLL. Green Growth Bond 20/29 EUR - with a maturity date of 31 December 2029, 
ISIN LI0560391513, issue proceeds as at 31 March 2021: EUR 3,364,000. 
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With the exception of claims against ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH (i) resulting from subscription to global bond 
issuances at an equivalent value of CHF 19,052,000; CZK 894,125,000; EUR 45,429,000; USD 442,000 and GBP 23,000 (as at 31 
March 2021), (ii) on the basis of the letter of support from ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, and (iii) under the cost 
absorption agreement, the Issuer currently holds no assets. The letter of support and cost absorption agreements not only relate to 
obligations of the Issuer under the bond presented in this prospectus, but also secure the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations 
towards investors on the basis of the previously described bond issuances and any bonds that may be issued in parallel in the future. 

As a result of investing the issue proceeds of this bond and of previous global bond issuances of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
Holding GmbH, the Issuer continually receives interest payments from which the Issuer is able to settle its own costs and meet its obli-
gations as they come due arising out of this issuance. The bondholders also benefit from a letter of support from ThomasLloyd Clean-
tech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. A cost absorption agreement also exists between the Issuer and ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastruc-
ture Holding GmbH. 

 Interested Parties 
The Issuer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Thomas Lloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, in which the proceeds from this issu-
ance will be invested by way of subscription to global bond issuances to provide financing for the business and investment activities of 
Thomas Lloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Fund GmbH.  

One member of the Issuer’s board, Mr Matthias Klein, also occupies posts at companies associated with ThomasLloyd Cleantech  
Infrastructure Holding GmbH and notably acts as managing director of ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd., as well as of several subsidiaries of 
ThomasLloyd Holdings Ltd. and of several subsidiaries of ThomasLloyd Group Ltd.  

Natural persons and legal entities participating in the issuance/offering as service providers and directly providing advisory or distribu-
tion services for the Issuer are remunerated at normal market rates.  

 Reasons for the offer and use of the proceeds 
The Issuer will receive proceeds from this bond issuance of up to EUR 100,000,000. The proceeds from this issuance will be invested 
by way of ongoing subscriptions to global bond issuances of Thomas Lloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH to provide financing 
for the business and investment activities of Thomas Lloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH.  

The costs of the issuance, including any taxes relating hereto, will be assumed in full without deduction from the proceeds by  
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH under a cost absorption agreement between the latter and the Issuer.  

 Information on the Offered Securities 

 General Description of the Debt Instruments 
The object of this securities prospectus (hereafter the “prospectus”) is the bearer bond issue by ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastruc-
ture (Liechtenstein) AG, located in Balzers, Principality of Liechtenstein, offering a fixed interest rate of 5.075%, namely  
THOMASLL. 5.075/31 EUR (hereafter the “bond”), with a term running from 20 May 2021 to 31 December 2031.  

The total issue volume is EUR 100,000,000 (one hundred million Euro) in units each with a nominal value of EUR 1,000 (one thousand 
Euro). The minimum subscription amount per investor is EUR 10,000 (ten thousand Euro). Any higher subscription amount must be 
divisible by 1,000. There is no maximum subscription amount per investor. 

ISIN: LI1111628304 

 Legal Basis 
This issuance shall be governed by the law of the Principality of Liechtenstein, notably also including Regulation (EU) No. 2017/1129 of 
the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017 on the prospectus to be published when securities are offered to the pub-
lic or admitted to trading on a regulated market and the related EEA securities prospectus implementing act (EEA SPIA). 

 Representation 
The Bonds will be securitised over their full term as follows: 

(a) The Bonds shall be issued as security rights pursuant to § 81a SchlT of the Persons and Companies Act of the Principality of Liech-
tenstein (Personengesellschaftsrecht des Fürstentums Liechtenstein). 

b) The security rights shall be created by the Issuer entering the Bonds in a book-entry securities register maintained by the Issuer. The 
security rights are subsequently entered in the main register of SIX SIS AG (the "Depositary"). Upon entry in the Depositary's principal 
register and credit to the securities account of participants of the Depositary, the security rights ultimately qualify as intermediated secu-
rities pursuant to the provisions of the Swiss Intermediated Securities Act (Schweizer Bucheffektengesetz). 

c) Neither the Issuer, the Bondholders, Bank Frick & Co. AG as paying agent nor any other party shall have the right to demand or 
cause the delivery of the security rights or the conversion of the security rights into a global certificate or securities. The conversion into 
or delivery of securities in the event of a conversion event is reserved. 

A "conversion event" occurs if - SIX SIS AG or a successor organisation ceases business activities for at least 14 consecutive days 
(except due to mandatory or other public holidays), announces its intention to cease business activities permanently or actually ceases 
business activities permanently and there is no clearing successor organisation acceptable to Bank Frick & Co. AG is available; or - the 
continued central custody of the Bonds in the Depositary has negative consequences for the Issuer for legal or regulatory reasons. 
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 Currency of Securities Issuance 
The securities are issued in EUR. All payments relating to the issuance will be made on the due date in EUR. 

 Ranking of the Securities and Collateralisation 
Investors' claims against the Issuer under this bond are unsecured and are of the same ranking as other unsecured claims against the 
Issuer. The Issuer undertakes not to assume any liabilities ranked senior to the claims of the bondholders.  
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has also provided a letter of support in favour of bondholders guaranteeing that 
the Issuer's obligations will be met. 

 Rights associated with the Securities 
The bonds constitute direct, unconditional and unsubordinated liabilities of the Issuer and have the same rank as all other unsecured 
and unsubordinated liabilities of the Issuer, notwithstanding any other liabilities enjoying higher rank under the law.  
The Issuer is obliged to make interest payments to investors on a quarterly basis and to redeem the nominal value of the bond on ma-
turity. Moreover, the form and contents of the bond and the rights and obligations of the Issuer are defined in the law of the Principality 
of Liechtenstein. 
The Issuer and/or any company related to it are entitled to acquire these bonds on the secondary market at any time and at any price. 
The securities acquired by the Issuer may, at its sole discretion, be held by the Issuer, sold on or be submitted to the paying agent for 
cancellation. Where such purchases take place via public offer, said offer must be made available to all bondholders. 

 Right of Termination  
Both the investor and the issuer are entitled to terminate the bond prematurely for the first time on 30 June 2026. Subsequently, the 
bond may be terminated on 30 June and 31 December of any year. The notice period is 12 months. 

Termination shall be notified by the terminating party to the counterparty in writing, specifying the bonds in question and the number 
thereof. An investor may notify termination relating to all or some of the bonds in its possession, without however falling below the mini-
mum subscription amount of EUR 10,000. Should an investor hold bonds with a nominal value of no more than EUR 10,000, it may only 
exercise its termination right over all of said bonds. Should an investor receive a termination notification from the Issuer, in the event of 
liability for the prejudice suffered by the Issuer, it shall no longer be entitled sell or transfer the bonds in question. 
In the event of early termination, the Issuer shall buy back the bonds in question on the termination date at the nominal value plus ac-
crued interest.  

 Termination Restrictions 
Should the Issuer's requirement to meet its obligations resulting from termination by bondholders lead to the insolvency of the Issuer on 
the due date, the redemption obligations of the latter shall be deferred. 
Should the conditions for deferral be met, the Issuer shall notify all relevant bondholders thereof at least one month prior to the redemp-
tion date by presenting appropriate documentation to this effect. 
The claims of bondholders from any such termination and the corresponding obligations of the Issuer shall fall due as soon as it tran-
spires that no grounds for deferral exist when the obligations resulting from terminations already notified are met. The due date and 
redemption date shall be the 10th banking day after the Issuer has established that grounds for deferral no longer exist.  
Any deferral of the Issuer's redemption obligations may not exceed 3 years from the original redemption date emanating from termina-
tion by a bondholder. During the course of deferral, all outstanding amounts shall accrue interest in accordance with these conditions 
until redemption has been made in full. 
Provisions covering termination restrictions and/or the right of deferral shall no longer apply if the Issuer is liquidated or becomes insol-
vent. 

 Exceptional termination by the Investor – Social Hardship Clause 
Should a bondholder be affected by particular hardship such as unemployment, serious illness, the death of a spouse or next of kin or 
bankruptcy, the investor shall be entitled to forward a reasoned termination request to the Issuer via all appropriate documented means, 
specifying the bonds in question and the number thereof. At its own discretion, the Issuer may request additional documentation sup-
porting the existence of hardship or may directly accept or reject the termination request. 

In the event of the termination being accepted, the Issuer shall buy back the bonds in question at their nominal value plus accrued inter-
est, subject to a termination notice period of 30 days calculated from the Issuer's confirmation of the termination request.  

In the event of termination on the grounds of hardship, during the period of effectiveness of the aforementioned termination restrictions 
the Issuer shall remain at liberty to defer payment of redemption in accordance with the above provisions even if it has accepted the 
termination request. 

 Conversion Option  
In the event that its shares are admitted to trading, the Issuer shall be entitled to convert the bonds into shares of the Issuer.  
Any conversion of the bonds into shares shall be conducted at the rate of 105.075% (nominal value of the bond vs nominal value of the 
share). Regarding the obligation specified in the bond conditions relating to interest accruing (i) after the last interest payment date prior 
to the date of conversion, and (ii) until the date of conversion, said interest shall not be paid but shall similarly be covered by the con-
version of the bonds and allocation of shares at the conversion rate of 105.075%. Should the conversion and the fixed conversion rate 
lead to fractionation of shares, the investor shall not receive fractional shares but a settlement payment in cash.  
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Should the Issuer decide to exercise its conversion option, the investors shall receive notification thereof at least 3 months prior to exe-
cution of the conversion, where said notification shall specify the terms of the conversion and the rights and obligations of the investor 
resulting from the conversion, allocation of shares and conferring of shareholder status. Such notifications shall be deemed to have 
been validly made if submitted to the investor's custodian bank through SIX SIS AG and/or via publication of a corresponding investor 
notification at https://www.thomas-lloyd.com/en/investors/ (select 1. “Country of origin” and 2. “Investor status“) at least 3 months prior 
to maturity of the bond. 

At the conversion date specified in the investor notification, the bonds will be recovered and cancelled by the paying agent step by step 
(payment via offsetting) and investors will be allocated and forwarded the corresponding shares of the Issuer and all settlement pay-
ments. Settlement and delivery shall be conducted via the paying agent through SIX SIS AG. 

Shareholders receiving shares under exercise of the conversion option by the Issuer shall enjoy the same economic rights (notably 
entitlement to receive dividend payments) as those specified in the articles of association of the Issuer as they apply to all existing 
shares or those to be issued in line with the listing. However, no voting rights are attached to the shares allocated and issued in the 
context of conversion. 

There currently exists no final decision regarding admission to trading and therefore the future exercise of the conversion 
option, nor has any necessary resolution been passed by the competent body or any date specified. 

 Nominal Interest Rate and Terms applicable to Due Interest 
The bond will accrue interest from 20 May 2021 inclusive at the fixed rate of 5.075% p.a. (frequency: Act/Act – ICMA Rule 251 (daily)). 
Interest will be calculated pro rata each quarter as at 30 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December of each year. Interest pay-
ments will be made in arrears within 10 banking days of quarter end. The first interest payment will therefore be made by 14 July 2021 
at the latest. The interest payment for the final quarter of the term shall be made at the same time as redemption of the bond. 
Interest payments to investors will be processed via the paying agent. The latter shall calculate interest amounts and make quarterly 
interest payments. The paying agent assumes no liability, nor does it provide any guarantee for or in relation to the Issuer's payment 
obligations under this prospectus. 
All claims relating to payments of due interest shall lapse after 3 years. 

 Maturity and Redemption 
The bond shall be due for redemption on 31 December 2031 (maturity), provided that neither the investor nor the Issuer have ex-
pressed their wish to exercise their right of termination at the end of each month, subject to the stipulated 12-month notice period and 
the investor has not issued a termination request on the grounds of hardship. 

The Issuer shall redeem the bond on maturity or at the relevant termination date, at the nominal value = 100% in the currency of 
issue. 

 Redemption  
The bond shall be redeemed to the investor via the paying agent. The paying agent assumes no liability, nor does it provide any guar-
antee in principle or in amount for any of the Issuer's redemption obligations. 
Redemption shall take place within 10 banking days of maturity. Claims to capital shall lapse 30 years after maturity. 

Payment of the final redemption amount shall not take place if the shares of the Issuer are listed on a stock market during the 
term of the bond and the Issuer has exercised its right hereunder to convert the bonds into shares. After conversion, bond-
holders may exercise their rights under the Issuer's articles of association. 

 Paying Agent 
The paying agent is Bank Frick & Co. AG, Landstrasse 14, FL-9496 Balzers.  

All payments under the terms and conditions of the bond shall be made by the Issuer in EUR via the paying agent to SIX SIS AG, 
Baslerstrasse 100, CH-4600 Olten, by way of credit to the accounts of the relevant custodian bank for forwarding to the bondholder. 
The paying agent assumes no liability, nor does it provide any guarantee in principle or in amount for any of the Issuer's payment obli-
gations under this prospectus. 

As a rule, all payments, notably capital redemptions and interest payments, shall be made without deduction or withholding of taxes or 
other levies for which the investor may be liable under the law applicable to it. It is the responsibility of the investor to meet its obliga-
tions in this regard. Neither the Issuer nor the paying agent is under any obligation to pay any additional amounts to bondholders for the 
settlement of such obligations. Insofar as the Issuer or paying agent is under no legal obligation to deduct and/or withhold taxes or any 
other levies, they shall bear no responsibility regarding bondholders' legal tax liabilities. 

 Yield Calculation 
The yield of the bond can be calculated considering the issue price, fixed interest rate, term and redemption price. Such calculation can 
only be made on the assumption that the bond will be held until maturity and that redemption can take place at the nominal value. Any 
additional costs of the investor such as ancillary issuance costs, including subscription expenses and ongoing costs such as custodian 
fees and administration expenses, are to be taken into consideration. 
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The individual return of a bond over the full term must be calculated by a bondholder considering the difference between the amount 
initially paid to acquire the bond (nominal value plus any accrued interest) and the redemption amount against the term of the bond and 
the individual transaction costs. The net return of the bond can therefore only be calculated on maturity. 

 Representation of Securities Holders  
There is no specific form of securities holder representation. All rights under the issuance must be exercised against the Issuer by the 
bondholder personally or by its designated representative at the registered office address of the Issuer in writing by registered letter or 
by all other legal means. 

 Resolutions, Authorisations and Approvals 
The bond issuance was approved by the administrative board of the Issuer on 13 April 2021. 

 Anticipated Issue Date  
The Issuer plans to commence offering the bond one day after publication of the securities prospectus and until it has been placed in 
full, up to a maximum of one year after approval of the prospectus by the FMA.  
The Issuer reserves the right to terminate the offer before the end of the subscription period if it is placed in full. The Issuer similarly 
reserves the right to terminate the offer early should it become obvious that the planned issue volume cannot be reached during the 
subscription period. 
In subscription requests exceed the available volume of the bond, subscriptions will be processed in order of receipt. In such a case, 
the Issuer shall be entitled to reduce subscriptions. 
The total subscription amount of the bond is composed of the issue price plus all expenses and proportional accrued interest from the 
initial issue date until close of subscription. 
The initial issue date and commencement of the term of the bond is 20 May 2021. 

 Restrictions on the Free Transferability of the Securities 
The bonds can be freely transferred in accordance with the terms and conditions of SIX SIS AG. However, they have not been admitted 
to trading on a regulated market, which may lead to a de facto restriction on tradability. However, the securities are, as a matter of prin-
ciple, freely tradeable on an unregulated market without restriction. The Issuer reserves the right to apply for admission of the bond to 
trading on a regulated or unregulated market. 

 Tax Information 
The Issuer intends to make this offer mainly to investors in Switzerland, Liechtenstein, Belgium, France, Germany, Luxembourg, Aus-
tria, Slovakia and Czech Republic. Investors are notified of the tax laws of the member state in which the investor is a tax resident and 
that the state of incorporation of the Issuer may impact the income generated by the securities. 

Investors are advised to seek their own tax advice regarding their own potential tax consequences of subscribing to, purchasing, hold-
ing and selling the ThomasLL. 5.075/31 EUR bond, notably the consequences of the application of governmental, regional, foreign and 
other tax laws and any changes to applicable tax laws. 

Below is an overview of the tax regulations of Switzerland, Liechtenstein, Belgium, France, Germany, Luxembourg, Austria, Slovakia 
and Czech Republic The following only represent a brief summary of the main rules. In no way does the following replace fundamental 
tax advice tailored to the individual situation of the investor.  

The Issuer and/or paying agent can accept no liability for an investor's individual tax consequences resulting from the acquisition, hold-
ing or sale of the bond. The Issuer conducts no withholding at source; investors must declare their assets and income and pay their 
taxes in accordance with the obligations of their country of tax residency.  

Should the prospectus be notified for marketing in other countries, an overview of the tax principles of the country in question will be 
covered by an amendment to the prospectus. 

 Taxation in Switzerland 
Natural persons residing in Switzerland must declare as income all interest realised from debt securities holdings and dividend pay-
ments from shares held as personal assets. Capital gains from the sale of debt securities and shares held as personal assets are tax 
exempt as a matter of principle. Proportional accrued interest is classified as part of the purchase price. 

Legal entities domiciled in Switzerland must declare as profit all interest realised from debt securities holdings and dividend payments 
from shares. Capital gains from the sale of bonds or shares are generally also to be declared as profit (exceptions may apply depend-
ing on the canton of domicile and the individual tax status). 

 Taxation in Liechtenstein 
For investors (natural persons) resident in Liechtenstein, realised interest, dividends and capital gains from debt securities and shares 
are tax exempt, provided that the relevant debt securities are declared under the wealth tax.  

Legal entities domiciled in Liechtenstein holding debt securities must declare as income all realised interest, dividends and capital gains 
from debt securities and shares. 

 Taxation in Belgium 
Interest from bonds and dividends allocated or paid to natural persons resident in Belgium is subject to the 30% flat-rate tax. 
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If the investor receives interest or dividends via an intermediary domiciled in Belgium (e.g. a bank), a withholding at source on movable 
assets is applied. The withholding tax provides discharge, such that the relevant income does not have to be declared on the investor's 
tax return.  
However, payments made directly to an investor resident abroad are not subject to the Belgian withholding tax and must therefore be 
declared in the investor's tax return. 
Capital gains on the sale of bonds are tax exempt, provided they are made by the investor during the normal course of managing their 
personal assets. They are otherwise subject to 33% capital gains tax.  

Accrued interest included in the selling price is subject to a flat-rate tax of 30%.  
Interest from bonds paid to corporations domiciled in Belgium for tax purposes is subject to the normal corporation tax rate (29.58% 
since 1 January 2018 and 25% from 1 January 2020, unless a reduced tax rate is applicable). 
Accrued and/or capitalised interest is recognised by the beneficiary at the end of the financial year in question and is subject to corpora-
tion tax as at the same date.  
Costs relating to the acquisition or sale of bonds are tax deductible, unless recognised in financial assets. Capital gains on the disposal 
of bonds are subject to the normal rate of corporation tax. Losses incurred during the disposal of bonds, including translation differ-
ences, are deductible from corporation tax. 
If bonds are converted into shares, dividends paid to Belgian corporations are free of corporation tax subject to the following (intercom-
pany holdings):  

• The participation is at least 10% or the acquisition price is at least EUR 2.5m; 
• Participation held for at least 1 year (or 1-year retention obligation);  
• The distributing company and its direct and indirect subsidiaries are subject to taxation. 
Under the same conditions, gains on disposal of shares held by the investor after conversion are not subject to corporation tax. 

 Taxation in France 
The interest actually received by natural persons resident in France is subject to French income tax. This takes place in 3 stages: 
On receipt of interest, payment of (1) a flat-rate charge without discharging effect, and (2) social security contributions takes place. In 
the following year, the income is subject, alongside all other income for the year, to (3) income tax on the sliding scale. The flat-rate 
payments already made are offset against income tax for the year.  

On sale of debt securities held as personal assets the realised capital gains are subject to (1) income tax for the year, and (2) social 
security contributions. All price increases (e.g. payment of accrued interest to the seller) are to be included in the selling price. 

Interest received from bonds held by companies subject to corporation tax is treated as income subject to corporation tax, recog-
nised in the financial year during which it is accrued. 
Gains on disposal are taxable as profit. All price increases (e.g. payment of accrued interest to the seller) are to be included in the 
selling price. 

 Taxation in Germany 
Natural persons resident in Germany must declare interest income from debt securities and dividend payments from shares held as 
personal assets as income from capital assets. Capital income is subject to flat-rate withholding and additional taxes.  
Capital gains from the sale of debt securities and shares held as personal assets are also taxable. 
Accrued interest paid on acquisition represents negative income from capital assets. Accrued interest received on disposal forms part 
of the taxable proceeds from sale. 

If the debt securities are held by a domestic custodian, the flat-rate withholding is retained by the German custodian bank under capital 
gains tax deduction. The tax deduction is set off against the income tax liability of the investor. There exists no obligation to add such 
income to the income tax return, although the taxpayer may apply for the capital income to be taxed at their personal tax rate, should 
this be to their advantage. 
Business investors domiciled in Germany must declare interest income from debt securities as profit.  

Dividend payments from shares are partly tax exempt for business investors, excluding dividends from diversified holdings for legal 
entities domiciled in Germany. 
The profit on sale of bonds is also taxable.  
The profit on sale of shares held as business assets is partly tax exempt.  

For business investors, the capital gains tax retained by the German custodian credit institution cannot be offset.  

 Taxation in Luxembourg 
Natural persons resident in Luxembourg must declare interest income from debt securities and dividend payments from shares held 
as personal assets as income from capital assets. Interest income is subject to withholding of 20% (prélèvement libératoire) if the inter-
est is paid by a Luxembourg paying agent, otherwise it is subject to income tax on the sliding scale.  

If the interest is paid by a paying agent established in another EU or EEA member state, the taxpayer must complete tax return 931 D 
and pay an amount corresponding to the 20% withholding to the Luxembourg treasury. Alternatively, the taxpayer may declare the in-
terest income in their annual income tax return for taxation at their personal tax rate. 
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Dividend payments are subject to the half-income procedure at the progressive tax rate, depending on whether the Issuer of the shares 
is itself subject to foreign taxation comparable to Luxembourg corporation tax. 
Capital gains on disposal of debt securities and shares held as personal assets are also taxable if realised within 6 months of acquiring 
the debt security or on disposal of a significant participation (i.e. more than 10% of the capital of the issuer of the shares), also within 6 
months, but at a specific tax rate.  
Corporate investors domiciled in Luxembourg must declare interest income from debt securities and gains on disposal of debt securi-
ties. For business investors who are natural persons, the 20% withholding retained by the Luxembourg paying agent does not dis-
charge the tax liability but is allowed for in the annual tax return.  
Business investors must declare dividend payments from shares and profits from the sale of shares. Dividend payments are subject to 
the half-income procedure at the progressive tax rate, depending on whether the Issuer of the shares is itself subject to foreign taxation 
comparable to Luxembourg corporation tax. 
If the business investor is a corporation or similar structure subject to Luxembourg corporation tax, in certain cases the dividend pay-
ments and capital gains on disposal from shares may also be tax exempt under Luxembourg intercompany holding provisions. 

 Taxation in Austria 
For investors (natural persons) resident in Austria, a capital gains tax (KESt) at the current rate of 27.5% is the main tax on capital 
income (such as interest income and realised value increases from public bond offerings). As a rule, the KESt is offset against income 
tax. A direct tax deduction will be conducted if the custodian is domestic (i.e. located in Austria). Investors with foreign custodians of 
foreign capital investments must declare any income on their income tax return.  
Accrued interest paid on acquisition increases the acquisition costs and is therefore tax exempt on disposal.  

The realised value increases (capital gains) are taxable as a matter of principle at the current rate of 27.50%, regardless of the retention 
period. The investor may also make a voluntary assessment to offset losses between securities accounts held with different banks. 

The operating income of stock corporations (such as limited liability companies) domiciled in Austria are subject, as a matter of princi-
ple, to the corporation tax rate of 25%. The accrued interest and capital gains from bonds are taxable at this rate. As a matter of princi-
ple, capital gains tax at the rate of 27.5% will be retained by any custodian located in Austria on interest and gains on disposal. Any 
withholding may be offset against the stock corporation's income tax liability. The capital gains retention may be lower than 27.5% if an 
exemption declaration (Befreiungserklärung) is issued.  
Special rules apply to public utility companies and associations. 

Private trusts domiciled in Austria are subject to interim taxation on interest income from bonds at the rate of 25%. The interim tax is 
credited back in the event that donations are made to beneficiaries subject to the 27.5% capital gains tax rate. In economic terms, 
therefore, the interim tax is an up-front tax against the later taxation of beneficiary donations. By means of such interim taxation, the 
cumulative effect of income tax and capital gains tax, as occurs with stock corporations, is therefore avoided. Capital gains on the dis-
posal of bonds are also covered by the interim tax. Just as with the interim tax on interest, the interim tax applicable to capital gains for 
future donations subject to capital gains tax is credited back to the private trust. 

 Taxation in Slovakia 

Interest 

Natural persons 
a) Interest on bonds paid to a domestic Slovak taxpayer by an entity not liable for tax in Slovakia (i.e. the issuer of the bond) is subject 
to income tax in the Republic of Slovakia at the investor’s personal tax rate. Domestic Slovak taxpayers are obliged to include this inter-
est income in their personal tax declaration and pay tax on it at a rate of 19%. If the interest payment is subject to a withholding tax in 
the country in which the issuer of the bond is domiciled for tax purposes, a tax credit may be granted to the extent that a double-taxa-
tion treaty exists between the Republic of Slovakia and the other country. At the time this supplement was prepared there was no dou-
ble-taxation treaty between Liechtenstein and Slovakia. 
b) If interest on bonds is paid to a Slovak citizen not liable for taxes in Slovakia by an entity not liable for tax in Slovakia (i.e. the bond 
issuer), it is not subject to tax in the Republic of Slovakia. 

Legal entities (except of the National Bank of Slovakia and non-profit organisations) 
a) Interest on bonds paid by an entity not liable for tax in Slovakia (i.e. the bond issuer) to a legal person liable for tax in Slovakia (ex-
cept the National Bank of Slovakia and non-profit organisations) or a permanent establishment in Slovakia (insofar as the interest can 
be attributed to this permanent establishment) of an entity not fully liable for tax in Slovakia, is subject to corporation at a rate of 21% in 
the Republic of Slovakia. They are taxed via the regular corporation tax declaration of the person receiving the interest (i.e. the bond-
holder). If the interest payment is subject to a withholding tax in the country in which the issuer of the bond is domiciled for tax pur-
poses, a tax credit may be granted to the extent that a double-taxation treaty exists between the Republic of Slovakia and the other 
country. At the time this supplement was prepared there was no double-taxation treaty between Liechtenstein and Slovakia. 
b) If interest on bonds is paid to a legal person not liable for taxes in Slovakia by an entity not liable for tax in Slovakia (i.e. the bond 
issuer), it is not subject to tax in the Republic of Slovakia. 
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Capital gains 

Natural persons 
a) Capital gains realised by a Slovak taxpayer (i.e. bondholder) on the sale of bonds admitted for trading on a regulated market are 
exempt from personal income tax in Slovakia on condition that the period between purchase and sale is more than one year and the 
bonds are not business assets of the taxpayer. In this case no health insurance or social security contributions are payable on the capi-
tal gains. 

b) Capital gains realised by a Slovak taxpayer (i.e. bondholder) on the sale of (i) bonds not admitted for trading on a regulated market 
or (ii) bonds admitted for trading on a regulated market but which are resold within one year of purchase, are subject, along with other 
taxable income, to personal income tax at a rate of 19% of the tax assessment base up to a multiple of 176.8 of the current income tax 
threshold (up to EUR 35,268.06 for 2018) and a rate of 25% of the tax assessment base if this is higher than a multiple of 176.8 of the 
current income tax threshold. It is irrelevant whether the bond issuer itself is liable for tax in Slovakia or not. 
Natural persons liable for tax are obliged to include these capital gains in their personal income tax declaration and may profit from a 
tax-free allowance of up to EUR 500. The tax-free allowance is reduced accordingly if a natural person also receives income from rent 
or occasional work or agriculture. In this case, health insurance contributions are also deducted from the capital gains at a rate of 14% 
to the extent that the taxpayer is subject to health insurance in the Republic of Slovakia. There is no cap on the annual assessment 
base for health insurance contributions in 2018. 
c) Capital gains realised by a person not liable for tax in Slovakia (i.e. bondholder) on the sale of bonds admitted for trading on a regu-
lated market are not liable for personal income tax in Slovakia on condition that the period between purchase and sale is more than one 
year and the bonds are not business assets of the taxpayer subject to tax in Slovakia. No health insurance or social security contribu-
tions are payable on these capital gains. 

Legal entities (except of the National Bank of Slovakia and non-profit organisations) 
a) Capital gains realised on the sale of bonds by a legal person taxable in Slovakia (i.e. a bondholder) are subject to corporation tax at 
a rate of 21% regardless of whether the bond issuer is liable for tax in Slovakia or not. Taxation takes place via the regular corporation 
tax declaration. 

 Taxation in the Czech Republic 

Interest 
Interest (including income due to differences between the nominal value of the Bonds payable at the Redemption Date and a lower 
issue price, hereinafter “Interest”) paid to an individual is subject to withholding tax (i.e. corresponding amounts are deducted by the 
Issuer in the course of interest payments). Under Czech tax law, the withholding tax is 15%. However, if the recipient of interest pay-
ments is an individual who is not a tax resident of the Czech Republic, does not hold the bonds through a permanent establishment in 
the Czech Republic and is not subject to taxation in another EU or EEA state or in a third country with which the Czech Republic has 
concluded a valid and effective international treaty on the avoidance of double taxation or an international treaty on the exchange of 
information in income tax matters, including multilateral treaties; then the rate of withholding tax is 35%. In the case of persons taxable 
in the Czech Republic, the aforementioned tax deduction constitutes the final taxation of the interest. In the case of persons who are not 
taxable in the Czech Republic but resident in another EU or EEA state and who declare the interest payments in their tax returns, the 
withholding tax withheld is to be considered an advance payment on their tax obligations. Natural persons who conduct business in the 
Czech Republic through a permanent establishment there are generally obliged to file tax returns in the Czech Republic. 
Interest paid to a legal entity taxable in the Czech Republic or to a legal entity that is not a resident of the Czech Republic but holds 
bonds through a permanent establishment in the Czech Republic is not subject to withholding tax. In this case, the interest income is 
considered part of the general tax base for corporate income tax of 19%. Interest paid to a legal entity that is not taxable in the Czech 
Republic and does not hold the bonds through a permanent establishment in the Czech Republic is subject to withholding tax (i.e. the 
Issuer makes corresponding deductions in the course of the interest payment). The withholding tax rate in this case is 15% according to 
Czech tax law. However, if the recipient of the interest payments is a legal entity that is not a tax resident of the Czech Republic, does 
not hold the Securities through a permanent establishment in the Czech Republic and is not subject to taxation in any other EU or EEA 
state or in any third country with which the Czech Republic has concluded a valid and effective international treaty on the avoidance of 
double taxation or an international treaty on the exchange of information in income tax matters, including multilateral treaties; then the 
withholding tax is 35 %. In the case of legal entities that are not taxable in the Czech Republic but are resident in another EU or EEA 
state and which declare the interest payments in their tax returns, the withholding tax withheld is to be considered an advance payment 
on their tax obligations. If interest is paid to a Czech permanent establishment of a company that is not taxable in the Czech Republic or 
in an EU or EEA state, the Issuer is obliged to retain 10% of the interest payments as security for any taxes due. The relevant tax au-
thority may, but is not obliged to, consider the tax obligations of the tax debtor to have been fulfilled as a result of the abovementioned 
10 % deduction. Legal entities that conduct business in the Czech Republic through a permanent establishment are generally obliged to 
file tax returns in the Czech Republic; in this case, a withholding tax deduction is offset against other tax obligations. 
If there is a double taxation agreement between the Czech Republic and the state in which the recipient of interest payments has its tax 
domicile or residence for tax purposes, the taxation of interest may be cancelled or the tax rate reduced in accordance with the provi-
sions of Czech tax law, provided that the interest payment is not attributable to a permanent establishment in the Czech Republic. In 
order to benefit from tax advantages based on a double taxation agreement, the person concerned may have to provide evidence that a 
double taxation agreement applies to him, in particular by submitting a confirmation from the foreign tax authority that the person con-
cerned is taxable in that state and that the recipient of interest payments is the beneficial owner of such income. The interest payer or 
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paying agent may require the beneficiary to provide the information necessary to comply with reporting obligations under the EU Sav-
ings Directive. Certain categories of taxpayers (e.g. guarantee funds of investment firms) are entitled to request exemptions from the 
taxation of savings income. The granting of such an exemption is conditional on the payee's proof (which must be provided prior to the 
date of the interest payment) that the payee has a legal right to it.  

Capital gains / capital losses 
Gains realised by a natural person through the sale of the bonds are not subject to withholding tax if that natural person is a tax resident 
of the Czech Republic or holds the bonds through a permanent establishment in the Czech Republic or if the natural person receives 
the purchase price from a purchaser who is a tax resident of the Czech Republic or acquires the bonds through a Czech permanent 
establishment, but are part of the general assessment basis for personal income tax of 15%. If such income is earned in the course of 
business activities of the holder of the Notes, provided that the holder is a natural person, a solidarity surcharge of 7% is also payable 
(calculated on the basis of the positive difference between (i) the sum of income included in the partial assessment base of dependent 
income and the partial assessment base of business or other independent activities in the current tax year and (ii) an amount equal to 
48 times the average income (CZK 1,296,288 in 2016). Losses from the sale of bonds issued by non-business entities are generally not 
tax deductible, but may exceptionally be offset against and up to the amount of taxable realised gains from the sale of other securities 
in the same tax period. 
Gains realised by a natural person from the sale of bonds that are not part of business assets are generally exempt from taxation, pro-
vided that the total income from the sale of securities and income from the liquidation of fund units does not exceed CZK 100,000 in a 
tax year. Gains realised by a natural person from the sale of bonds that are not part of business assets are also generally exempt from 
taxation if such bonds are not sold within 3 years of their acquisition or, in the case of bonds that are part of business assets, within 3 
years of the termination of business activity that generates income from employment. 
Gains realised by a legal entity through the sale of bonds if the entity has its tax domicile in the Czech Republic or holds the bonds 
through a permanent establishment in the Czech Republic or if it receives the purchase price from a purchaser who is taxable in the 
Czech Republic or acquires the bonds through a Czech permanent establishment, form part of the general corporate income tax base 
of 19%. Losses realised on the sale of bonds are tax deductible. 

Gains realised by a natural person or legal entity on the sale of bonds, if the individual or legal entity does not have its tax residence in 
the Czech Republic, does not hold the bonds through a permanent establishment in the Czech Republic and does not receive the pur-
chase price from a purchaser who is taxable in the Czech Republic or acquires the bonds through a Czech permanent establishment, 
are not taxable in the Czech Republic. 

In the event of a sale of bonds by a natural person or legal entity that is not taxable in the Czech Republic or in any EU or EEA state to 
a buyer that is taxable in the Czech Republic or has a permanent establishment in the Czech Republic, the buyer is obliged to retain 
1% of the purchase price as security for the tax obligations of the seller. The relevant tax authority may, but need not, consider the 
seller's tax obligations to have been fulfilled as a result of the aforementioned retention from the purchase price. 
A seller who earns income from the sale of bonds that are taxable in the Czech Republic is generally required to file a tax return in the 
Czech Republic; tax deductions are offset against the seller's tax obligations. 

The tax liability of gains from the sale of bonds in the Czech Republic may be eliminated by double taxation agreements between the 
Czech Republic and the country of the seller's registered office or residence (this also applies to the obligation to retain a security for 
tax liabilities); a condition for this is that the bonds are not regularly held through a permanent establishment in the Czech Republic. In 
order to benefit from tax advantages on the basis of a double taxation agreement, the person concerned may have to provide evidence 
that a double taxation agreement applies to the person, in particular by submitting a confirmation from the foreign tax authority that the 
person concerned is taxable in that state and that the recipient of interest payments is the beneficial owner on such income. 

 Terms and Conditions of the Offering 

 Conditions, Offering Statistics, Anticipated Timetable and Necessary steps for Applications 
 Terms of the Offering 

The investor shall submit to the paying agent, represented in a fiduciary capacity by its custodian bank, a binding offer for the acquisi-
tion of bonds in writing, via e-mail or by phone, stating the desired nominal amount. The acquisition of bonds takes place via ac-
ceptance of the offer by the Issuer, represented by the paying agent. The Issuer reserves the right to refuse any subscription offer.  
Subscription orders may be placed during normal Liechtenstein bank opening hours, namely between 08:00 am and 06:00 pm CET and 
via the paying agent's following subscription channels: 
E-mail: trading@bankfrick.li 
Fax: 00423 388 21 15 
Phone: 00423 388 21 25 
Issuance takes place via public offering. 

If the order is placed on a Liechtenstein banking day by 05:00 pm CET, the transaction will be recorded on the same day (transaction 
date) and delivered two Liechtenstein banking days later (value date). Order confirmation will be issued by the paying agent by fax to 
the instructing bank. 

Delivery of the bonds shall be made to the purchaser of the security by SIX SIS AG, Baslerstrasse 100, CH-4600 Olten, against pay-
ment of the nominal value plus any accrued interest to the SIX SAS AG (central depositary) account held with Bankhaus Frick & Co. 
AG, Landstrasse 14, FL-9496 Balzers.  
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The transaction shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment basis. In this regard, the custodian bank acts in a fiduciary capacity 
as investor (on behalf of the end investor) in the debt securities and conducts the transaction via the aforementioned procedure directly 
with the paying agent. This ensures that the payment and transfer of the debt securities occur simultaneously and only after both par-
ties have issued the same instructions. 
The transaction may be settled via the following clearing houses: 

Clearing house SSI of the paying agent (Bank Frick AG) 

SIX SIS AG LI100067 

Clearstream Luxembourg 83320 

Clearstream Frankfurt 83320 

Euroclear Bank 83320 

The debt securities will be represented for the full term of the bond in a global bearer certificate (‘global certificate’) deposited with SIX 
SIS AG, Baslerstrasse 100, CH-4600 Olten. Physical delivery of debt securities or interest coupons may not be demanded. Bondhold-
ers hold joint ownership shares in the global certificate which can be transferred in accordance with the rules and provisions specified 
by SIX SIS AG. The global certificate shall be signed in person by at least one authorised representative of the Issuer. 

 Total Issuance Amount 
The total amount of the issuance is EUR 100,000,000.  

 Offer Period 
The ThomasLL. 5.075/31 EUR bond issuance is conducted on the basis of a securities prospectus approved by FMA Liechtenstein on 
20 May 2021 on a rolling basis from 20 May 2021. The issuance shall end once it has been fully placed or the bond is called early by 
the Issuer, and at the latest one year after the approval date of the security prospectus.  

 Subscription Reductions 
The Issuer reserves the right to terminate the subscription period early if the bond is fully placed. The Issuer similarly reserves the right 
to terminate the offer early should the planned issue volume not be achieved during the subscription period and should the Issuer de-
cide, for other reasons and at its sole discretion, that no further placements are desirable or expedient.  

In the event of oversubscription, subscriptions will be actioned in order of receipt. In such a case, the Issuer shall be entitled to reduce 
subscriptions and to return subscription amounts already received by crediting the payer's account. 

 Minimum and Maximum Subscription Amounts 
The bonds are issued in units with a nominal value of EUR 1,000 each and the minimum investment amount per investor is 
EUR 10,000. Any higher subscription amount must be divisible by 1,000. There is no maximum subscription amount per investor. 

 Subscription to and Delivery of Securities 
Subscriptions shall take place via the paying agent. 
The debt securities shall be delivered to the subscriber via SIX SIS AG, Baslerstrasse 100, CH-4600 Olten, against payment of the 
nominal amount plus any accrued interest. 

 Disclosure 
The results of the offer will be disclosed by way of the preparation and publication of the Issuer's annual financial statements.  

The annual financial statements can be requested free of charge and in writing by any investor at the Issuer's registered office, accom-
panied by an e-mail address for the forwarding of said documents. The annual financial statements can also be seen and requested at 
the trade registry of the Principality of Liechtenstein, quoting the registration number FL-0002-543.640-8. 

 Distribution and Allotment of Securities 
 Investor Categories 

The Issuer intends to make this offer mainly to investors in Switzerland, Liechtenstein, Belgium, France, Germany, Luxembourg, Aus-
tria, Slovakia and Czech Republic and to investors in any EEA state in which notification has taken place.  
Regarding non-EEA countries, investors may subscribe to this bond issuance on the basis of this prospectus only to the extent that it is 
legally possible and permissible under local statutory and regulatory provisions. 

 Notification Procedure 
Notification of the allotment of securities to investors shall take place by way of account bookings via SIX SIS AG.  

 Price 
The issue price at which the bond is offered equates to 100% of the nominal value plus any accrued interest.  

Debt securities will be offered by the Issuer from the first day after publication of the securities prospectus until it has been placed in full 
or the Issuer has terminated the subscription period early. 

The Issuer will not charge subscribers for any costs or fees. 
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 Placement and Issue 
Placement of the issuance shall take place via the Issuer itself or by banks, asset managers and other financial services providers en-
gaged by the Issuer (collectively “financial intermediaries“). 

The Issuer also approves the use of the prospectus for the subsequent resale or placement of the securities with prudentially approved 
and supervised financial intermediaries operating in accordance with the legal provisions applicable in the country of domicile or country 
of operation. Approval is notably given for marketing in Switzerland, Liechtenstein and in those EEA states where notification has been 
issued. Regarding non-EEA countries, approval for marketing on the basis of this prospectus is only provided to the extent that it is 
legally possible and permissible under local statutory and regulatory provisions. 
Approval will also only be given for the duration of the offer period, namely up to a maximum of 1 year after the prospectus approval 
date. 
Furthermore, this prospectus should only be transmitted to potential investors with all amendments and supplements. Financial inter-
mediaries must notify investors of all the offer conditions when presenting the offer. 

Any financial intermediary using this prospectus must state on its website that it is using this prospectus with the approval of 
the Issuer and in accordance with the conditions associated with said approval. 
Even in the event of any resale or definitive placement of securities through financial intermediaries which have received approval to 
use the prospectus, the Issuer declares that it accepts liability for the contents of the prospectus. 

 Paying Agent 
The only paying agent of the Issuer is Bank Frick & Co. AG, Landstrasse 14, FL-9496 Balzers. The exclusive role of the paying agent is 
the receipt and forwarding of payments relating to this bond. However, the paying agent accepts no liability should payments not be 
made on time or in the full amount. 

 Admission to Trading and Trading Rules 

Admission to Trading 
The debt securities to be issued under this prospectus are not admitted to trading on a regulated or unregulated market or on a stock 
exchange in the European Economic Area. However, the bonds may be freely transferred in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of SIX SIS AG. 
The Issuer reserves the right to apply for admission of the bond to trading on a regulated or unregulated market. 
Consideration is also being given to shares in the Issuer being admitted to trading on a stock exchange in the European Economic Area 
(Frankfurt stock exchange) or in Switzerland (SIX Swiss Exchange), in which case the Issuer is entitled, under the provisions of this 
prospectus, to convert the bonds issued hereunder into shares in the Issuer, whereby said shares shall then be admitted to trading. 
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 Final Provisions 

 Publication 
This prospectus and all amendments hereto can be obtained at no charge from the Issuer at ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure 
(Liechtenstein) AG, Landstrasse 14, 9496 Balzers, Liechtenstein, or via e-mail at support@thomas-lloyd.com. The documents will be 
forwarded via e-mail.  
The prospectus and all amendments are also available for download at https://www.thomas-lloyd.com/en/investors/ (select “Country of 
origin” followed by “Investor status“).  
Investor notifications take place via submission to the investor's custodian bank via SIX SIS AG and/or by making such investor notifica-
tions available for download on the aforementioned website. 

 Corrections, Modifications and Amendments 
The Issuer shall be entitled to correct or supplement the following contained herein:  

i. Obvious typing or calculation errors; or 
ii. Other obvious mistakes; or 
iii. Editorial modifications such as changes to wording or order; or 
iv. Contradictory or incomplete provisions. 

Any such modifications may be made without consent from the holder of the debt securities, albeit those falling under iv. above shall 
only be permissible if they are reasonable for the bondholder in light of the Issuer's interests, i.e. which do not or only insignificantly 
affect the financial situation of the bondholder. 

Significant new circumstances or inaccuracies relating to the information contained in the prospectus that are liable to affect the assess-
ment of the bond and which occur or are identified in the period between approval of the prospectuses and the definitive close of the 
public offering or, if later, on admission to trading, will be set out and published in amendments to this prospectus. As with the prospec-
tus itself, all amendments must be approved by the Financial Market Authority (FMA) of Liechtenstein. 

 Applicable Law – Competent Court 
The form and contents of the bonds and the rights and obligations of the Issuer and paying agent shall be exclusively governed by the 
law of the Principality of Liechtenstein. Any dispute arising out of or in relation to this bond or the terms of issuance shall be submitted 
to the competent courts of Zurich. 

 Severability 
Should any provision of these terms of issuance be or become invalid or unenforceable, whether in part or in whole, then the remaining 
provisions shall retain their full force. Any invalid or unenforceable provision shall be replaced by a valid and enforceable provision 
which resembles as closely as possible the original intention and purpose of these issuance conditions in terms of their economic ef-
fects. 

Balzers, 20 May 2021 
 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG 

 
 
The administrative board: 

 
 
 

 
  
Matthias Klein Clemens Laternser 
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Appendix 1 
Articles of association of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG dated 21 March 2017 
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ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) 
AG 

Balzers 
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I. Company name, place of business, duration and purpose

Art.  1 

Company name

Under the company name 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG

 a joint stock corporation has been established in accordance with Art. 261 to 367 

of Person and Company Law [PGR] dated 20 January 1926, LGBl. No. 4 of 

19 February 1926. 

Art.  2 

Place of business and duration 

The company’s place of business is Balzers. Branch offices can be set up in  

Liechtenstein and abroad by resolution of the general meeting and the place of business 

can be moved abroad without dissolving the company.

All legal relations established by the foundation and continued existence of the company 

are subject to the law of the company’s place of business. The company’s ordinary 

place of jurisdiction is the competent court for its place of business. 

The company is established for an indefinite period. 

Art.  3 

Purpose

The commercial purpose of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG is 

to provide financing, especially to strengthen the expansion and finance the growth 

strategy of the ThomasLloyd Group, to hold and manage its own assets (such as equity 

investments, intangible rights and real estate) and to carry out all transactions in 

connection with the aforementioned activities.  

II. Capital

Art.  4 

The company’s share capital is CHF 50,000 (fifty thousand Swiss francs), divided into 

50 registered shares of CHF 1,000 each. It has been paid in fully and in cash. 
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The shares can be pooled in certificates for several shares. They are written or printed 

according to the instructions of the Board of Directors. Shares must be signed by two 

members of the Board of Directors. If the Board of Directors only has one member at the 

time of signing, this single signature is sufficient.

The company keeps a share register for the registered shares, in which the names and 

addresses of the holders and beneficiaries are entered.

The company must certify the entry on the share certificate.

Whoever is entered in the share register and has signed the articles of association is 

deemed to be a shareholder or beneficiary in relation to the company. Payments by the 

company are made solely to the individuals registered in the share register.

If a shareholder changes address, the company must be notified. 

Until this has occurred, legal service of all written communications is performed by 

sending them to the address entered in the share register.

If a shareholder wishes to sell shares the other shareholders have a pre-emption right, 

which must be exercised within 30 days of receiving a written offer. The price is 

determined by the arithmetic value.

Art.  5 

If share capital is increased, each shareholder is entitled to that portion of the new 

shares that corresponds to their previous shareholding; only if the new shares are not 

acquired by the existing shareholders within thirty days of issuance may they be offered 

to non-shareholders. 

III. &RUSRUDWH bodies

Art.  6 

The company’s corporate bodies are:

- the general meeting,
- the board of directors,
- the auditors.
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IV. The general meeting

Art.  7 

Competences 

7Ke�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�LV�WKe�FoPSaQ\¶V�KLgKeVW�GeFLVLoQ�PaNLQg�EoG\��,W�LV�VoOeO\�

FoPSeWeQW�foU�WKe�foOOoZLQg�GeFLVLoQV��aPoQg�oWKeUV��$UW������P*5��


 acceptance�of�WKe�LQFoPe�VWaWePeQW��WKe�EaOaQFe�VKeeW�aQG�WKe�UeSoUW�E\�WKe�EoaUG�

of�GLUeFWoUV�oQ�WKe�SaVW�fLQaQFLaO�\eaU��foOOoZLQg�a�ZULWWeQ�UeSoUW�E\�WKe�aXGLWoUV�


 GLVFKaUgLQg�WKe�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�aQG�WKe�aXGLWoUV�of�OLaELOLW\�


 SaVVLQg�a�UeVoOXWLoQ�oQ�WKe�XVe�of�QeW�SUofLW��SaUWLFXOaUO\�VeWWLQg�WKe�GLYLGeQG�aQG�WKe�

SUoSoUWLoQ�of�QeW�SUofLW�foU�WKe�aGPLQLVWUaWLoQ�


 aSSoLQWLQg�aQG�GLVPLVVLQg�WKe�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�aQG�GefLQLQg�VLgQLQg�ULgKWV�foU�WKe�

EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�


 eOeFWLQg�WKe�aXGLWoUV�


 SaVVLQg�a�UeVoOXWLoQ�oQ�aPeQGLQg�WKe�aUWLFOeV�of�aVVoFLaWLoQ��SaUWLFXOaUO\�FKaQgLQg�

VKaUe�FaSLWaO��FoQYeUWLQg�EeaUeU�VKaUeV�LQWo�UegLVWeUeG�VKaUeV�aQG�YLFe�YeUVa��

GLVVoOYLQg�oU�PeUgLQg�WKe�FoPSaQ\�oU�VeWWLQg�XS�EUaQFK�offLFeV�


 SaVVLQg�a�UeVoOXWLoQ�oQ�UeTXeVWV�E\�WKe�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV��WKe�aXGLWoUV�aQG�WKe�

VKaUeKoOGeUV��aOVo�Wo�FoQGXFW�aOO�WUaQVaFWLoQV�UeVeUYeG�Wo�LW�E\�OaZ�oU�WKe�aUWLFOeV�of�

aVVoFLaWLoQ�

Art. 8

General meeting 

7Ke�oUGLQaU\�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�LV�FoQYeQeG�ZLWKLQ�VL[�PoQWKV�of�WKe�eQG�of�a�fLQaQFLaO�

\eaU��([WUaoUGLQaU\�geQeUaO�PeeWLQgV�FaQ�Ee�FoQYeQeG�aW�aQ\�WLPe�aV�SUoYLGeG�foU�LQ�WKe�

aUWLFOeV�of�aVVoFLaWLoQ�

(aFK�VKaUe�FoQfeUV�oQe�YoWLQg�ULgKW�aW�WKe�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg��6KaUeKoOGeUV�Pa\�

UeSUeVeQW�WKeLU�VKaUeV�WKePVeOYeV�oU�aSSoLQW�a�SUo[\��ZKo�QeeG�QoW�Ee�a�VKaUeKoOGeU��Wo�

Go�Vo� 



 

57 

Page 5 of 9 

Art.  9 

Convening 

7Ke�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�LV�FoQYeQeG�E\�WKe�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�LQ�%aO]eUV�oU�aQoWKeU�SOaFe�LQ�

/LeFKWeQVWeLQ�oU�aEUoaG�

7Ke�LQYLWaWLoQ��LQFOXGLQg�WKe�ageQGa��PXVW�Ee�VeQW�aW�OeaVW����Ga\V�EefoUe�WKe�Ga\�of�WKe�

PeeWLQg�

7Ke�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�LV�FoQYeQeG�E\�VLPSOe�OeWWeU��fa[�oU�ePaLO�Lf�WKe�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�

NQoZV�WKe�VKaUeKoOGeUV��oWKeUZLVe�E\�SXEOLFaWLoQ�LQ�WKe�FoPSaQ\¶V�FKoVeQ�PeGLa�

,f�WKe�eQWLUe�VKaUe�FaSLWaO�LV�UeSUeVeQWeG�a�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�FaQ�Ee�FoQYeQeG�ZLWKoXW�

SULoU�QoWLFe��aV�OoQg�aV�Qo�oEMeFWLoQV�aUe�PaGe��XQLYeUVaO�PeeWLQg��

 

Art.  10 

Organisation 

7Ke�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�LV�FKaLUeG�E\�WKe�SUeVLGeQW�of�WKe�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�oU�a�SUeVLGeQW�

eOeFWeG�E\�WKe�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�

7Ke�SUeVLGeQW�QoPLQaWeV�WKe�PLQXWeV�VeFUeWaU\�aQG�WKe�YoWLQg�VeFUeWaU\�aQG�VLgQV�WKe�

PLQXWeV�of�WKe�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�WaNeQ�aQG�VLgQeG�E\�WKe�PLQXWeV�VeFUeWaU\�

Art.  11 

Resolutions and voting rights 

8QOeVV�oWKeU�PaQGaWoU\�VWaWXWoU\�SUoYLVLoQV�aSSO\��WKe�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�aGoSWV�LWV�

UeVoOXWLoQV�aQG�FaUULeV�oXW�eOeFWLoQV�E\�aEVoOXWe�PaMoULW\�of�YoWeV�UeSUeVeQWeG��UegaUGOeVV�

of�WKe�QXPEeU�of�VKaUeV�UeSUeVeQWeG��VXEMeFW�Wo�$UW������,Q�WKe�eYeQW�of�a�WLe�WKe�SUeVLGeQW�

KaV�WKe�FaVWLQg�YoWe�

7Ke�YoWLQg�PeWKoG�LV�GeWeUPLQeG�E\�WKe�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�

(aFK�VKaUe�FoQfeUV�oQe�YoWLQg�ULgKW�

 

Art.  12 

$�PaMoULW\�of������WZo�WKLUGV��of�VKaUeV�UeSUeVeQWeG��ZKeUeE\�KaOf�WKe�VKaUe�FaSLWaO�PXVW�

Ee�UeSUeVeQWeG��LV�UeTXLUeG�foU�UeVoOXWLoQV�oQ�aPeQGLQg�VKaUe�FaSLWaO��e[SaQGLQg�oU�

UeGXFLQg�WKe�aUea�of�EXVLQeVV��GLVVoOYLQg�oU�PeUgLQg�WKe�FoPSaQ\�ZLWK�aQoWKeU�eQWLW\��,f�

WKe�VeFoQG�FoQGLWLoQ�LV�QoW�PeW�WKe�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�Pa\�FoQYeQe�a�QeZ�geQeUaO�

PeeWLQg��ZKLFK�LV�TXoUaWe�UegaUGOeVV�of�WKe�QXPEeU�of�VKaUeV�UeSUeVeQWeG��
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$ PaMoULW\ of ��� �WZo WKLUGV� of VKaUeV UeSUeVeQWeG LV aOVo UeTXLUeG LQ WKe VeFoQG geQeUaO 

PeeWLQg�  

Art.  13 

'LVSXWeV aEoXW WKe FoPSeWeQFeV of WKe LQGLYLGXaO corporate EoGLeV aUe GeFLGeG E\ WKe 

geQeUaO PeeWLQg� 

V. Board of directors

Art.  14 

Composition and period of office 

7Ke EoaUG of GLUeFWoUV FoQVLVWV of oQe oU PoUe PePEeUV eOeFWeG foU aQ LQGefLQLWe SeULoG 

E\ WKe geQeUaO PeeWLQg� 7Ke EoaUG of GLUeFWoUV LV aSSoLQWeG foU WKe fLUVW WLPe LQ WKe 

FoQVWLWXWLYe geQeUaO PeeWLQg�

7Ke EoaUG of GLUeFWoUV Pa\ eOeFW QeZ PePEeUV fUoP WLPe Wo WLPe� 7Ke QeZO\ eOeFWeG 

PePEeUV of WKe EoaUG of GLUeFWoUV PXVW Ee aSSUoYeG aW WKe Qe[W geQeUaO PeeWLQg�

0ePEeUV of WKe EoaUG of GLUeFWoUV Pa\ Ee GLVPLVVeG aW aQ\ WLPe E\ WKe geQeUaO PeeWLQg 

ZLWKoXW SUoYLGLQg a UeaVoQ� 7Ke\ KaYe WKe ULgKW Wo UeVLgQ WKeLU offLFe ZLWKoXW QoWLFe aW aQ\ 

WLPe�

Art.  15 

Competences and quorum 

7Ke EoaUG of GLUeFWoUV UeSUeVeQWV WKe FoPSaQ\ e[WeUQaOO\� ,W LV FoPSeWeQW foU aOO PaWWeUV 

QoW UeVeUYeG Wo WKe geQeUaO PeeWLQg� eVSeFLaOO\� 


 FoPSaQ\ PaQagePeQW�


 eOeFWLQg GLUeFWoUV aQG aXWKoULVeG VLgQaWoULeV aQG GeWeUPLQLQg WKe UXOeV foU�

VLgQaWoULeV�


 LPSOePeQWLQg WKe UegXOaWLoQV oU LQVWUXFWLoQV aGoSWeG E\ WKe geQeUaO PeeWLQg� 

aQG Lf�QeFeVVaU\ LVVXLQg LPSOePeQWaWLoQ UXOeV�


 aFFoXQWLQg�


 WKe oEOLgaWLoQ Wo SUeSaUe WUaQVaFWLoQV foU WKe geQeUaO PeeWLQg aQG Wo SUeVeQW WKe�

aQQXaO fLQaQFLaO VWaWePeQWV Wo WKe geQeUaO PeeWLQg�
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7Ke�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�VLgQV�GoFXPeQWV�foU�WKe�FoPSaQ\�ZLWK�OegaOO\�ELQGLQg�effeFW��,f�WKe�

EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�FoQVLVWV�of�PoUe�WKaQ�oQe�PePEeU��WZo�PePEeUV�of�WKe�EoaUG�of�

GLUeFWoUV�VLgQ�MoLQWO\�foU�WKe�FoPSaQ\�ZLWK�OegaOO\�ELQGLQg�effeFW�

$W�OeaVW�oQe�PePEeU�of�WKe�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�PXVW�PeeW�WKe�UeTXLUePeQWV�of�$UW�����a�

P*5��

$�PaMoULW\�of�PePEeUV�of�WKe�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�PXVW�Ee�SUeVeQW�oU�UeSUeVeQWeG�foU�a�

TXoUXP��,W�SaVVeV�UeVoOXWLoQV�E\�VLPSOe�PaMoULW\�of�WKe�PePEeUV�SUeVeQW��,Q�WKe�eYeQW�of�

a�WLe�WKe�SUeVLGeQW¶V�YoWe�FoXQWV�WZLFe��$Q\�aEVeQW�PePEeU�Pa\�Ee�UeSUeVeQWeG�E\�

aQoWKeU�PePEeU�

5eVoOXWLoQV�Pa\�aOVo�Ee�SaVVeG�E\�FLUFXOaWLoQ�of�GoFXPeQWV��,Q�WKLV�FaVe�WKe�aEVoOXWe�

PaMoULW\�of�aOO�PePEeUV�LV�UeTXLUeG��KoZeYeU�

Art.  16 

7Ke�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�Pa\�eOeFW�a�SUeVLGeQW�aQG�oWKeU�offLFeUV�fUoP�aPoQg�LWV�PePEeUV�

7Ke�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�LV�FoQYeQeG�aW�WKe�LQYLWaWLoQ�of�LWV�SUeVLGeQW�oU�aW�WKe�UeTXeVW�of�

aQoWKeU�PePEeU�aW�WKe�FoPSaQ\¶V�SOaFe�of�EXVLQeVV�oU�eOVeZKeUe��aV�fUeTXeQWO\�aV�

EXVLQeVV�UeTXLUeV�

Art.  17 

7Ke�EoaUG�of�GLUeFWoUV�Pa\�GeOegaWe�LQGLYLGXaO�PaQagePeQW�UeVSoQVLELOLWLeV�oU�WKe�eQWLUe�

PaQagePeQW�of�WKe�FoPSaQ\�Wo�oQe�of�LWV�PePEeUV�oU�a�WKLUG�SaUW\��,W�Pa\�QoPLQaWe�

GLUeFWoUV�aQG�aXWKoULVeG�VLgQaWoULeV�aQG�gUaQW�SoZeUV�of�aWWoUQe\�of�aQ\�NLQG�Wo�FaUU\�oXW�

aQG�fXUWKeU�WKe�SXUSoVe�of�WKe�FoPSaQ\�  

VI. Auditors

Art.  18 

7Ke�geQeUaO�PeeWLQg�LV�Wo�eOeFW�aXGLWoUV�eYeU\�\eaU��ZKo�PXVW�FoQVLVW�of�oQe�oU�PoUe�

SXEOLF�aXGLWoUV�oU�aQ�aXGLWLQg�fLUP�

7Ke�aXGLWoUV�PXVW�e[aPLQe�ZKeWKeU�WKe�EaOaQFe�VKeeW�aQG�WKe�LQFoPe�VWaWePeQW�aUe�

FoQVLVWeQW�ZLWK�WKe�aFFoXQWV��ZKeWKeU�WKe�aFFoXQWV�aUe�NeSW�SUoSeUO\�aQG�ZKeWKeU�WKe�

SUeVeQWaWLoQ�of�QeW�aVVeWV�aQG�eaUQLQgV�FoPSO\�ZLWK�VWaWXWoU\�PeaVXUePeQW�SULQFLSOeV�

aQG�WKe�SUoYLVLoQV�of�WKe�aUWLFOeV�of�aVVoFLaWLoQ�
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VII. Financial statements and use of profits

Art.  19 

The financial year ends on 31 December of each year, but not before 31 December 2017. If 

the first financial year does not last for more than 6 months, the first financial year may also 

not last for longer than 18 months and so be extended to the end of the following year.

The balance sheet and income statement are to be prepared in accordance with statutory 

rules. No later than twenty days before the ordinary general meeting the annual report 

plus auditors’ report is to be made easily available for inspection by the shareholders at 

the company’s place of business. The same applies to the consolidated annual report 

and the consolidated auditors’ report.

Assets may be valued at less than the amount provided for by law at any time in the 

interests of the company as defined in Art. 204 PGR.

The net profit shown in the annual income statement is at the disposal of the general 

meeting, which may use it at its discretion subject to Art. 309 PGR, also for write-downs 

or reserves that the general meeting determines to be appropriate to ensure the 

company’s lasting existence or to smooth the distribution of dividends.

All dividends not collected within three years of their expiry date are forfeit for the benefit 

of the company’s reserve fund.

VIII. Dissolution and liquidation

Art.  20 

The general meeting can pass a resolution on the dissolution and liquidation of the 

company at any time in accordance with statutory provisions and the articles of 

association. The liquidation is carried out by the board of directors unless the general 

meeting appoints another person to do so. 

IX. Announcements

Art.  21 

Company announcements are made in the Liechtensteiner Vaterland. 
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Appendix 2 
Extract from the commercial register for ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG dated 23 April 2021 
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Appendix 3 
Annual financial statements of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG as at and for the year ended and 31 Decem-
ber 2019 and 2018, including the report of the auditor. 
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REPORT OF THE STATUTORY AUDITOR 
ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE GENERAL MEETING OF

THOMASLLOYD CLEANTECH INFRASTRUCTURE (LIECHTENSTEIN) AG, BALZERS

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements (balance sheet, income statement and 
notes) and the annual report of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG, Balzers for 
the year ended 31 December 2019.

These financial statements and annual report are the responsibility of the board of directors. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We confirm 
that we meet the legal requirements concerning professional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards promulgated by the profession of the 
Principality of Liechtenstein (audit principles GzA), which require that an audit be planned and 
performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and annual report
are free from material misstatement. We have examined on a test basis evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principles 
used, significant estimates made and the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position, the results of 
operations and the cash flows in accordance with the law of Liechtenstein. Furthermore, the financial 
statements and the annual report comply with the law of Liechtenstein and the company’s articles of 
incorporation.

The annual report is in accordance with the financial statements.

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Without qualifying our examination conclusion further, we refer to the note "Further information" in the 
notes to the financial statements, in which is stated that an essential uncertainty of the impact of 
COVID-19 on company's business operations exists.

We refer to the fact that the financial statements have not been submitted to the shareholders meeting 
within six months after closing of the financial year.

Vaduz, 19 January 2021

C O N F I D A
Auditing Company Limited

Stefan Bürzle Tamara Hunger-Paulmichl
Chartered Accountant
Auditor in Charge

Qualified Trustee Expert

Enclosures:

� Financial statements (balance sheet, income statement and notes)
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ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG Balance Sheet
LI - 9496 Balzers as at December 31, 2019

Assets 2019/CHF  2018/CHF
A. Non-current assets

I. Intangible assets 0.00 0.00
II. Tangible assets 0.00 0.00
III. Financial assets 60'794'250.85 29'556'657.46

Total Non-current assets 60'794'250.85 29'556'657.46

B. Current assets
I. Inventories 0.00 0.00
II. Receivables 3'366'040.13 677'520.23

0.00 0.00

III. Securities 0.00 0.00
IV. 1'134'401.10 2'020'589.16

Total current assets 4'500'441.23 2'698'109.39

C. Prepayments and accrued income 5'204'970.79 1'060'274.82

Total assets 70'499'662.87 33'315'041.67

Liabilities
A. Shareholder's equity

I. Share capital 50'000.00 50'000.00
II. Capital reserves 0.00 0.00
III. Earning reserves 0.00 0.00
IV. Retained earnings 0.00 0.00
V. Loss for the period 0.00 0.00

Total Shareholder's equity 50'000.00 50'000.00

B. Provisions 0.00 0.00

C. Payables 70'373'177.28 33'222'043.56

D. Accrued expenses and deferred income 76'485.59 42'998.11

Total liabilities 70'499'662.87 33'315'041.67

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG

Balzers, 19 January 2021 FL-0002.543.640-8

./. Del credere

Cash in banks, post office account credit balances, 
cheques and cash-in-hand

of which with a residual maturity of up to 1 year CHF 3'366'040.13; 
previous year CHF 677'520.23
of which with a residual maturity of over 1 year CHF 0.00; 
previous year CHF 0.00

of which with a residual maturity of up to 1 year CHF 8'640.88; 
previous year CHF 0.00
of which with a residual maturity of over 1 year CHF 70'364'536.40; 
previous year CHF 33'222'043.56

Seite 1
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ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG Income Statement
LI - 9496 Balzers January 1 to December 31, 2019

2019/CHF 2018/CHF
334'385.61 870'506.06

Personnel expenses
a) Wages and salaries 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

Depreciation and value adjustments
a) on intangible assets and tangible assets 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

Other operating expenses -220'673.50 -200'392.57
Income from investments 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

Other interest and similar income 1'942'283.91 4'207.08

0.00 0.00

Interest and similar expenses -2'054'196.02 -672'520.57

Taxes on annual result -1'800.00 -1'800.00

Annual result after taxes 0.00 0.00

Other taxes if not included in 1 to 15 0.00 0.00

Loss for the period 0.00 0.00

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG

Balzers, 19 January 2021

6.
1.-5. Gross profit

10. Income from other securities and receivables classified 
as financial assets

b) Social security, pension and other benefit costs
thereof for pensions CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00 

7.

b) on current assets, insofar as these exceed the value 
adjustment customary in the company

8.

of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00
9.

of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00

16.

17.

12. Depreciation on financial assets and value adjustments on 
securities classified as current assets

13.

14.

15.

of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00

of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 19'073.10

11.

Seite 2
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ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG Notes
LI - 9496 Balzers to the financial statements 2019

Balance sheet reporting and valuation methods

Foreign currency translation

Reporting consistency

Extraordinary income or expenses 2019/CHF 2018/CHF
3'110'683.23 1'013'249.82

Contingent liabilities 2019/CHF 2018/CHF
Debt/Loan guarantees 0.00 0.00

Guarantee obligations 0.00 0.00

Pledges 0.00 0.00

further contingent liabilities 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

There is no  deviation from reporting consistency.

The balance sheet is kept in accordance with the regulations of the Liechtenstein Persons and
Companies Act [Personen- und Gesellschaftsrechts (PGR)]. The annual financial statements has been
drawn up in accordance with the statutory regulations as well as the proper accounting principles. The
ultimate goal of the accounting is to give a true and fair view of the assets, the financial position and the
earning situation of the company.

No deviations exist from the general valuation principles, balance sheet methods, accounting
regulations or from the true and fair view in accordance with PGR.

General valuation principles in accordance with Art. 1066a PGR are applied. In conjunction with the
valuation, it was assumed that the company would continue to operate as a going concern. The
accounts were kept in Swiss francs.

The positions held in foreign currencies on the balance sheet reporting date were translated into Swiss
Francs in accordance with the tax rate.

The amounts in the balance sheet and income statement are comparable to the value from the
respective period of the previous year.

Gross result / assumption of costs by the parent company

(of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00)

(of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00)

(of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00)

(of which from affiliated companies CHF 0.00; previous year CHF 0.00)

Seite 3
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ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG Notes
LI - 9496 Balzers to the financial statements 2019

Liabilities 2019/CHF 2018/CHF
0.00 0.00

12'990'620.65 5'991'914.60
 with a residual maturity of over 5 years 49'233'306.37 26'581'606.40

secured by lien or similar rights 
   (in rem sort and form) 0.00 0.00

62'223'927.02 32'573'521.00

Employees 2019 2018
Average number of employees 0 0

Board of directors, management 2019/CHF 2018/CHF
0.00 0.00

Further information

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG

Balzers, 19 January 2021

No further items exist which are required to be disclosed in accordance with Art. 1091ff PGR.

regarding pension scheme
to affiliated and associated companies

Advances, loans and guarantees to board of directors and 
management
Interest rate for advances and loans is 0.00% (previous year 0.00%).

The COVID-19 outbreak has developed rapidly in 2020, with a significant number of infections.
Measures taken to contain the virus have affected economic activity globally. Measures to prevent
transmission of the virus include limiting the movement of people, restricting flights and other travel,
temporarily closing businesses and schools, and cancelling events. Additionally, the current situation
may delay investment decisions, with investments into the Company’s products either halting or being
lower than expected. The Directors’ continue to monitor the ongoing situation closely and do not view it
as a risk to the going concern assumption in the next 12 months.

Seite 4
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Appendix 4  
Annual financial statements of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019 
and 2018, including the report of the auditor. 
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Management report  
Overview of the company  

Business model of the Company 

The purpose of the Company is to generate a triple returns for its investors consisting of 

- financial returns 
- an environmental return, and 
- a social return, making appositive impact on the communities in which we operate. 

The Company delivers on this by utilising funds raised through the issuance of silent partnerships, bonds or convertible bonds for investing 
in the acquisition, development and construction of renewable and sustainable infrastructure projects or facilities. The Company generates 
financial returns through the realisation of operating income as well as through the appreciation of value on the sale of such projects or 
assets. 

Object of the Company 
The purpose of the Company is the acquisition, development, planning, construction, operation and ultimate sale of renewable and sus-
tainable infrastructure projects. The Company may rent and lease technical equipment and projects, finance and use patents and licenses, 
in the activity of managing its own assets in its own name and for its investments. The Company may also acquire real estate during the 
project planning and development of these properties and their resale or leasing after completion of the construction projects. 

The Company’s vision and purpose 
Although the Company has invested in renewable energy infrastructure assets, particularly solar and biomass technologies, our broader 
vision is to continue to deliver our triple returns across the entire sustainable infrastructure sector in high growth and emerging markets. 

By opening our investment opportunities to the broader sectors of utilities, transport, communications and social infrastructure, we believe 
we can benefit from our deep and comprehensive knowledge of regulatory, legislative and social understanding in the key regions where 
we operate. 

In addition, our relationships with our co-investors have opened up opportunities around the world, extending from India and the Philip-
pines to other fast growing countries. We continue to apply our clear and defined investment principles to future pipeline opportunities, 
and the depth of this pipeline shows that there continues to be a global demand for the expertise we provide. With our long track record 
of providing services in fast growing or emerging markets, we are well positioned to benefit from the global demand for financing such 
projects.  

Key financial data  

€’000s 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Assets      

Financial assets at FVTPL and amortised 
cost - non current 392,272    293,405   80,450  151,558  106,577  

Other receivables – related parties  59,434   42,727  164,541  26,829  14,616  

Other receivables  259  2,299  8,460  14,668  15,244  

Cash and cash equivalents 19,287  4,357   16,563  140  1,298  

Total assets   471,252  342,788  270,014  193,195  137,735  

Liabilities      

Silent partnerships 366,998  263,414  214,085  159,069 122,313  

Bonds and convertible bonds 93,943 66,752  44,426  27,012 10,144  

Other payables – including related parties 10,313  12,627  11,506  7,118 5,285  

Total liabilities 471,254  342,793  270,017 193,199 137,742 

Equity      

Total equity (2) (5) (3) (4) (7) 
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€’000s or % where shown 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Total net income and movements on  
financial assets 12,806 (16,789) 19,639 15,749 (1,296) 

Operating expenses (16,272) (8,210) (14,699) (7,709) (3,507) 

Net interest expense (5,374) (5,600) (1,064) 27 342 

Taxation - - 6 - (253) 

Profit for the period before tax and 
profit participation (8,840) (30,599) 3,882 8,067 (4,714) 

            

Average profit participation capital 330,259 239,059 165,959 132,409 98,599 

Gross Return on Average Participation 
Capital prior to management fees (1) 0.2% (10.4%) 5.8% 11.0% (1.7%) 

Net Return on Average Participation Capi-
tal after management fees (2) (2.7%) (12.8%) 2% 6% (5%) 

(1) Gross return on average participation capital prior to management fees represents the profit for the period adding back management fee expenses 

(2) Net return on average participation capital after management fees represents the profit for the period including the deduction of management fees, divided 
by the average profit participation capital.  

Adjusted key performance indicators 

In addition to the fair value of the Company’s investments, Management has adjusted the following key performance indicators to present 
the results for the years including the additional potential for capital appreciation of the portfolio, which they determine to be reflective of 
the value of an operating portfolio, including operational and financial synergies. In 2019 this upside potential was €80.7 million (2018: 
€87.8 million).   

€’000s or % where shown 
For informational purposes  

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

Imputed profit participation for silent 
partnerships (1) (71,879) (57,189) (19,108) (25,809) (6,950) 

Imputed Gross Return on Average Partici-
pation Capital prior to management fees) 
(2) 24.6% 26.4% 15.0% 24.4% 10.1% 

Imputed Net Return on Average Participa-
tion Capital after management fees (3) 21.8% 23.9% 11.5% 19.5% 7.1% 

(1) Imputed profit participation for silent partnerships’ represents the adjusted profit distribution to the silent partnerships adjusted for the upside potential 
appreciation, prior to any management or performance fee adjustments on the upside potential when realised 

(2) Imputed Gross Return on Average Participation Capital prior to management fees represents the profit for the period adding back management fee ex-
penses, and adjusted for the upside potential appreciation, prior to any management or performance fee adjustments on the upside potential when realised, 
divided by the average profit participation capital. 

(3) Imputed Net Return on Average Participation Capital after management fees represents the profit for the period including the deduction of management 
fees, divided by the average profit participation capital, divided by the average profit participation capital.  
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Overview of general macroeconomic influences in the 2019 financial year with outlook for the 2020 financial year: 

Area Overview 

Economic outlook  
for Europe 

After an already sharp slowdown in 2018, economic activity in the euro area continued to decline in 2019. The 
highly uncertain external environment coupled with the global downturn in manufacturing were the main reasons 
for the slowdown. The economy grew by 1.2% in 2019 compared to a growth rate of 2.1% in 2018. Prior to the 
COVID 19 pandemic, there were already concerns about the impact of a "no deal Brexit", the conflicts between 
the US and China and the threat of US tariffs on European car imports. 

Post COVID 19, the outlook for 2020 and 2021 remains highly uncertain as the world faces further infections 
and enormous uncertainty is created by the continued rise in unemployment and the expiry of government stim-
ulus packages. The IMF currently expects global GDP to continue declining throughout 2020 before recovering 
slightly by 5.4% in 2021.The World Bank has a more pessimistic outlook and the IMF also recognises that even 
the GDP decline could be at least 2 basis points worse.  

Economic outlook  
for Asia (India and  
the Philippines) 

The Indian government imposed a curfew in mid-March 2020, with restrictions relaxed in May 2020. Overall, the 
impact of the pandemic is expected to lead to a significant decline in GDP in 2020, with GDP expected to contract 
by 6.3% year-on-year. However, a recovery is expected to start in the second half of the year and despite the 
negative short-term shocks, interest in investing in India remains high. This has somewhat boosted investor 
confidence in India as a whole. A large and rapidly growing middle class is also assisting in boosting consumer 
spending. 

The Philippine economy suffered its deepest contraction since records began in the second quarter of 2020 due 
to one of Asia's most stringent curfew measures in response to the pandemic. GDP contracted by 16.5% com-
pared to the same period in 2019, the worst figure in a series of data dating back to 1981. The forecast assumed 
a decline of 9.4%. The highest level of unemployment to date and a sharp drop in the amount of money sent 
home by Filipinos have put a heavy strain on private consumption, which alone accounts for about two thirds of 
GDP. Failure to contain the virus, continued restrictions on movement and insufficient political support mean that 
the Philippines could see a slower economic recovery. 

Interest rates Since the outbreak of the pandemic, banks around the world have responded by cutting interest rates. The 
European Central Bank cut its interest rate to zero in March. The Bank of England followed suit and cut its key 
interest rate to a record low of 0.1%. The US Federal Reserve decided to take emergency action in March by 
cutting its key interest rate to zero and launching a new round of quantitative easing. The ECB expects interest 
rates to remain at their current or lower levels until some recovery and stability has been achieved in the euro 
area. 

In Asia, particularly in India and the Philippines, banks have been moving rapidly to lower interest rates at various 
intervals throughout 2020. The Reserve Bank of India lowered its reference repo rate from 5.15% at the end of 
2019 to 4.0% in August 2020. There is still scope for a further reduction by the end of the year if the government 
wants to ensure that inflation remains within its target after the recent price hike due to the coronavirus pandemic. 
In the Philippines, the central bank has implemented a series of cuts to reduce the overnight reverse repurchase 
rate from 4.0% at the end of December 2019 to 2.25%. Analysts believe that there is further scope for rate cuts, 
which will be explicitly monitored in the second half of the year. 

Foreign currency The euro weakened against the US dollar in the first three quarters of the year, starting the year at USD1:€1.1446 
before falling to USD1:€1.11703, before strengthening again in the fourth quarter to close at €1:1.1186. This 
appreciation continued into 2020 as many investors considered the euro a safe haven in the light of the pandemic 
and the November 2020 presidential elections. 

In the Philippines, the peso remained stable in both 2019 and 2020, closing at €1:PHP56.61. In India, the rupee 
weakened further, closing 2019 at €1:INR79.812 and weakening further in 2020, closing in August 2020 at 
€1:INR87.49. 

Commodity prices All over the world, economic and social activities have increased in recent months following the curfews to curb 
the spread of COVID 19. To some extent, the effects have been felt across all raw materials, but since the 
beginning of the year, the performance of individual products has varied considerably. The energy sector has 
borne the brunt of the destruction of demand, while precious metals have benefited from their traditional attrac-
tiveness as safe havens for investors and as a result have risen significantly. 

Closed economies at the beginning of this year, combined with a devastating battle over oil prices between 
Saudi Arabia and Russia, left crude oil markets tumbling. A turbulent first half intensified the investigation into 
how the oil demand curve will develop in the coming decades and how new habits could limit expected peak 
demand. In addition, there is the potential impact of sustainable development plans launched by national gov-
ernments, which are moving towards decarbonisation and sustainability. 
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Equity markets Global equity markets experienced a sharp rise from $70 trillion in 2019 to over $85 trillion at year-end. The 
easing of monetary policy and political developments around the globe have contributed to this. Central banks 
around the world have adopted a rather cautious stance and this has served to boost markets. The outlook for 
world trade – which has been in turmoil since the election of Donald Trump and the vote for Brexit in the UK – 
has also improved during the year. 

Bond markets Central banks around the world reacted quickly and aggressively to the COVID 19 pandemic with the aim of 
restoring much needed liquidity, especially in the bond markets. The Fed immediately revived its ten-year-old 
quantitative easing (QE) programme and announced plans to buy $80 billion worth of bonds over a two-day 
period, with additional purchases of $700 billion or more in the coming months. It also created a commercial 
paper financing facility, a credit facility for primary dealers and a money market liquidity facility. As investors and 
institutions liquidated their holdings in favour of cash, the Fed essentially embarked on an extensive purchasing 
programme. 

In many parts of the world, government debt has meant that many investments have continued to be made as 
capital has been raised at very low interest rates. Interest rates due on government bonds are well below 1% at 
almost all maturities. Many fixed income investors are yield-oriented, and portfolios designed to generate even 
modest income streams must now take additional risks, particularly by investing in less liquid securities or secu-
rities that carry a higher credit risk, or both. The general global yield curve in the aftermath of the financial crisis 
essentially reflects a slow to stagnant outlook for an indefinite period of time in which a sharp rise in inflation, 
rates and economic growth is essentially seen as "tail risk". 

Investment portfolio 
The infrastructure portfolio includes three biomass power plants (including multiple trans-loading stations serving all three biomass power 
plants), in the Philippines and an investment in five operational solar power plants in India. In addition to these operational assets, there 
is a further project under construction and two under development, all which are fully financed by the end of 2019. The investment portfolio 
has a capacity of 534 MW, which can supply approximately 1.5 million people across the two regions. 

Overview of the investment portfolio 

Project Sector Power  
(MW) (1) 

Size of the 
project site 

(m²) 

Power supply 
(people) 

CO2-Savings 
(tonnes p.a.) 

Investment 
value in EUR 

millions (2) 

Philippines Biomass 70 762,900 742,000 57,680 340.2 

Philippines Solar 80 1,085,300 173,000 65,920 37.7 

Total Philippines  150 1,848,200 915,000 123,600 377.9 

India  384 5,402,678 600,733 366,841 34.5 

Total portfolio  534 7,250,878 1,515,733 490,441 412.4 

Other assets      39.5 

Cash and cash equivalents      19.3 

Total assets      471.2 

(1) Solar capacity using the total wattage of solar modules in MW (DC) 
(2) TL- investment value shows the fair value of the investment companies converted into euros as of 31 December 2019 

Overview of the Philippine investment portfolio 
The company's involvement in the Philippines dates back to 2009. As of 31 December 2019 and the date of this report, the Company is 
the sole financier/investor for the development, construction and working capital of three biomass power plants on Negros Island in the 
Philippines. 

Project Share of eco-
nomic return (1) 

TL holding/ 
control TL debt ratio(2) External  

debt ratio (3) Equity ratio (4) 

San Carlos Bio Power 91.25% 26.5% 51% - 49% 

South Negros Bio Power 91.25% 29% 61% - 39% 

North Negros Bio Power 91.25% 39% 60% - 40% 

(1) The economic interest represents the TL portion of the right to dividends and proceeds from sale of the project companies 
(2) The TL debt ratio is calculated as the debt of the project in relation to the total financing, with the debt being calculated as the development, construction and 

operating loans as a percentage of total debt and invested equity. The debt provided to the projects has been fully financed by ThomasLloyd related entities 
(3) The external debt ratio is calculated as the external lending as a percentage of the total debt and invested equity in that project 
(4) The equity ratio is calculated as the proportion of equity capital invested in the specific project to the total debt and invested equity 
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As of 31 December 2019, all three biomass power plants in the Philippines have completed the construction phase and have reached the 
operational phase. 

Through a combination of debt and equity instruments, the company has invested in the entire life cycle of the biomass power plants, 
from project development to construction and through to operation. The Company's partners and co-shareholders in the biomass power 
plants are Zabaleta & Co and Ayala Corporation, through one of its subsidiaries.  Ayala Corporation, a company listed on the Philippine 
Stock Exchange. Ayala is one of the oldest and largest conglomerates in the country and invests only in companies that have a significant 
and lasting impact on the local economic and social landscape. 

The company entered into a partnership agreement in 2011 with Bronzeoak Philippines Inc., owned by Zabaleta & Co., the company that 
manages the business interests of the local Zabaleta family. The Zabaleta family has been deeply rooted in the Philippine sugar industry 
for generations and the family has held senior positions in key trade organizations in the industry. They have also been at the forefront of 
renewable energy project development and have helped make Negros Island a centre of excellence for renewable energy in the region. 

The local partner is remunerated by the economic rights assigned to its founder shares (transferred interest), a pre-negotiated develop-
ment fee for projects which continues through to the construction and then operating agreements for operational management. 

The Company has provided financing in the development phase of each project through loans secured by the developer's shares and all 
licences and permits of the project company (SPV). When the construction phase is reached, these project development financings are 
then repaid and construction financing is granted, with the collateral package being transferred between the various financing phases. 
Once construction is complete, long-term operating loans are made available to replace the construction financing. In addition, the com-
pany has a US$ 161 million refinancing facility from the International Finance Corporation ("IFC"), a subsidiary of the World Bank Group, 
for all three biomass power plants on an arm's length basis. 

All three biomass power plants and solar power plants are located on the Philippine island of Negros. Details of the plants are summarised 
below. 

Project Sector Power  
(MW) (1) 

Size of the project 
site (m²) 

Power supply 
(people) 

CO2-Savings 
(tonnes p.a.) 

Investment value 
in EUR millions (2) 

San Carlos Bio Power Biomass 20 210,000 212,000 16,480 95.7 

South Negros Bio Power Biomass 25 300,000 265,000 20,600 114.1 

North Negros Bio Power Biomass 25 252,900 265,000 20,600 130.4 

ISLASOL I A Solar 18 247,300 41,000 14,832 8.5 

ISLASOL IB Solar 14 200,000 32,000 11,536 6.6 

ISLASOL II Solar 48 638,000 100,000 39,552 22.6 

Total   150 1,848,200 915,000 123,600 377.9 

(1) Solar capacity using the total wattage of solar modules in MW (DC) 
(2) TL- investment value shows the fair value of the investment companies converted into euros as of 31 December 2019 

Overview of the Indian infrastructure portfolio 
In December 2018, the Company made its first investment in India and acquired an interest in SolarArise India Projects Pvt Ltd ("SolarA-
rise"). SolarArise is a Delhi-based company established in 2015 as a utility-scale solar platform, investing in the development, construction 
and operation of large-scale solar power plants. The current portfolio of 384 MW (DC) comprises five operating plants in three states with 
a total capacity of 159 MW. In addition, a sixth plant in a fourth state with 75 MW is in the late construction phase and is expected to be 
operational before the end of 2020. A seventh and eighth solar power plant with a total of 150 MW are in late stage development. All 
plants benefit from long-term power purchase agreements with the Indian government or state governments. 

The founding management team consists of experienced specialists who have been pioneers in the Indian solar market since 2009. They 
were instrumental in developing and shaping the first solar legislation in India and in supporting technical innovations. With a combined 
experience of several decades in the industry, SolarArise has a well-established network of suppliers, contractors, lenders, regulators 
and colleagues from the same profession. 

In addition to the founding management team, the Company has the following co-investors: 

- the Core Infrastructure India Fund ("CIIF"), a specialised infrastructure fund in India managed by Kotak Mahindra Bank; and 
- Global Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Fund ("GEEREF"), advised by the European Investment Bank and financed by the 

European Union 

The Company is the largest single shareholder with a 43% stake as of 31 December 2019. The founding management team is remuner-
ated through their self-financed equity investment, which includes an equity premium that is a component of the Management Incentive 
Plan agreed by the shareholders. 

The strategy so far has been to invest in high quality solar projects with selected power purchase agreements ("PPAs") which have a 
comparatively low acceptance risk. The offtakers of the current portfolio plants are the Indian state and federal states, which have long-
term contracts with a term of 25 years with the respective individual power plants. These have been specially selected by the company 
and its partners as they have no negative reputation in connection with solar energy agreements. 
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The SolarArise team actively manages the development, design, construction, operation and maintenance of each project. The construc-
tion of a facility is contracted under internationally recognised Engineering, Procurement and Construction ("EPC") contracts with market 
leaders of international repute. Once a plant is commissioned, the operation and management is also contracted out to the same EPC 
company that built the plant, to ensure that the agreed performance criteria of the plant are met. In the short to medium term, value added 
is increased by achieving operational efficiency at project level and refinancing the accumulated project costs. 

All solar power plants are currently located in the states of Maharashtra, Karnataka, Telangana and Uttar Pradesh. 

The solar power plants are financed with a combination of equity, investor funds and also debt capital as follows: 

Project Share of eco-
nomic return (1) 

TL holding / 
control TL debt ratio(2) External  

debt ratio (3) Equity ratio (4) 

Telangana I 43% 43% 12% 74% 6% 

Telangana II 43% 43% 12% 74% 6% 

Maharashtra I 43% 43% 8% 81% 7% 

Karnataka I 43% 43% 7% 86% 7% 

Karnataka II 43% 43% 10% 68% 6% 

Uttar Pradesh I * 43% 43% 20% 49% 16% 

(1) The economic interest represents the TL portion of the right to dividends and proceeds from sale of the project companies 
(2) The TL debt ratio is calculated as the debt of the project in relation to the total financing, with the debt being calculated as the development, construction and 

operating loans as a percentage of total debt and invested equity. The debt provided to the projects has been fully financed by ThomasLloyd related entities 
(3) The external debt ratio is calculated as the external lending as a percentage of the total debt and invested equity in that project 
(4) The equity ratio is calculated as the proportion of equity capital invested in the specific project to the total debt and invested equity 
 

Details of the solar power plants are summarised below: 

Project Sector Power  
(MW) (1) 

Size of the project 
site (m²) 

Power supply 
(people) 

CO2-Savings 
(tonnes p.a.) 

Investment value 
in EUR millions (2) 

Telangana I Solar 12 163,594  18,277   8,240  2.7 

Telangana II Solar 12 163,594  18,277   8,240  2.7 

Maharashtra I Solar 67 1,239,654  126,196  41,200  12.6 

Karnataka I Solar 41 721,049  72,236  24,720  6.5 

Karnataka II Solar 27 484,328  41,988  16,553  4.3 

Uttar Pradesh I a) Solar 75 809,372  109,312  41,200  2.1 

Maharashtra II b) Solar 75 910,544  107,224  113,344  3.6 

Development b) Solar 75 910,544  107,224  113,344  n/a 

Total  384 5,402,679 600,734 366,841 34.5 

a) Represents projects under construction  
b) Represents projects under development 

(1) Solar capacity using the total wattage of solar modules in MW (DC) 
(2) TL- investment value shows the fair value of the investment companies converted into euros as of 31 December 2019 

Financial Year 2020 – Outlook 
By the end of December 2019, all three biomass power plants in the Philippines had completed the construction phase and reached the 
operational phase. The Philippine solar power plants are fully operational and not affected by the COVID 19 pandemic, apart from certain 
operational changes to comply with local quarantine regulations, which have been in place since mid-March 2020. 

In India, the Indian government announced a 21-day nationwide lockdown in mid-March in response to the COVID 19 pandemic. Power 
generation, transmission and distribution units were considered essential services and all five solar power plants in operation continued 
to operate at full capacity. The only change to the operating protocols was to reduce ongoing maintenance and to keep staff to a minimum 
and to focus on critical functions in order to comply with quarantine regulations. The curfew was subsequently relaxed, although not 
completely. 

The government announced a stimulus package with a number of policy initiatives, some of which are specifically relevant to the financing 
and development of renewable energy. As part of this package, $12 billion of one-off emergency funding was made available to electricity 
utilities to ensure timely payment of suppliers, i.e. the power generation companies. All payments are received from the respective cus-
tomers according to the normal payment cycle. 

We currently have a project under construction in Uttar Pradesh, which is a 75 MW solar power plant. The EPC contractor broke ground 
on 18 March 2020, and although work was temporarily suspended shortly thereafter, construction was restarted from 20 April 2020, but 
on condition that strict measures are taken to comply with the COVID-19 safeguards still in place. Despite these challenges, we expect 
the construction work to be delayed by only about 6 to 8 weeks and the project is expected to be operational in the fourth quarter of 2020. 
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Investment pipeline – financial year 2020 and beyond 
Looking ahead to the 2020 and 2021 financial years, the company intends to invest in additional projects in Negros, which will lead to 
economies of scale within the existing portfolio. The additional investments are either additions or extensions to the existing platforms or  
extensions of operations of the existing platforms. 

These opportunities include the potential construction of two additional biomass power plants in the Philippines, modelled on the existing 
power plants in South Negros and North Negros. A series of recent DOE (Department of Energy) presentation highlights the potential for 
the creation of 34-45 GW of renewable generation capacity in the period 2018-2040. 

Thomas Lloyd’s partnership with SolarArise and the successful bidding, construction and operation of its current investment portfolio 
means that the company is well positioned to benefit from the Indian government's commitment to renewable energy and its ambi tious 
promise to generate 40 percent of its electricity from renewable sources by 2030. The National Solar Mission, a programme of solar park 
and ultra-mega solar energy projects, aims to install 100 GW of grid-connected solar energy capacity by 2022. To achieve this, we expect 
the National Solar Mission to launch 40 GW of tendering opportunities in the near future. 

The company's investment pipeline includes an additional 2.3 GW (DC) of solar power equipment, which represents a viable extension 
to the existing SolarArise solar platform. Tenders for new projects are in line with the business plan and the targeted return at project level 
will be at least 15% IRR in INR on a hold-to-maturity basis. 

Environment, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Reporting  
The Company has established a framework within which the Company can establish and maintaining the Company’s credentials in ESG 
best practice. This framework is designed to continue to evolve and provide flexibility whilst providing room for constant improvement. 
ESG refers to the environmental, social and governance issues that investors, asset owners and all stakeholders consider in the context 
of corporate behaviour and the way in which a business is managed. They are non-financial performance indicators but reflect critically 
on a company’s philosophy and the way it meets the terms of its ‘social licence’ to operate. 

Our core values 
- We are committed to investing responsibly. The primary objective of the infrastructure investments is to create lasting value, both for 

investors and for the people and communities in which we operate.  
- We are committed to realising sustainable value. This involves building long-term sustainable businesses, which provide employment 

and economic growth in partnership with social transformation and ecological protection and management.  
- We are committed to the integration of material ESG factors into all corporate and investment decisions, so as to deliver transparency, 

mitigate investment risk and to enhance investment returns in the best interests of our clients, other stakeholders and investee com-
munities. 

Our core ESG principles 
- Act with integrity in all our operations 
- Fully comply with laws and regulations, at all times and in all jurisdictions 
- Follow industry standard ESG guidelines and best practices 
- Value and protect the environment, assuring a sustainable use of natural resources 
- Avoid all forms of discrimination and embed equality and diversity in our employment policies 
- Respect human rights and avoid exploitation of child or slave labour 
- Ensure no bribery or corruption 
- Actively manage investment projects to deliver ESG and Impact outcomes in the communities and countries in which we operate 
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Our ESG policies 

Policy type Areas of focus Our policies 

Environmental 
Environmental sustainability requires 
careful stewardship of natural re-
sources, the avoidance of pollution, 
improved energy efficiency and a re-
duction in carbon and greenhouse 
gas emissions. 

Climate change 
Natural resources 
Pollution 

o Ensure compliance with all local and national laws and regulations 
o Identify the actual and potential risks, impact and issues and implement appro-

priate management and mitigation measures especially with regard to: 
• Carbon and greenhouse gas emissions 
• Biodiversity 
• Waste Management 
• Supply chains 
• Use of scarce resources 

o Embed environmental sustainability in all our operations 
o Report on performance and progress 

Social 
The social aspects of a company’s op-
erations are increasingly – and cor-
rectly – under scrutiny. Issues of hu-
man capital include human rights, di-
versity and equality as well the safety, 
attraction and retention of employees. 
Broader community issues surround 
local economic development, health & 
welfare and social inclusion. 

Human capital 
Community 

o Ensure compliance with all local and national laws and regulations 
o Identify the actual and potential risks, impact and issues and implement appro-

priate management and mitigation measures especially with regard to: 
• Working conditions 
• Equality and diversity 
• Human rights 
• Stakeholder engagement 
• Social inclusion 

o  Create long-term sustainability in the communities in which we operate 
o Report on performance and progress 

Governance 
Corporate values and policies go be-
yond statutory compliance with the le-
gal and regulatory framework. Gov-
ernance comprises rights and respon-
sibilities, values and policies, setting 
behaviours from the top with a leader-
ship team committed to their ongoing 
delivery. 

Values 
Policies 

o Ensure compliance with all local and national laws and regulations on trans-
parency, reporting and corporate governance 

o Identify the actual and potential risks, impact and issues and implement appro-
priate management and mitigation measures especially with regard to: 
• Bribery & corruption 
• Money Laundering 
• Transparency 

o Report on performance and progress 

Our investment selection criteria 
ThomasLloyd adopts a ‘top down, bottom up’ approach to transaction screening. The ‘top down’ is a review of macro-economic and 
political attributes, including but not limited to political risk, economic performance, sovereign reputation and tax structure. We utilise 
publicly available information, current documentation and an initial assessment of the jurisdiction’s ability and commitment, (capacity and 
track record) to achieve and maintain a tolerant ESG environment. The ‘bottom-up’ review focuses on the specific investment opportunity 
including but not limited to the good-standing of the local sponsor, the project economics, technical and financial reviews of the proposed 
investment. These considerations may be company-specific or common to the industry or geography as a whole. 

These processes are reviewed through a four step quality control process. 

1) The country review must reflect a positive investment climate. All proposed parties to the investment must also pass all KYC and AML 
checks, including a review of all entities corporate and human through the US-government OFAC list. We also screen based on the 
UN anti-corruption list; Transparency International CPI Index; World Bank Ease of Doing Business and Bertelsmann Stiftung’s Trans-
formation Index (BTI)  

2) Then a detailed review of the financial, legal and technical aspects of the proposed investment is undertaken. This includes: 

• Extensive Due diligence: 
o Business plan including planned expansions and acquisitions 
o Financial review and stress-testing of financial models 
o Legal review including compliance with laws and regulations 
o Technical review including engineering evaluation of projects 
o Investor disclosures, media coverage and reputational risks 

• Company’s ESG performance and measurement systems, awards and certifications 
• Site visits to projects and to corporate headquarters 
• Transaction structuring 

3) Then specialist external consultants with appropriate local and technical skills are engaged to assist with the due diligence and validate 
the work done in the second phase. At all times, the information provided by the investee is reviewed for compliance with the ESG 
policy, and, where appropriate, an ESG action plan is created and agreed. 

4) Finally the investment must be made on appropriate terms and conditions with adequate legal protection and rights, as well as ex-
pected returns.  
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Monitoring our ESG impact in the future 
ESG metrics are milestones, not destinations. Active ownership means active participation; leveraging our ESG understanding and fully 
integrating it through our operations as they impact the environment, labour and working conditions and the environment. Post-investment, 
ESG compliance is monitored, measured and regularly reported as part of the quarterly risk review process. 

Therefore setting out this framework is just the first step in the journey of reporting and moving into FY20, our aim is to report a succinct 
set of key performance indicators with objectives for the coming year. 

Financial overview  
The Company’s key assets are the investments held in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia (€89.0 million), the interest held in SolarArise India Projects 
Private Limited, Gurgaon/India (€33.4 million) and the investment held in the Luxembourg funds, being ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF and 
ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV (together €63.3 million)  

The increase in financial assets held at FVTPL is primarily due to the buyback of the ThomasLloyd CTI Asia shareholding and the So-
larArise assets from a related party, ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding as at 31 December 2019. Previously these interests had been sold 
to ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding with a receivable outstanding of €117.0 million as of 31 December 2018. As part of the buyback 
transaction, this receivable was offset. Additionally the shares held in the Luxembourg funds increased by €2.8 million to €63.3 million in 
aggregate 

Loans receivable held at amortised cost decreased by €26.3 million primarily due to the loan receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia 
Holding of €117.0 million being offset as part of the buy back. This is offset by the loans to ThomasLloyd CTI Asia increasing by €91.5 
million to €206.3 million from €114.8 million in 31 December 2018.  

Current assets increased by €29.6 million due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents of €14.9 million to €19.3 million, an increase 
in other receivables from related parties of €9.7 million and an increase of €7.0 million in accrued interest receivable on loans receivable 
from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia and ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding. These increases were offset by a decrease in deferred borrowing costs 
of €2.1 million, as these have been fully recognised at 31 December 2019. 

On the liabilities side, the capital of silent partnerships increased from €263.4 million to €367.0 million. Additionally bonds and convertible 
bonds increased to €45.0 million and €48.9 million respectively (2018: €42.8 million and €23.9 million respectively). 

Losses before taxes and silent partnerships’ profit participation decreased by €21.8 million to a loss of €8.8 million in 2019. Net income 
including movements on financial assets increased to €12.8 million from a loss of €16.8 million in the year ended 31 December 2018. 
This €30.0 million increase is due to a €16.7 million increase in interest accrued, a €2.1 million increase due to a €1.8 million gain on 
unrealised foreign exchange movements in comparison to a loss in the prior year and a €10.8 million decrease in loss on mark to market 
movements on financial assets. The most significant expense was the management fee of €9.4 million, resulting in other operating ex-
penses of €16.3 million (2018: €8.2 million).  Other expenses were largely driven by acquisition costs and foreign exchange losses on 
operating balances.  

Financial position 

At the balance sheet date, cash and cash equivalents amounted to €19.3 million (2018: €4.4 million). Please refer to our cash flow 
statement for details of the changes. 

Investments  

In the year under review, investments in financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets held at amortised cost increased by €99.7 million 
to a total of €392.3 million. 

Employees 

The Company had no employees in the reporting period (2018: nil). 

Report on opportunities and risks 
The main risks and uncertainties 

We believe that an embedded risk culture improves the effectiveness of risk management and decision-making throughout the Thom-
asLloyd Group. Risk management is part of the daily tasks and activities of all parties involved. Our risk appetite is regularly reviewed, 
not only to ensure that it is consistent with our strategic objectives but also to ensure that it is relevant to the current regulatory environment 
in which we operate. By risk appetite, we mean both the level and nature of risk that The Company is willing to take or maintain within our 
strategy. Notwithstanding the continuing expectations for business growth and a strategic and regulatory change programme for 2019, 
management remains committed to keeping risk appetite relatively low and ensuring that our internal controls reduce risk to an acceptable 
level. Management is aware that the business is susceptible to fluctuations in the investment markets and may potentially suffer occasional 
losses from financial and operational risks, either in the form of reduced profits or increased operating costs. 

Management is ultimately responsible for risk management and therefore regularly reviews the major risks and emerging threats to the 
strategy of the company and The Company. In day-to-day business, the relevant portfolio, asset and risk managers are responsible for 
risk management and the regular review of the major corporate risks. Across The Company, all employees are responsible for risk man-
agement and compliance with our control framework. 

  



 

83 

 

12 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH | Annual Report and Financial Statements | 31 December 2019 

Risks of future development 
The development of the Company depends largely on the success of investments received. In addition to the acquisition success of new 
projects after their realisation, the operation of the projects and/or the sale of the projects plays a major role in this context. Risks also 
arise from global economic developments. In addition to the economy, global political events and developments on the internat ional 
financial markets have a strong impact on individual regions. This may apply particularly to emerging markets. An important risk area in 
emerging markets relates to political, economic and legal stability. On the one hand, careful analyses of the given situation are required 
here. On the other hand, it is necessary to minimise the overall risk through regional diversification. In addition to limiting risk through 
project diversification, the aim is to achieve stable growth through systematic analysis in advance of the investments to be made, a regular 
flow of information on current developments and close project controlling. Liquidity was ensured at all times by the cash management of 
ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH. At present, no significant interest and currency risks are discernible. The financial 
situation is in order. Risks that could arise from tax, competition, patent, antitrust and environmental regulations and laws are countered 
by the early involvement of external experts. At present, no major risks of this kind are discernible. Appropriate insurance policies have 
been taken out for damage and liability risks to limit the financial impact on liquidity, financial position and earnings. There are currently 
no concrete risks and burdens that could endanger the continued existence of the company. 
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Below is an overview of some of our major risks: 

Area Main risk 

Risk  
assessment –  
Probability  
and impact 

How we deal with it Change on  
previous year 

Changing inves-
tor requirements 

Customer requirements are developing rapidly. If we do not adapt or fur-
ther develop our business model and product range to meet the changing 
needs of investors, this could lead to a decline in investments or assets 
under management. 

Medium 

We have a dedicated function, Investment Solutions, which is focused on 
developing our product strategy. We strive to expand and diversify our in-
vestment portfolio. Our cost base is carefully managed to accommodate 
changes in client requirements. 

No change 

Macroeconomic 
factors 

We derive our revenues from the assets we manage. Exchange rate fluc-
tuations, interest rate increases, the lack of hedging instruments and mar-
ket volatility could reduce assets under management and lead to lower 
revenues and profitability. 

Medium 

Regulatory and legal changes are monitored by the Compliance depart-
ment and the Executive Board. We work with regulators around the world 
with regard to possible or planned regulatory changes. We do not believe 
that Brexit has a significant impact on our business as our facilities are di-
versified and located outside the UK. However any impact of the Brexit on 
the investment markets will also affect our ability to expand our invest-
ments. 

No change 

Reputation risk 
This risk may arise from poor behaviour and judgement or risk events due 
to weaknesses in systems or controls. Each of our greatest risks can be a 
result in damage to our reputation. 

High 

We take reputational risks into account when we initiate changes to our 
strategy or business model and maintain high standards of conduct. We 
promote a strong compliance culture and strive for good relations with our 
regulators. 

No change 

Liquidity risk 
The inability to meet our contractual or payment obligations on time and, 
in relation to client portfolios, the inability to sell the underlying assets at 
full value or at all. 

High 

Management reviews The Company's liquidity requirements taking into 
account the current liquidity situation, future cash flows and possible 
stress scenarios. We have processes in place to continuously assess and 
monitor the liquidity risk profiles of investments. 

No change 

Risk of an invest-
ment opportunity 

Our ability to identify new investment opportunities that are suitable for de-
velopment into viable projects depends on 

(i) the ability to secure opportunities on reasonable terms, often follow-
ing a tendering procedure, 

(ii) the ability to obtain authorisations, licences and permits 
(iii) the ability to successfully secure a long-term PPA, and 
(iv) the ability to construct on reasonable commercial terms 

Low 

We have long-standing relationships with project developers, in-depth 
knowledge and experience in the markets in which we operate, and a 
partner ecosystem with which we can demonstrate a sustainable track 
record. 

New 

Fraud risk Fraud could result from any attempt to defraud the Company or our cus-
tomers by circumventing our processes and controls. Low 

There are controls that are assessed as part of the root cause analysis 
(RCA). We continue to place particular emphasis on on our payment pro-
cesses and invest in a new financial system to further strengthen it. 

No change 

Cyber- and Busi-
ness Continuity 

Risk 

The risk that our technology may be compromised or inadequate, ad-
versely affecting the confidentiality, integrity or availability of our data or 
services has an effect. 

High There is a management of information security risks (cyber risks) through-
out the company, which is regularly monitored by the directors. No change 
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Opportunities for future development 
Sustainable opportunities for the Company arise primarily from the long-term infrastructure trends described above, which show that 
energy demand continues to grow significantly, especially in the emerging markets of Asia. It is also expected that demand and pricing 
of renewable electricity generated will continue apace, which would further increase the ongoing profitability of existing and planned 
plants. Furthermore, these trends in the medium and long-term framework conditions improve the market opportunities with regard to the 
intended sale of the completed power plants as an overall portfolio. Overall, the Company will benefit significantly from its market leading 
knowledge and experience in fast growth and emerging economies, specifically in Asia, which is one of the Company’s differentiating 
factors.  

Additionally, it is expected that investor demand for attractive, sustainability-oriented real assets will continue to increase, as the market 
volatility and current credit squeeze makes it increasingly difficult to find profitable financial investments with an attractive risk/return 
profile. Overall, the growth potential of infrastructure investments remains, especially in fast growth and emerging markets.  The returns 
that can be achieved in the medium and long term are significantly higher than those of comparable investments in more developed 
economies. These positive prospects clearly support the expectation of a positive medium to long-term business trend. 

Outlook 
As of the end of 2019, the company's investments will be relatively broadly diversified across biomass and solar energy technologies and 
also geographically across the Philippines and several states in India. In the Philippines, the three biomass power plants have completed 
the construction phase and reached the operational phase. This is clearly a proven track record of successfully completing large-scale 
development and construction projects in a relatively complex technology. 

The three biomass power plants, together with the solar power plants already in operation in the Philippines and India, and two more 
Indian solar power plants under development, provide the company with a scalable business model and a clear blueprint for developing 
and building additional power plants in fast-growing markets and emerging economies. 

The COVID 19 pandemic in the first nine months of 2020 is unprecedented as governments and economies around the world struggle 
against shutdowns, rising unemployment and slumping sales. In the short term, this is expected to have a negative impact on our busi-
ness, as we, like many other companies, have experienced a slowdown in capital inflows and a less dynamic development of demand 
for electricity worldwide. 

Nevertheless, we remain optimistic about the medium to long-term future of the markets in which we operate. We have an in-depth 
knowledge of these markets, we have been operating as part of their communities for many years, and we believe this puts us in a unique 
position as the relevant government agencies refocus on their sustainable and renewable commitments and projects. 

We expect demand for private sector investment in infrastructure in India and the Philippines and other fast growing economies to increase 
in 2021 and beyond. Both the Indian and Philippine governments have made public commitments to implement these agendas, even 
though COVID-19 had necessarily put this initiative on hold. As 2021 begins, it will be necessary to increase investment and activities to 
meet these promises and commitments. Our proven track record in renewable energy should facilitate the diversification of our investment 
opportunities into other infrastructure segments and regions. 

As interest rates and yields have fallen around the world, investors must now look hard for returns. Investing in sustainable opportunities 
in emerging markets offers a degree of security with attractive risk-return profiles that are not readily available elsewhere. 

Against this background, we anticipate that the results of the financial year ending 31 December 2020 will be lower than in the current 
year, but that we will see growth again in the coming years. The business development of the Company is in line with expectat ions and 
in line with its medium to long-term planning. 

 

 

Langen, November 2020 

 

 

T.U. Michael Sieg 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH 
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Auditor’s Report - “Prüfungsvermerk” according to German Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (In-
stitute of Public Auditors in Germany, IDW) 
To ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, Langen 

 

We have audited the financial statements of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – which comprise the balance sheet 
as at December 31, 2019, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for 
the year then ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the management report. 

Management’s Responsibility  

Management of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the International Accounting Standards described and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of the financial infor-
mation in accordance with German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der 
Wirtschaftsprüfer (Institute of Public Auditors in Germany) (IDW). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit of the financial information to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial information is free from 
material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts stated in the financial information and to the notes 
and management report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial information, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial information in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial information.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  

Audit Opinion  

In our opinion based on the findings of our audit, the accompanying financial statements for the business year from January 1, 2019, to 
December 31, 2019, is in accordance with the International Accounting Standards.  

Notes for highlighting special facts 

a) Balance sheet item: Other receivables (related parties) - advance payments on future withdrawal claims of the silent partner, 
Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Langen 

Based on the agreement between the parties on the establishment of a typical silent partnership, the silent partner Cleantech  Infra-
strukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG is entitled to withdrawal rights and a settlement credit, consisting of the balance of the capital account, 
the share in the assets including hidden reserves and the enterprise value of the company. On the basis of this agreement the Company 
has so far made payments of €16.2 million to the silent partner Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Langen, whereby 
payments of €12.2 million were contractually due for payment and legally enforceable on a permanent basis. Thus, a total of €3.9 million 
was not yet due for payment. As of the balance sheet date, the net profit share 2019 attributable to Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft 
mbH & Co. KG in the amount of €0.3 million was offset, leaving a remaining amount of €3.6 million. The Company reports this amount 
within other receivables (related parties). The Company and the silent partner agree that the amount not yet due for payment was an 
advance payment on future withdrawal claims of the silent partner under the agreement on the establishment of a common silent part-
nership for the financial years 2020 et seq. and that the Company therefore made advance payments on a separate liability not yet due - 
namely future withdrawal claims of the silent partner. The advance payment is getting reduced from 2020 onwards by the development 
of the portfolio according to plan and realised income accordingly. In this case, the advance payment will be recognised as expenses by 
the Company. 

b) Balance sheet item: Financial assets at FVTPL 

As at the balance sheet date, the company bought back the shares in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holdings Pte. Ltd, Singapore, as well as 
the equity shares and securities in SolarArise India Projects Private Limited, Gurgaon (India), from its subsidiary ThomasLloyd Cleantech 
Infrastructure Asia Holding GmbH, Langen, at a purchase price of €138.0 million and €42.3 million respectively. The transaction prices 
are based on the respective fair market value at the balance sheet date. 
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The management of the Company has provided valuation reports as audit evidence for the investigation of the investment portfolios as 
at balance sheet date. 

The external valuation experts have reviewed the three biomass projects San Carlos BioPower, South Negros BioPower and North 
Negros BioPower and the solar portfolio of SolarArise India at balance sheet date and are getting to a lower valuation. The relevant 
valuation difference is on the one hand due to a different valuation approach in the calculation of the WACC for the biomass projects San 
Carlos BioPower, South Negros BioPower and North Negros BioPower and the solar portfolio of SolarArise India. The WACC deviation 
between valuation experts and of the Company is on average 1.53% (previous year: 1.76%) and 2.2% (previous year: 2.21%) respec-
tively. 

On the other hand, the deviation is due, among other things, to synergy effects from the successful commissioning and claims for com-
pensation due to construction delays as well as from financed and secured portfolio expansions, which the valuation experts have not 
included due to the balance sheet date. 

We would like to point out that the transaction prices are contracts between related parties and that there is always scope for discretion 
in their valuation. The value-determining factors were therefore determined including the facts described above.  

According to relevant IFRS standards, a purchase price allocation for investment companies does not follow IFRS 3, but must measure 
the acquisition of shares at fair value. 

The fair value option is applied and the differences between the transaction prices on the one hand and the fair value valuations on the 
other hand are recognised as expenses under the item "Unrealised M2M losses on financial assets held at FVTPL". 

From an auditing perspective, we believe that the audit evidence presented in this context (including internal and external valuation 
reports, planning calculations, annual financial statements and audit reports of individual companies, assumptions regarding synergy 
effects) is understandable. 

The valuations are based - where necessary and taking into account certain uncertainties, which estimates and planning models are 
usually based on - on reasonable and verifiable assumptions. Our audit opinions on the financial statements and the management report 
have not been modified in this respect. 

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use  

The financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards have been prepared voluntarily. The manage-
ment of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has prepared annual financial statements for the fiscal year ending De-
cember 31, 2019 in accordance with German commercial law, on which we have issued an unqualified audit opinion dated September 
30, 2020. 

Our report is intended solely for ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and should not be distributed to or used by third 
parties without our prior written approval.  

General Terms of Engagement  

We issue this report on the basis of the engagement agreed with the ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, which com-
prises the attached General Terms and Conditions of Engagement as of August 1, 2017, which are also applicable to third parties.  

 

Stuttgart, November 30, 2020 

PKF WULF & PARTNER 

 

 

 

Ralph Setzer  

Wirtschaftsprüfer 
(German Public Auditor)   
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Statement of financial position as of 31 December 2019 

€’000s Notes 2019 2018 

Assets    

Non-current assets    

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 4a) 185,947  60,741 

Financial assets at amortised cost 4b)i) 4b)ii 206,325  231,862 

Deferred borrowing costs 4b)iii) - 802 

Total non-current assets  392,272  293,405  

Current assets    

Other receivables – related parties  4b)iv) 45,543  35,794  

Accrued interest – related parties 4b)v) 13,891  6,933  

Deferred borrowing costs 4b)iii) - 2,104 

Prepayments and other receivables  233  123  

Corporation tax receivable  26  72  

Cash and cash equivalents 4b)vi) 19,287  4,357  

Total current assets  78,980  49,383  

Total assets  471,252 342,788 

Liabilities    

Current liabilities    

Silent partnerships 5a) 6,266   5,635  

Bonds 5b) 392  415  

Convertible bonds 5c) 617  326  

Other payables – related parties 5d) 2,329  2,789  

Accruals and other payables 5e) 7,984  9,838  

Total current liabilities  17,588  19,003  

Non-current liabilities    

Silent partnerships 5a) 360,732  257,779  

Bonds  5b) 44,623  42,419  

Convertible bonds  5c) 48,311  23,592 

Total non-current liabilities  453,665  323,790  

Total liabilities  471,254  342,793  

Equity    

Share capital 6  25  25  

Retained earnings  (27)  (30)  

Total equity  (2)  (5)  

Total equity and liabilities  471,252  342,788 
 

 
The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019 

€’000s Notes 2019 2018 

Income and movements on financial assets    

Interest from loans and receivables 7 17,407 751 

Unrealised foreign exchange gain/(loss) on financial assets 7 1,767 (375) 

Unrealised M2M losses on financial assets held at FVTPL 7 (6,368) (17,165)  

Total net income and movements on financial assets  12,806 (16,789) 

Fees and expenses    

Management fees 8 (9,428) (5,838) 

Acquisition costs 9 (3,533) (1,486) 

Other operating expenses 10 (3,311) (886) 

Total fees and expenses  (16,272) (8,210) 

Operating loss  (3,466) (24,999) 

Interest income – related parties 11 310 416 

Interest expense – related parties 11 (5,684) (6,016) 

Loss before taxation and before silent partnerships  (8,840) (30,599) 

Silent partnerships’ profit participation under local accounting standards 5a) (4,903) (9,057) 

Tax 12 - - 

Total loss for the period   (13,743) (39,656) 

Other comprehensive loss  - - 

Silent partnerships’ profit  participation 5a) 13,744 39,653 

Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders  (1) (3) 

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2019 

€’000s Share capital Retained losses Total 

Balance as at 1 January 2018 25 (27) (3) 

Loss for the period - (39,656) (39,656) 

Silent partnerships’ profit participation (distribution over liabil-
ities) - 39,653 39,653 

Balance as at 31 December 2018 25 (30) (5) 

Loss for the period - (13,743) (13,743) 

Silent partnerships’ profit participation (distribution over liabil-
ities) - 13,744 13,744 

Balance as at 31 December 2019 25 (27) (2) 
 

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 

 



 

91 

 

20 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH | Annual Report and Financial Statements | 31 December 2019 

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019 

€’000s Notes 2019 2018 

Cash flows from operating activities    

Operating loss  (3,466) (24,999) 

Adjusted for:    

Interest from loans and receivables 7 (17,407) (751) 

Unrealised foreign exchange gain on financial assets 7 (1,767) 375 

Unrealised M2M losses on financial assets at FVTPL 7 6,368 17,165 

Management fees 8 9,428 5,838 

Acquisition costs 9 3,533 1,486 

Net changes in operating assets and liabilities  (3,309) (885) 

Working capital movements  3,192 733 

Net cash flow used in operating activities  (119) (152) 

    

Cash flows from investing activities    

Acquisition of investments in financial assets   (84,599) (91,030) 

Increase in receivables from investments  (37,918) (18,560) 

Interest received  310 227 

Net cash flow used in investing activities  (122,207) (109,363) 

    

Cash flows from financing activities    

Proceeds from issuance of bonds or silent partnerships  191,835 152,729 

Payment of profit participations   (41,074) (44,625) 

Payments in relation to redemptions  (8,730) (4,172) 

Payment of interest  (2,232) (448) 

Advance payments to related parties   (1,689) (2,650) 

Withholding tax paid  (854) (3,525) 

Net cash flow generated by financing activities  137,256 97,309 

    

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year   4,357  16,563  

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents  14,931  (12,206)  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4b)vi) 19,287   4,357  

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 

1. Significant changes in the current reporting period 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH’s (the “Company”) financial position and performance was particularly affected by 
the following events and transactions during the reporting period: 

- The acquisition of an investment in ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Asia Holdings Pte Ltd and SolarArise from a related party, 
ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding on 31 December 2019 (see note 4a)) 

2. Basis of preparation 

The purpose of the Company is the acquisition, development, planning, construction, operation and ultimate sale of renewable and sus-
tainable infrastructure projects. The Company may rent and lease technical equipment and projects, finance and use patents and licenses, 
in the activity of managing its own assets in its own name and for its investments. The Company may also acquire real estate during the 
project planning and development of these properties and their resale or leasing after completion of the construction projects. 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 
as adopted by the European Union. The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below and in the relevant notes to these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated, other than as explained below: 

The Company has presented these financial statements in English language and reclassified certain items in the statement of financial 
positon and statement of comprehensive income to more clearly show financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
and amortised assets and liabilities and also to classify all income and expenses in relation to investments within net income and move-
ment in financial assets.  In doing this, the Company has retrospectively restated the comparative period.  There is no change to total 
assets, total liabilities or total comprehensive income. It should be noted that the Company is classified as a micro-entity in accordance 
to s.267a(1) HGB and therefore are not subject to mandatory audits. The Company has voluntarily chosen to prepare these financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS and have these financial statements have been audited on a voluntary basis.  

Authorisation of these financial statements for issuance – These financial statements were authorised for issue by Management on  
30 November 2020. 

All amounts are presented in Euro. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 
thousand Euros unless otherwise stated. 

a) Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and 
financial liabilities at FVTPL. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires Management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The 
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements, are disclosed in note 3 and further detail is provided in the relevant notes to these financial statements. 

The Company meets the definition of an investment entity under IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” as the Company has raised 
funds for the purposes of investing and providing investors with professional investment services and the Company’s purpose and objectives 
have been communicated to investors, which includes the purposes of investing for capital returns and investment income. Due to the Company 
meeting the definition of an investment entity, all direct investments, regardless of the concept of control, are measured, and subsequently 
remeasured, on a fair value basis and such investments are not consolidated. Where there are indirect investments, such as the Loans receiv-
able from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia which are then lent to investments in the Philippines, these are measured at amortised cost, assessing 
expected credit losses at each balance sheet date (see note 4b). Additionally certain controlled subsidiaries have also been determined to be 
investment entities and are therefore not consolidated and instead are measured at fair value through profit or loss (see note 4a)iv)). 

b) Foreign currency translation 
The Company’s investors are mainly from the Eurozone, with the subscriptions and redemptions of silent partnerships, bonds or convert-
ible bonds denominated predominantly in Euro, with some in US dollars, Swiss Francs and Czech Krona. The primary activity of the 
Company is to invest in unlisted debt or equity securities issued by companies involved in the development, construction or operation of 
sustainable renewable energy infrastructure assets in fast growing and emerging markets. These investments have been in US dollars 
or Indian Rupee. The performance of the Company is measured and reported to investors in Euro. Management considers the Euro as 
the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The financial 
statements are presented in Euro, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the statement of 
financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are included in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the financial assets carried at FVTPL are presented in the statement of comprehensive 
income within “Unrealised foreign exchange gains on financial assets at FVTPL”. Further details on the accounting policies in relation to 
financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss are contained in note 4a. 
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For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the following rates were utilised: 

 2019 2018 

 Closing Closing 

EUR:USD 1:1.1189 1:1.1450 

EUR:INR 1:80.1376 n/a 

EUR: CHF 1:1.0854 1.1269 

EUR: CZK 1: 25.40 1:25.72 

Critical judgements – Functional currency – Management considers that the Euro is the currency that most faithfully represents the 
economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions of the Company. The Euro is the currency in which the Company 
measures its performance and reports its results, as well as the currency in which it receives the majority of investment inflow. This 
determination also considers the competitive environment in which the Company operates in and makes a comparison to other Eu-
ropean investment products and Companies. The functional currency assessment is reviewed on an annual basis to assess the 
funding inflow in light of investments made and to be made.  

c) Standards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 January 2019 
There are no standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2019 
that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Company. 

d) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 January 2020 and have not been early adopted 
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 
2020, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to have a material effect on 
the financial statements of the Company. 

e) Going concern 
Management of the Company is of the opinion that the Company will continue in operation as a going concern and that the Company’s 
liquidity is sufficient for it to be able to meet its obligations as and when they fall due, in the normal course of business, for at least twelve 
months from the date of approval of the financial statements. 

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It  also requires 
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas, involving a higher degree 
of judgment or complexity and where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements. A summary of such estimates 
and judgements is set out below with further detail available in the relevant note to these financial statements.  

a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom 
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are as follows: 

- Fair value of securities not quoted in an active market – see note 4a. 
- Assessing expected credit losses – note 4b. 

b) Critical judgements 
- Determining the business model – see note 4b. 

4. Financial Assets 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:  

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss); and  
- those to be measured at amortised cost. 

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. 
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are recorded either in profit or loss or in OCI. For investments in equity instruments 
that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether The Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition 
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The Company reclassifies debt invest-
ments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 
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€’000s 2019 2018 

Financial assets – non-current   

Financial assets at FVTPL (note 4a)    

Investment in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holdings 89,022 - 

Investment in SolarArise India 33,430 - 

Investment in ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF 62,377 58,624 

Investment in ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV 968 1,968 

Investment in other related parties 150 150 

Total financial assets at FVTPL – non-current 185,947 60,742 

Financial assets at amortised cost (note 4b)   

Loans receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia  206,325 114,831 

Receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding - 117,031 

Deferred borrowing costs - 802 

Total financial assets at amortised cost – non-current 206,325 232,664 

Financial assets – current   

Financial assets at amortised cost (note 4b)   

Other receivables – related parties  45,543  35,794 

Accrued interest – related parties 13,891 6,933 

Deferred borrowing costs - 2,104 

Prepayments and other receivables 233 123 

Corporation tax receivable 26 71 

Cash and cash equivalents 19,287 4,357 

Total financial assets at amortised cost – current 78,980 49,382 

Total financial assets  471,252 342,788 

a) Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss 

Classification – Investments in equities, preference shares and debt securities 
The Company classifies direct investments in equities, preference shares and debt securities based on both the Company’s business 
model for managing these financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of these financial assets. The portfolio of 
financial assets is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Company is primarily focused on fair value 
information and uses that information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions.  

The Company has not taken the option to irrevocably designate any equity securities as fair value through other comprehensive 
income.  

The contractual cash flows of the Company’s direct investments in the debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these 
securities are neither held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and 
for sale. The collection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Company’s business model’s objective. Conse-
quently, these direct investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

The Company’s policy requires Management and the Company’s Investment Manager, which is ThomasLloyd Global Asset Manage-
ment (Americas) LLC (the “Investment Manager”) to evaluate the information about these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value 
basis together with other related financial information. 
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Recognition, de-recognition and measurement 

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date – the date on which the Company commits to purchase 
or sell the investment. This is generally the settlement date. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised 
at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Company has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.  

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses 
arising from changes in the fair value of the “Unrealised foreign exchange gains on financial assets” category are presented in the 
statement of comprehensive income within “Other net changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in 
the period in which they arise.  

Interest on debt securities at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in “Interest from 
financial assets at FVTPL”. 

 

Fair value estimation of direct investments 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value of financial assets that are in relation to unlisted debt or equity securities, which are not traded in an active market, is 
determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market 
conditions existing at each reporting date. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent ordinary transactions 
between market participants, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option 
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and 
relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. 

The fair value of such securities not quoted in an active market may be determined by the Company using reputable pricing sources 
(such as pricing agencies) or indicative prices from bond/debt market makers. Where no market data is available, the Company may 
value positions using its own models, which are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognised as standard 
within the industry, specifically taking into account the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation guidelines, recom-
mendations and best practices. The inputs into these models are primarily earnings multiples and discounted cash flows. The models 
used to determine fair values are validated and reviewed by experienced personnel at an independent valuation firm.  

The models used for debt securities are based on net present value of estimated future cash flows, adjusted as appropriate for 
liquidity, and credit and market risk factors.  

 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions – Fair value of securities not quoted in an active market – The fair value of such 
securities not quoted in an active market may be determined by the Company using its own models, which are usually based on 
valuation methods and techniques generally recognised as standard within the industry. In assessing the valuation of the below 
assets, we considered the following valuation approaches: income, market comparable, comparable transaction method and net asset 
value method. It was concluded that the income approach was the most relevant as the value of investments is influenced by many 
factors, including contractual terms, and the income approach allows stress testing to key value drivers.  

Models use observable data, to the extent practicable. However, areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities 
and correlations require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair 
value of financial instruments. The sensitivity to unobservable inputs is based on management’s expectation of reasonable possible 
shifts in these inputs, taking into consideration historical volatility and estimations of future market movements. 

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Company. The Company considers observ-
able data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprie tary, and 
provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. 

DCF Valuation and use of the total portfolio approach 

To calculate the fair value of the investments at the 31 December, the Company took a total portfolio approach at the asset or project 
level to determine the fair value of the three biomass plants and the investment in SolarArise with a value of €372.5 million (2018: €273.3 
million). Of this, the equity investment in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia is held at €89.0 million, the investment in SolarArise at €33.4 million as 
at 31 December 2019, excluding the loans receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia of €206.3 million and interest accrued of €13.9 million. 
Additionally there are indirect investments held through the investment in ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF and ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV. . 

An external valuation expert has valued the three biomass plants as of 31 December 2019 at a lower valuation due to different inputs, 
specifically the small stock premium and specific equity alpha when determining the WACC for each plant.  The difference in the WACC 
is 1.53% at each plant, being an average of 1.53% (2018: 1.76%).  In relation to the SolarArise investment, the difference in the WACC 
is 2.2% (2018: 2.21%).  In the opinion of management, the DCF valuation accurately represents the fair value of the investments and 
there are no indicators which contradict these estimates.  
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The Company did not make any changes to methodology in 2019 compared to the prior year.  

 
€ 2019 2018 

Investments in equity and debt securities   

Investment in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia(i) 89,022  - 

Investment in SolarArise India (ii) 33,430  - 

Investment in ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF(iii) 62,377  58,624  

Investment in ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV (iii) 968 1,968  

Investment in other related parties (iv) 150  150  

Total financial assets at FVTPL 185,947   60,741  

 

(i) Investment in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia 

As of 31 December 2019, 100% of the shares in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia were repurchased. ThomasLloyd CTI Asia holds direct invest-
ments in San Carlos Bio Power, South Negros Bio Power and North Negros Bio Power. In determining the fair value of ThomasLloyd CTI 
Asia the following assumptions were utilised across all direct investments: 

€’000s 2019 2018 

Exchange rate EUR:USD 1.1189 1.1469 

Discount factor 8.0% 9.3% 

Including the following inputs   

Small stock premium 0.55% 0.0% 

Specific equity alpha 0.25% 0.0% 

An increase in the discount rate used in isolation would result in a decrease to the fair value. If the discount rate used was 0.5% higher 
while all other variables were held constant, the fair value of the investments would decrease by €13.2 million. 

(ii) Investment in SolarArise India 

€’000s 2019 2018 

Investments in SolarArise India   

Equity 15,537 - 

CCPs 4,383 - 

CCDs 13,510 - 

Total investments in SolarArise India 33,430 - 

On 31 December 2019, the Company completed the purchase of the ordinary share capital, compulsory convertible preference shares 
(“CCPs) and compulsory convertible debentures (“CCD) of SolarArise India Projects Pvt. Ltd (“SolarArise”) which was held by a related 
party, ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding. The investment includes the following.  

- Equity securities – Represents 11,191 ordinary shares of 10 INR face value, or a 29.55% shareholding. The ordinary shares have 
voting rights and are unencumbers. 

- CCPs – Represents 521,330 compulsory convertible preference shares. The shares have a compulsory convertibility option into 
ordinary shares at the eight-year anniversary from the investment date with a 1 CCPs to 10 ordinary shares conversion ratio. These 
are non-voting shares. 

- CCD – Represents 1,607,226 compulsory convertible debt securities. The CCDs have a compulsory convertibility option into ordinary 
shares at the eight-year anniversary from the investment date with a 1 CCD to 10 ordinary shares conversion ratio. The CCD also 
accrues interest at the lower of 11.75% per annum or the highest rate permissible under applicable laws.  
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€’000s 2019 2018 

Exchange rate EUR:INR 80.14 n/a 

Discount factor 10.6% n/a 

Including the following inputs   

Small stock premium 0.55% 0.0% 

Specific equity alpha 0.2% 0.0% 

 

An increase in the discount rate used in isolation would result in a decrease to the fair value. If the discount rate used was 0.5% higher 
while all other variables were held constant, the fair value of the investments would decrease by €900,000. 

(iii) Investment in ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF and ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV 

The valuation of the investment in ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF and ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV is determined at each balance sheet 
date based on the published NAV and share prices. This has been determined to be a level 2 valuation in line with the hierarchy.  

The Company holds 84,488 Euro accumulating shares and 250 USD accumulating shares in ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF and 18,554 
Euro distributing shares in ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV.  

(iv) Investment in other related parties 

Investments in other investment entities – the Company owns 100% of the shareholding of a number of subsidiaries. Each of these 
subsidiaries are also determined to be investment entities within the definition of IFRS 10. These controlled subsidiary investments are 
measured at fair value through profit and loss and are not consolidated. The fair value of controlled subsidiary investments is determined 
on a consistent basis to all other investments measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

A controlled subsidiary investment involves one holding company of which the Company has the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of an interest of more than one half of the voting rights or otherwise has 
power to govern the financial and operating policies. This holding company is a subsidiary that has been incorporated for the purpose 
of holding underlying investment on behalf of the Company, or in raising capital to fund the underlying investment of the Company. The 
holding company has no operations other than providing a vehicle for capital raising, acquisition, holding and onward sale of certain 
portfolio investment companies. The holding company requires no consolidation, because the holding company is not deemed to be 
providing investment related services, as defined by IFRS 10. Where the Company is deemed to have control over an underlying 
portfolio company, either directly or indirectly, the Company does not consolidate the underlying portfolio company; instead, the Com-
pany reflects its investment at fair value through profit or loss.  

 
€’000s 2019 2018 

Investments in other related parties   

ThomasLloyd CTI (CZ) 76 76 

ThomasLloyd CTI (FL) 47 47 

ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding 27 27 

Total investments in other related parties 150 150 

The Company holds 100% of the shares of the above related parties. 
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b) Financial assets held at amortised cost 

€’000s 2019 2018 

Financial assets at amortised cost – non-current   

Loans receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia (i) 206,325 114,831 

Receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding (ii) - 117,031 

Deferred borrowing costs (iii) - 802 

Total financial assets at amortised cost – non-current 206,325 232,664 

Financial assets at amortised cost – current   

Other receivables – related parties (iv) 45,543  35,794 

Accrued interest – related parties (v) 13,891 6,933 

Deferred borrowing costs (iii) - 2,104 

Prepayments and other receivables  233 123 

Corporation tax receivable 26 72 

Cash and cash equivalents (vi) 19,287 4,357 

Total financial assets at amortised cost – current 78,890 49,383 

Total financial assets at amortised cost 285,305 282,047 

 

Loans and receivables represent a USD denominated loan note issued to a related party of the Company, CTI Asia Holdings Pte. Limited. 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, 
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate 
method. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together 
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.  

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method is 
recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit or loss. The Company assesses, 
on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment 
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 

 

Critical accounting judgement – determining the business model – The objective of the Company is to achieve long-term capital 
appreciation and the Company has applied the business model, which assesses that the loan receivable, denominated in USD, has 
been invested for the purpose of the collection of contractual cash flows. The Company therefore classifies the loan at amortised cost. 
Determining the appropriate business model and assessing whether cash flows generated by an asset constitute solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) is sometimes complex and may require significant judgement.  

 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions – assessing expected credit losses – In assessing assets for impairment, judgement 
is required specifically in relation to circumstances of economic and financial uncertainty, such as those of the recent financial crisis and 
the COVID-19 crisis, when developments and changes in expected cash flows can occur with greater rapidity and decreased predictability. 
Actual cash flows and timing may differ from estimates, which would cause actual losses to differ from reported allowances.  

Under the expected credit loss model, the Company calculates the allowance for credit losses by considering on a discounted basis 
the cash shortfalls it would incur in various default scenarios for prescribed future periods and multiplying the shortfalls by the probability 
of each scenario occurring. The allowance is the sum of these probability-weighted outcomes. As every loan and receivable carries 
with it some risk of default, every such asset has an expected loss attached to it—from the moment of its origination or acquisition. 
Judgement is required as to whether the allowance for expected credit losses at any balance sheet date is calculated by considering 
possible defaults only for the next 12 months (“12 month ECLs”), or for the entire remaining life of the asset (“Lifetime ECLs”). The 
loans are measured using the 12 month ECL.  

In determining the 12 month ECL, the Company has assessed the historical default experience, the financial position of the counter-
party, as well as the future prospects of the industries in which the loan was invested. In performing such credit loss assessments, the 
Company has obtained management and operational reports, considered external sources of actual and forecast economic information 
in estimating the probability of defaults within the respective loss assessment time horizons as well as the loss upon default.  

(i) Loans receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia 

€’000s 2019 2018 



 

99 

 

28 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH | Annual Report and Financial Statements | 31 December 2019 

Loans receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia   

San Carlos Bio Power 38,704 25,853  

South Negros Bio Power 75,289 39,998  

North Negros Bio Power 92,332 48,980  

Total loans receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia 206,325 114,831  

(ii) Receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding 

As at 31 December 2018, loans receivable from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding related to the sale of the shareholding in ThomasLloyd 
CTI Asia and the equity, CCDs and CCPs of SolarArise. As of 31 December 2019, such shareholdings have been repurchased by the 
Company as disclosed in note i) above, and the loans receivable have been offset as part of the repurchase agreement.  

(iii) Deferred borrowing costs 

Deferred borrowing costs relate to borrowing costs related to debt products issued by ThomasLloyd CTI (CZ). As of 31 December 2019, 
these have been recognised in full.  

(iv) Other receivables – related parties 

€’000s 2019 2018 

Other receivables – related parties   

ThomasLloyd GAM (US) 17,264 - 

ThomasLloyd GAM (CH) 5,463 15,319 

ThomasLloyd CTI (FL) 5,577 4,422 

ThomasLloyd CTI Asia 3,447 2,151 

ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF 7,485 5,499 

ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV 206 344 

SNB  319 2,745 

SCB 392 345 

NNB 1,642 1,564 

Cleantech KG I 3,612 3,270 

ThomasLloyd CTI Philippines Holdings 136 135 

Total other receivables – related parties 45,543  35,794 

Amounts prepaid to Cleantech KG I relate to payments made in excess of drawing rights under the agreement between the Company 
and Cleantech KG I. This constitutes an advance payment on future drawing rights. 

(v) Accrued interest – related parties 

€’000s 2019 2018 

Accrued interest – related parties   

ThomasLloyd CTI Asia 12,793 6,933 

SolarArise India 1,098 - 

Total accrued interest – related parties 13,891 6,933 
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(vi) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term investments in an active market 
with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown in current liabilities in the statement of 
financial position. 

 
€’000s 2019 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents 19,287  4,357  
 
€’000s 2019 2018 

Cash and cash equivalents   

Euro 16,284 3,837 

CHF 1,333 411 

CZK 906 36 

USD 763 72 

Other 1 1 

Total cash and cash equivalents 19,287 4,357 

 

5. Financial liabilities 

This note provides information about The Company’s financial instruments, including: 

- an overview of all financial instruments held by the Company;  
- specific information about each type of financial instrument; and 
- accounting policies 

All financial liabilities are held at fair value through profit or loss or at amortised cost and are designated as current if they are payable 
within 12 months.  

€’000s 2019 2018 

Financial liabilities – non-current   

Financial liabilities at FVTPL    

Silent partnerships (note 5a) 6,266 5,635 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost   

Bonds (note 5b) 392 415 

Convertible bonds (note 5c) 617 326 

Other payables – related parties (note 5d) 2,329 2,789 

Accruals and other payables (note 5e)  7,984 9,838 

Total financial liabilities – non-current 17,588 19,003 

Financial liabilities – current   

Financial liabilities at FVTPL    

Silent partnerships (note 5a) 360,732 257,779 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost   

Bonds (note 5b) 44,623 42,419 

Convertible bonds (note 5c) 48,311 23,592 

Total financial liabilities – current 453,665 323,790 

Total financial liabilities 471,254 342,793 

a) Silent partnerships  

The silent partnerships are primarily organised within different limited partnerships (“KGs”).The Company contributed capital  is classi-
fied as a financial liability due to contractual payment provisions to each of the silent partners within the silent partnership agreement. 
The silent partners participate in the Company’s profit, assets, hidden reserves and also in the Company’s enterprise value. They do 
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not participate in losses. However, their claims to the net assets and earnings of the Company are subordinated to those of all other 
creditors. 

All KGs have given the Company binding notice that they will only exercise their termination rights to their silent partnerships to the 
extent that – and within the same deadlines as – the investors of the KG’s terminate their limited partnership interests. 

In order to avoid measurement anomalies between the liabilities of the silent partners and the corresponding assets, their capital 
contribution is not measured at amortised cost, but using the fair valuation option under IFRS 9 In addition the silent partners are 
organised in the form of direct participations and a limited liability company under German law.  

 

€’000s 2019 2018 

Silent partnerships   

Current 6,266 5,635 

Non-current 360,732 257,779 

Total silent partnerships 366,998 263,414 

The Company has the following agreements:  

(i)  A silent partnership agreement with CTI KG I, as of 1 July 2011, amended on 18 July 2013.The expiry date is 31 December 2032 and 
may only be terminated prior to this date for due cause. The nominal capital contribution amounts to €42.3 million and can be paid by 
the silent partner in instalments.  

(ii)  A silent partnership agreement with CTI KG II, as of 10 October 2011, amended on 23 January 2012 and 18 July 2013.The typical 
silent partnership was established for an indefinite period. The silent partner does not have a right to terminate the silent participation, 
in whole or in parts, until 31 December 2018 and the Company does not have a right to terminate the silent participation, in whole or 
in parts, until 31 December 2032. The period of notice is one year in each case. The contract may only be terminated prior to this 
date for due cause. The nominal capital contribution amounts to €85.0 million and can be paid by the silent partner in instalments. In 
an addendum dated 18 July 2013 the nominal contribution was set at a total of €171.0 million. 

(iii)  A silent partnership agreement with CTI KG III, as of 14 August 2012, amended on 18 July 2013. The typical silent partnership was 
established for an indefinite period. The silent partner does not have the right to terminate the silent partnership until the close of 31 
December 2020. The period of notice is one year. The right to terminate for due cause remains unaffected. The nominal capital 
contribution amounts to €85.0 million and can be paid by the silent partner in instalments. In an addendum dated 18 July 2013 the 
nominal contribution was set at a total of €171.0 million. 

(iv) A silent partnership agreement with CTI GmbH IV, as of 14 August 2012, amended on 18 July 2013. The typical silent partnership 
was established for an indefinite period. The silent partner does not have the right to terminate the silent partnership until the close of 
31 December 2020. The period of notice is one year. The right to terminate for due cause remains unaffected. The nominal capital 
contribution amounts to €85.0 million and can be paid by the silent partner in instalments. In an addendum dated 18 July 2013 the 
nominal contribution was set at a total of €171.0 million. 

(v)  A silent partnership agreement with CTI KG V, as of 8 March 2013, amended on 18 July 2013. The typical silent partnership was 
established for an indefinite period. The silent partner does not have the right to terminate the silent partnership until a minimum term 
of 15 years. The period of notice is one year. The right to terminate for due cause remains unaffected. The nominal capital contribution 
amounts to €500.0 million and can be paid by the silent partner in instalments. In an addendum dated 18 July 2013 the nominal 
contribution was set at a total of €639.0 million. 

The silent partner is under no obligation to make further payments in addition to the subscribed contribution. Distributions are only per-
mitted in years in which a profit is reported and only up to the amount of the typical silent partner's profit share. However, it is possible to 
withdraw capital independent of the profits. Distributions may not cause a capital account to become negative or  increase an existing 
negative balance. The silent partner has no right to be involved or consulted. The typical silent partner shares in the partnership's profits 
and does not participate in losses. The typical silent partner participates in the assets, unrealised gains and enterprise value of the 
Company. The typical silent partner's claims to distributions and an exit payment are subordinate to the claims of the Company's creditors. 
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The other types of silent partnerships as issued are laid out below:  

Description Minimum term Distributions/with-
drawals p.a 

DB 05/2014 3 full financial years n/a 

DB 11/2014 3 full financial years up to 9.8% 

DB 12/2014  3 full financial years up to 11.0% 

DB 02/2015 3 full financial years up to 9.8% 

DB 09/2015 
2 full financial years for the participation payable upon maturity/ 4 full financial 
years for participation with right of withdrawals 

up to 9.8% 

DB 09/2015 CZK  
2 full financial years for the participation payable upon maturity/ 4 full financial 
years for participation with right of withdrawals 

up to 9.8% 

DB 09/2015 USD 
2 full financial years for the participation payable upon maturity/ 4 full financial 
years for participation with right of withdrawals up to 9.8% 

DB 02/2016 
2 full financial years for the participation payable upon maturity/ 4 full financial 
years for participation with right of withdrawals up to 9.8% 

DB 02/2016 CZK 
2 full financial years for the participation payable upon maturity/ 4 full financial 
years for participation with right of withdrawals up to 9.8% 

DB 02/2016 
2 full financial years for the participation payable upon maturity/ 4 full financial 
years for participation with right of withdrawals up to 9.8% 

DB 04/2018 
2 full financial years for the participation payable upon maturity/ 4 full financial 
years for participation with right of withdrawals up to 8% 

DB 04/2018 
2 full financial years for the participation payable upon maturity/ 4 full financial 
years for participation with right of withdrawals up to 8% 

 

The silent partnerships’ profit participation in the year was as follows:  

€’000s 2019 2018 

Silent partnerships’ profit participation   

Silent partnerships’ profit participation under local accounting standards 4,903 9,058 

As applied to these IFRS financial statements::   

IFRS loss before taxation and silent partnerships’ profit  participation (8,840) (30,599) 

Legal silent partnerships’ profit participation in year under local accounting standards (4,903) (9,057) 

IFRS loss for the period (13,743) (39,656) 

Silent partnerships' profit participation 13,744 39,653 

Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders (1) (3) 

 

b) Bonds 

Recognition, de-recognition and measurement  

Bonds are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bonds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any 
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the issuance of debt and convertible debt are recognised as transaction costs.  

Bonds are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The differ-
ence between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration 
paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs. 

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of 
the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.  

Bonds are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months after the reporting period 
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€’000s 2019 2018 

Bonds   

Current 392 415 

Non-current 44,623 42,419 

Total bonds 45,015 42,834 

The fair value of borrowings in comparison to carrying value and maturity profile is presented in note 14. 

The types of bonds as issued are laid out below:  

Description Earliest termination date Interest rate 

CTI 2 CZK (ISIN CZ0003512337) 30 June 2017, then 31 December, with 6 months notice  Zero coupon 

CTI 2 EUR (ISIN CZ0003512592) 30 June 2017, then 31 December, with 6 months notice Zero coupon 

CTI 2 CZK (ISIN CZ0003513244)  31 December 2017 and then annually, with 6 months notice Zero coupon 

CTI 2 CZK (ISIN CZ0003515363) 30 June 2019, then 31 December, with 6 months notice Zero coupon 

CTI 5 CZK (ISIN CZ0003512329) 30 June 2020, then 31 December, with 12 months notice 9.8% 

CTI 5 EUR (ISIN CZ0003512584) 30 June 2020, then 31 December, with 12 months notice 9.8% 

CTI 4 CZK (ISIN CZ0003513251)  31 December 2019 , then 31 December, with 6 months notice 8.0% 

CTI 4 CZK (ISIN CZ0003515355) 30 June 2021, then 31 December, with 6 months notice 7.0% 

2,50/28 CHF (ISIN LI0363131504) 31 December 2019 then annually with 6 months notice 2.5% 

3,075/29 EUR (ISIN LI0477071513) 31 December 2020, then quarterly, with 6 months notice 3.075% 

3,075/29 CZK (ISIN LI0477071521) 31 December 2020, then quarterly, with 6  months notice 3.075% 

3,075/29 CHF (ISIN LI0477071505) 31 December 2020, then quarterly, with 6  months notice 3.075% 

5,80/29 CZK (ISIN LI0476476267) 31 December 2024 ,then annually, with 12 months notice 5.8% 

 

c) Convertible bonds  

Recognition, de-recognition and measurement  
Convertible bonds are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Convertible bonds are subsequent ly measured 
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or 
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the issuance of debt and convertible debt are 
recognised as transaction costs.  

Convertible bonds are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the 
consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or 
finance costs. 

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of 
the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.  

Convertible bonds are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting period 

 

€’000s 2019 2018 

Convertible bonds   

Current 617 326 

Non-current 48,311 23,592 

Total convertible bonds 48,928 23,918 

The fair value of borrowings in comparison to carrying value and maturity profile is presented in note 14. 
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The types of convertible bonds as issued are laid out below:  

Description Earliest termination date Interest rate 

3,75/21 CHF (ISIN LI0363131512) 31 December 2021 or 2022 or 2023 if renewed 3.75% 

7/2027 CZK (ISIN LI0395604684) 31 December 2021, annually with 12 months notice 7.0% 

5,8/2027 CZK (ISIN LI0395604734) 31 December 2020, annually with 12 months notice 5.8% 

4,175/27 EUR (ISIN LI0423561583) 31 December 2021, annually with 6 months notice 4.175% 

5,175/29 EUR (ISIN LI0477071539) 31 December 2024, every six months, with 12 months notice 5.175% p.a. 

4,75/29 CHF (ISIN LI0476476259) 31 December 2024, every six months, with 12 months notice 4.75% p.a. 

GG Bond 19/27 EUR (ISIN LI0431500078) 31 December 2022, annually with 12 months notice Index linked 

GG Bond 19/28 CHF (ISIN LI0498822704) 31 December 2023, annually with 12 months notice Index linked 

GG Bond 19/28 CZK (ISIN LI0488506614) 31 December 2023, annually with 12 months notice Index linked 

 

d) Other payables – related parties 

Amounts payable to related parties are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. These are not interest bearing. 

 
€’000s Type 2019 2018 

Other payables – related parties    

ThomasLloyd CTI (CZ) Accrued interest 2,099 2,728 

ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding Operating balances 100 61 

Cleantech KG II  60 - 

Cleantech KG III  70 - 

Total other payables – related parties  2,329 2,789 

e) Accrued expenses and other payables 

Accrued expenses are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

 
€’000s 2019 2018 

Accrued expenses and other payables   

Withholding tax payable  7,161   6,722  

Terminated contracts 398   1,876  

Trade payables 244  100  

Other accrued expenses 181 1,140 

Total accrued expenses and other payables 7,984 9,838  

6. Share capital  

Ordinary shares have a par value of €1. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the 
company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. These rights are subject to the prior entitlements of the 
silent partnerships, which are classified as liabilities (refer to note 5 a). The company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital. 
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7. Total net income and movement on financial assets 

Interest from loans and receivables represents interest accruing on loans to related parties, being ThomasLloyd CTI Asia. 

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents interest from investments in debt securities, being the  
compulsory convertible debt securities. 

Where withholding taxes apply, interest income is shown gross, with the relevant withholding tax charge recorded in within the “Taxation” 
in the statement of comprehensive income 

 
€’000s 2019 2018 

Interest from loans and receivables 17,407 751 

Unrealised foreign exchange gain/(loss) on financial assets 1,767 (375) 

Unrealised M2M losses on financial assets at FVTPL (6,368) (17,165) 

Total net income and movements on financial assets 12,806 (16,789) 

 

Interest from loans and receivables is accruing at 8.5%- 12.8% on loans to related parties, being ThomasLloyd CTI Asia and a receivable 
from ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding.  The latter has been settled as of 31 December 2019.   

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is accruing at 11.75% per annum.  

Unrealised mark to market losses and the assumptions and estimates included in the valuation are explained further in note 4a. 

8. Management fee 

Management fees are payable to the Investment Manager is calculated at 2% of total assets of the Company at 31 December annually. 
Advance payments may be made throughout the year in relation to the management fees based on estimates although the final calculation 
is due on the final total assets as at the year-end. In 2018, the Investment Advisor was ThomasLloyd GAM (CH).  

The Company may also be required to pay a performance fee to the Investment manager, calculated annually at 31 December. The 
performance fee is calculated based on the share of the profits attributable to the average capital. No performance fee is due if the year-
end performance is less than the high water mark, which is defined as the highest point at which a performance fee has been paid in the 
past. Performance fees payable in 2019 were nil (2018: nil). 

9. Acquisition costs 

Acquisition costs are legal and consulting fees incurred to structure the acquisition in 2019 and the disposal in 2018 of the  shares in 
ThomasLloyd CTI Asia and SolarArise from and to ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding.  

10. Other operating expenses 

€’000s 2019 2018 

Other operating expenses   

Commission expenses (757) (769) 

Foreign currency expense (1,468) 516 

Legal and professional expenses (355) (57) 

Other expenses (731) (576) 

Total other operating expenses (3,311) (886) 
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11. Interest income and expense – related parties 

€’000s 2019 2018 

Interest income – related parties   

ThomasLloyd GAM (CH) 113 201 

ThomasLloyd GAM (US) 123 - 

ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding - 196 

ThomasLloyd CTI (FL) 74 19 

Total interest income – related parties 310 416 

Interest expense – related parties   

ThomasLloyd CTI (FL) (2,468) (2,715) 

ThomasLloyd CTI (CZ) (3,216) (3,301) 

Total interest expenses – related parties (5,684) (6,016) 

Net interest expense – related parties (5,374) (5,600) 

12. Taxation 

The Company is domiciled in Germany. Under the current laws of Germany, the Company is subject to corporate, trade and sales tax. 
Management has assessed the risk of specific identifiable risks related to uncertain tax positions as low and as a result, has identified 
no matters that require further disclosure in these financial statements.  

Additionally the Company will incur withholding taxes in future periods in relation to interest income on the investments in SolarArise in 
December 2019. Such income or gains are recorded gross of withholding taxes in the statement of comprehensive income.  

No tax reconciliation has been prepared under IAS 12 “Taxes” as the tax liability reported by the Company for the reporting year is 
immaterial. Deferred taxes were not recognised in either the reporting year or in the prior year.  

13. Financial risks  

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow 
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Company’s overall risk management programme seeks to maximise the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Company is 
exposed and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. The Company’s policy allows it to use 
derivative financial instruments to both moderate and create certain risk exposures.  

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on purchased options, long equity and debt 
securities is limited to the fair value of those positions. On written call options, short future positions and on equity and debt sold short, 
the maximum loss of capital can be unlimited. The maximum loss of capital on written put options, long futures and forward currency 
contracts is limited to the notional contract values of those positions. 

The Company uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risk to which it is exposed; these methods are 
explained below. 

14. Market risk 

(i) Foreign exchange risk  

The Company operates internationally and holds both monetary and non-monetary assets denominated in currencies other than the euro, 
the functional currency. Foreign currency risk, as defined in IFRS 7, arises as the value of future transactions, recognised monetary 
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in other currencies fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. IFRS 7 considers the 
foreign exchange exposure relating to non-monetary assets and liabilities to be a component of market price risk not foreign currency 
risk. However, management monitors the exposure on all foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities.  

The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange hedging transactions for the purpose of managing its exposure to foreign 
exchange movements (both monetary and non-monetary). 

When the Investment Manager formulates a view on the future direction of foreign exchange rates and the potential impact on the Company, 
the Investment Manager factors that into its portfolio allocation decisions. While the Company has direct exposure to foreign exchange rate 
changes on the price of non-euro-denominated securities, it may also be indirectly affected by the impact of foreign exchange rate changes 
on the earnings of certain companies in which the Company invests, and therefore the below sensitivity analysis may not necessarily indicate 
the total effect on the Company’s net assets attributable to shareholders of future movements in foreign exchange rates. 

The tables below summarise the Company’s assets and liabilities, monetary and non-monetary, which are denominated in a currency 
other than the euro: 
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2019 – In €’000s EUR USD INR CZK CHF Other Total 

Financial assets held at FVTPL  63,371  89,022  33,430   76   48  - 185,947 

Financial assets at amortised cost - 206,325  - - - - 206,325 

Current assets excluding cash and cash 
equivalents  35,659   17,817  1,098  4,730  -  389 59,693  

Cash and cash equivalents  16,284  763  -  906  1,333  1 19,287  

Total assets 115,314 313,927 34,528 5,712 1,381 390 471,252 

Silent partnerships  (345,642)  (2,034)  - (13,626)  (5,696)   (366,998)  

Bonds (3,867)  - - (40,189)  ( 959)   (45,015)  

Convertible bonds  (10,652)  - - (30,827)  (7,449)    (48,928)  

Other liabilities  (8,398)  - - (1,915)  -   (10,313)  

Total net assets/(liabilities) (253,245)  311,893  34,528  (80,845)  (12,723) 390  (2)  

 

In accordance with the Company’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Company’s monetary and non-monetary foreign ex-
change exposure on a daily basis, and the Company reviews it on a quarterly basis. The aggregate net foreign exchange gains/losses 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss are disclosed in notes 7 and 10 in relation to foreign exchange differences on financial assets 
at FVTPL and operating balances respectively. 

The sensitivity analysis to the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rate is based on the assumptions that the relevant 
foreign exchange rate increased/decreased by a reasonable percentage, with all other variables held constant. A 5% fluctuation repre-
sents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the foreign exchange rates, having regard to historical volatility of 
those rates.  

As at 31 December 2019, had the USD strengthened by 5% in relation to EUR, net assets would have increased by €16.4 million.  
A 5% weakening of the USD against EUR would have decreased net assets by €14.9 million.  

As at 31 December 2019, had the INR strengthened by 5% in relation to EUR, net assets would have increased by €1.8 million.  
A 5% weakening of the INR against EUR would have decreased net assets by €1.6 million. 

As at 31 December 2019, had the CZK strengthened by 5% in relation to EUR, net liabilities would have increased by €4.3 million.  
A 5% weakening of the CZK against EUR would have decreased net assets by €3.8 million. 

As at 31 December 2019, had the CHF strengthened by 5% in relation to EUR, net liabilities would have increased by €0.6 million.  
A 5% weakening of the CHF against EUR would have decreased net assets by €0.7 million. 

(ii) Price risk  

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the Company for 
which prices in the future are uncertain. Where non-monetary financial instruments – for example, equity securities – are denominated in 
currencies other than the euro, the price initially expressed in foreign currency and then converted into euros will also fluctuate because 
of changes in foreign exchange rates.  

The Company’s policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial instruments within 
specified limits set by Management.  

(iii) Cash flow and interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of markets interest rates on the fair value of financial assets 
and liabilities and future cash flow. The Company has invested in loans to related parties and CCDs which generate fixed interest cash 
flows. Additionally, the Company holds cash at bank which has a maturity of less than one year. Therefore the Company’s exposure to 
interest rate risk is limited. 

Liquidity risk  
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations in full as they fall 
due. 

The Company could be exposed to cash redemptions of products issued through its business model of investing in debt or equity secu-
rities that are not actively traded on a stock exchange. As a result, the Company may not be able to liquidate quickly its investments in 
these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity requirements, or be able to respond to specific events such 
as deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer. 

The Company has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement. No such borrowings have arisen during the year.  
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In order to manage the Company’s overall liquidity, the Company also has the ability to withhold redemption requests. Under extraordinary 
circumstances, the Company has the ability to suspend redemptions if this is deemed to be in the best interest of all shareholders. The 
Company did not withhold any redemptions or implement any suspension during 2019 and 2018. 

The tables below analyse The Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all 
non-derivative financial liabilities: 

2019 – In €’000s Less than  
1 year 

1 – 5  
years 

More than  
5 years Total Carrying  

value 

Silent partnerships 6,266 150,695 210,037 366,998 366,998 

Bonds 392 44,623 - 45,015 45,015 

Convertible bonds 617 45,497 2,814 48,928 48,928 

Other payables – related parties 2,329 - - 2,329 2,329 

Accruals and other payables 7,984 - - 7,984 7,984 

 17,588 240,815 212,851 471,254 471,254 

 

2018 – In €’000s Less than  
1 year 

1 – 5  
years 

More than  
5 years Total Carrying  

value 

Silent partnerships 5,635 93,071 164,708 263,414 263,414 

Bonds 415 42,419 - 42,834 42,834 

Convertible bonds 326 23,592 - 23,918 23,918 

Other payables – related parties 2,789 - - 2,789 2,789 

Accruals and other payables 9,838 - - 9,838 9,838 

 19,003 159,082 164,708 342,793 342,793 

 

Credit risk  
The Company is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other 
party by failing to discharge an obligation. 

The main concentration to which the Company is exposed arises from the Company’s investments in debt securities. The Company is 
also exposed to a lesser extent, to counterparty credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, loans and other receivables balances. 

The Company measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default. 
Management consider both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining any expected credit loss. 

The Company’s policy is to minimize credit risk by entering into transactions only with leading financial institutions and reputable industrial 
companies. Any idle funds pending investment or distribution may temporarily be invested in money market instruments and other liquid 
assets at the discretion of the Investment Manager. Any such temporary investments must be placed with reputable rated institutions. 

Capital risk management 
The capital of the Company is represented by the net assets attributable to shareholders. The Company’s objective when managing 
capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders, provide benefits 
for other stakeholders and maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Company. In order 
to maintain the capital structure, the Company’s policy is to perform the following:  

- Monitor the level of subscriptions and redemptions  
- Redeem and issue new products in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Company, which include the ability to restrict 

redemptions and require certain minimum holdings and subscriptions.  

Management and Investment Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to shareholders. 

Fair value estimation 
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities) are 
based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the year-end date. An active market is a market in which transactions for the 
asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.  

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The 
Company uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each year end date. Valu-
ation techniques used for non-standardised financial instruments such as options, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, 
include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted 
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cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum 
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.  

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Company may use internally developed models, which are usually based on 
valuation methods and techniques generally recognised as standard within the industry. Valuation models are used primarily to value 
unlisted equity, debt securities and other debt instruments for which markets were or have been inactive during the financial year. Some 
of the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions. The output of a model 
is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation techniques employed may not 
fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Company holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for 
additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty risk. 

The carrying value less impairment provision of other receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair 
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market 
interest rate that is available to the Company for similar financial instruments.  

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the 
measurement date;  

- Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, ei ther directly 
or indirectly; and  

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

2019 – In €’000s Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial assets     

Financial assets at FVTPL (note 2a)     

Investment in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia  - - 89,022 89,022 

Investment in SolarArise India - - 33,430 33,430 

Investment in ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF - 62,377 - 62,377 

Investment in ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV - 968 - 968 

Investment in other related parties - - 150 150 

Total financial assets at FVTPL - 63,345 122,602 185,947 

Financial liabilities – non -current     

Silent partnerships - - 366,998 366,998 

Total financial liabilities at FVTPL - - 366,998 366,998 
 
2018 – In €’000s Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Financial assets     

Financial assets at FVTPL (note 2a)     

Investment in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia  - - - - 

Investment in SolarArise India - - - - 

Investment in ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF - 58,624 - 58,624 

Investment in ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV - 1,968 - 1,968 

Investment in other related parties - - 150 150 

Total financial assets at FVTPL - 60,592 150 60,741 

Financial liabilities – non -current     

Silent partnerships - - 263,414 263,414 

Total financial liabilities at FVTPL - - 263,414 263,414 

During 2019, the investments in ThomasLloyd SICAV - SIIF and ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV were classified as level 2 as these shares 
are bought in the open market but not traded in an active market. In 2018 there were no movements between levels in the financial year. 
The Company does not have any investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, therefore no assets 
or liabilities are assigned to level 1 in the hierarchy.  

The Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are unlisted assets and liabilities, with no 
existing market for trading. Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently. Level 3 
instruments include private equity and corporate debt securities. As observable prices are not available for these securities, the Company 
has used valuation techniques to derive the fair value.  
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Level 3 valuations are reviewed on an annual basis by an independent valuer and the Investment Advisor’s valuation team who report to 
Management. The appropriateness of the valuation model inputs, as well as the valuation result using various valuation methods and 
techniques generally recognised as standard within the industry, is assessed regularly.  

15. Related party transactions 

A related party is determined to be either a subsidiary (whether consolidated or not), a controlled entity, an entity over which the company 
has significant control and a member of key management.  

Transactions with related parties during 2019 and 2018, excluding interest which is disclosed in note 11, were as follows: 

€’000s Transaction type 2019 2018 

ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Interest on loans receivable 5,783  751  

ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding Interest on receivable from sale of investments 11,624  -  

ThomasLloyd GAM (US) Management fees (9,428)  - 

ThomasLloyd GAM (CH)  Management fees -  (5,838)  

Amounts receivable and amounts payable to related parties are disclosed in notes 4b)iv, 4bv) and 5d).  

There are no personnel employed by the Company therefore there are no key management.  

The immediate parent of the Company is ThomasLloyd Holdings Limited and the ultimate parent is MNA Capital Ltd. The ultimate bene-
ficial owner is Michael Sieg, Chairman. 

16. Events after the balance sheet date 

There have been no reportable events after the balance sheet date, other than as described below: 

- The COVID-19 outbreak has developed rapidly in 2020, with a significant number of infections. Measures taken to contain the virus 
have affected economic activity globally. Measures to prevent transmission of the virus include limiting the movement of people, 
restricting flights and other travel, temporarily closing businesses and schools, and cancelling events. This will have an immediate 
impact on businesses such as affecting supply chains and the production of goods throughout the world and lower economic activity 
is likely to result in reduced demand for energy. Additionally, the current situation may delay investment decisions, with subscriptions 
to the Company either halting or being lower than expected. The Directors’ continue to monitor the ongoing situation closely and do 
not view it as a risk to the going concern assumption in the next 12 months.  

17. Accounting policies 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements to the 
extent they have not already been disclosed in the other notes above. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years 
presented, unless otherwise stated.  

The financial statements are for the Company.  

a) Basis of preparation  

(i)  Compliance with IFRS – The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to companies 
reporting under IFRS.  

(ii)  Historical cost convention – The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial 
assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments),are measured at fair value  

(iii)  New accounting standards – During the year the Company did not apply any new standards or amendments to accounting stand-
ards which had an impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or 
future periods.  

(iv)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted – Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published 
that are not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by The Company. These 
standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable 
future transactions. 
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b) Foreign currency translation 

(i)  Functional and presentation currency – Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the cur-
rency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements 
are presented in Euros which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. 

(ii)  Transactions and balances – Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates 
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from 
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates, are generally  
recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment 
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to 
borrowings and operating balances are presented in the statement of profit or loss, within operating costs. Non-monetary items 
that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was 
determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. 
For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss 
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss, and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as 
equities classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive income. 

c) Taxation  
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income, based on the applicable income 
tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused 
tax losses. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting 
period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management  
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. 
It establishes provisions, where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they 
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or 
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit 
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the 
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is 
settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences 
and losses. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments 
in foreign operations where the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that 
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future 

d) Impairment of assets 
Assets other than goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value 
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash 
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial 
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. 

e) Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call 
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily con-
vertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts 
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet. 

f) Receivables from related parties 
Receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain significant financing compo-
nents when they are recognised at fair value. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less loss allowance.  

g) Investments and other financial assets 

(i) Classification 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:  

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and  
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- those to be measured at amortised cost. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets 
and the contractual terms of the cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments 
that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether The Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition 
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 

(ii) Recognition and de-recognition 

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which The Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired 
or have been transferred and The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 

(iii) Measurement 

At initial recognition, The Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial 
assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss. 

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment 
of principal and interest. 

Debt instruments 

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on The Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow 
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which The Company classifies its debt instruments: 

- Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments of 
principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in 
other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

- FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment 
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in 
which it arises. 

- FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through 
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are 
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included 
in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses), 
and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss. 

Equity instruments 

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where The Company’s management has elected to present 
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or 
loss following the de-recognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other 
income when The Company’s right to receive payments is established. 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable. 
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other 
changes in fair value. 

h) Impairment 
The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised 
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade 
receivables, The Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised 
from initial recognition of the receivables. 

i) Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are 
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as 
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

j) Debt and convertible debt 
Debt and convertible debt are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Debt and convertible debt are subse-
quently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is 
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recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the issuance of debt and 
convertible debt are recognised as transaction costs.  

Debt and convertible debt are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and 
the consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or 
finance costs. 

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the 
liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.  

Debt and convertible debt are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an uncondit ional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period 

k) Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial instruments are offset and the net amount reported at the balance sheet only when there is a currently a legally enforceable 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simul-
taneously. A current legally and contractually enforceable right to offset must not be contingent on a future event.  

l) Provisions 
Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good obligations are recognised when the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and 
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar 
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. 
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may 
be small. 

m) Rounding  
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Euros unless otherwise stated. 
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Glossary  

Description Abbreviation 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH Company 

ThomasLloyd TL 

ThomasLloyd Global Asset Management (Americas) LLC ThomasLloyd GAM (US) 

ThomasLloyd Global Asset Management (Schweiz) AG ThomasLloyd GAM (CH) 

ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holdings Pte Ltd ThomasLloyd CTI Asia 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Asia Holding GmbH ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holding 

ThomasLloyd CTI Philippines Holdings Inc ThomasLloyd CTI Philippines Holdings 

ThomasLloyd SICAV – Sustainable Infrastructure Income Fund ThomasLloyd SICAV – SIIF 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Fund SICAV ThomasLloyd CTIF SICAV 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Czech) a.s. ThomasLloyd CTI (CZ) 

ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure (Liechtenstein) AG ThomasLloyd CTI (FL) 

Cleantech Infrastrukturegesellschaft mbH & Co. KG Cleantech KG I 

Zweite Cleantech Infrastrukturegesellschaft mbH & Co. KG Cleantech KG II 

Dritte Cleantech Infrastrukturegesellschaft mbH & Co. KG Cleantech KG III 

Vierte Cleantech Infrastruktur GmbH Cleantech GmbH IV 

Fünfte Cleantech Infrastrukturegesellschaft mbH & Co. KG Cleantech KG V 

San Carlos Biopower Inc. SCB  

South Negros Biopower Inc SNB 

North Negros Biopower Inc NNB 

North Island Solar Power Inc ISLASOL 

SolarArise India Projects Private Limited SolarArise India 

International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the  
European Union IFRS 

Fair value through profit or loss FVTPL 
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Auditor's Report - "Prüfungsvermerk" according to German
Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (Institute of Public Auditors in 
Germany, IDW)

To ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH, Langen

We have audited the financial statements of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH – 

which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2019, the statement of comprehensive income, 

the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, notes to the 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the management report.

Management’s Responsibility 

Management of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH is responsible for the preparation 

of the financial statements in accordance with the International Accounting Standards described and for 

such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 

our audit of the financial information in accordance with German generally accepted standards for the 

audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (Institute of Public Auditors 

in Germany) (IDW). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit of the financial information to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

information is free from material misstatement. 

Page 44



 

116 

PKF WULF & PARTNER 
Wirtschaftsprüfer. Steuerberater.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts stated in the 

financial information and to the notes and management report. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

information, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 

internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial information in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial information. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion. 

Audit Opinion 

In our opinion based on the findings of our audit, the accompanying financial statements for the business 

year from January 1, 2019, to December 31, 2019, is in accordance with the International Accounting 

Standards. 

Notes for highlighting special facts

a) Balance sheet item: Other receivables (related parties) - advance payments on future withdrawal 

    claims of the silent partner, Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Langen

Based on the agreement between the parties on the establishment of a typical silent partnership, the 

silent partner Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG is entitled to withdrawal rights and 

a settlement credit, consisting of the balance of the capital account, the share in the assets including 

hidden reserves and enterprise value of the company. On the basis of this agreement the Company 

has so far made payments of  € 16.2 million to the silent partner Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft mbH 

& Co. KG, Langen, whereby payments of € 12.2 million were contractually due for payment and legally

enforceable on a permanent basis. Thus, a total of € 3.9 million was not yet due for payment.

As of the balance sheet date, the net profit share 2019 attributable to Cleantech Infrastrukturgesellschaft 

mbH & Co. KG in the amount of € 0.3 million was offset, leaving a remaining amount of € 3.6 million. The 

Company reports this amount within other receivables (related parties). The Company and the silent 

partner agree that the amount not yet due for payment was an advance payment on future withdrawal 

claims of the silent partner under the agreement on the establishment of a common silent partnership for 

the financial years 2020 et seq. and that the Company therefore made advance payments on a separate 

liability not yet due - namely future withdrawal claims of the silent partner. The advance payment is 
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getting reduced from 2020 onwards by the development of the portfolio according to plan and realised

income accordingly. In this case, the advance payment will be recognised as expenses by the 

Company.

b) Balance sheet item: Financial assets at FVTPL

As at the balance sheet date, the company bought back the shares in ThomasLloyd CTI Asia Holdings 

Pte. Ltd, Singapore, as well as the equity shares and securities in SolarArise India Projects Private 

Limited, Gurgaon (India), from its subsidiary ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Asia Holding GmbH, 

Langen, at a purchase price of € 138.0 million and € 42.3 million respectively. The transaction prices are

based on the respective fair market value at the balance sheet date.

The management of the Company has provided valuation reports as audit evidence for the investigation

of the investment portfolios as at balance sheet date.

The external valuation experts have reviewed the three biomass projects San Carlos BioPower, South 

Negros BioPower and North Negros BioPower and the solar portfolio of SolarArise India at balance

sheet date and are getting to a lower valuation. The relevant valuation difference is on the one hand due

to a different valuation approach in the calculation of the WACC for the biomass projects San Carlos 

BioPower, South Negros BioPower and North Negros BioPower and the solar portfolio of SolarArise India. 

The WACC deviation between the valuation experts and of the Company is on average 1.53%

(previous year: 1.76%) and 2.2% (previous year: 2.21%) respectively.

On the other hand, the deviation is due, among other things, to synergy effects from the successful 

commissioning and claims for compensation due to construction delays as well as from financed

and secured portfolio expansions, which the valuation experts have not included due to the balance

sheet date.

We would like to point out that the transaction prices are contracts between related parties and that

there is always scope for discretion in their valuation. The value-determining factors were therefore 

determined including the facts described above. 

According to relevant IFRS standards, a purchase price allocation for investment companies does not 

follow IFRS 3, but must measure the acquisition of shares at fair value.

The fair value option is applied and the differences between the transaction prices on the one hand and 

the fair value valuations on the other hand are recognised as expenses under the item "Unrealised M2M 

losses on financial assets held at FVTPL".
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From an auditing perspective, we believe that the audit evidence presented in this context (including 

internal and external valuation reports, planning calculations, annual financial statements and audit 

reports of individual companies, assumptions regarding synergy effects) is understandable.

The valuations are based - where necessary and taking into account certain uncertainties, which 

estimates and planning models are usually based on - on reasonable and verifiable assumptions. Our 

audit opinion on the financial statements and the management report has not been modified in this

respect.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use 

The financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards have been

prepared voluntarily. The management of ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH has

prepared annual financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019 in accordance

with German commercial law, on which we have issued an unqualified audit opinion dated 

September 30, 2020.

Our report is intended solely for ThomasLloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Holding GmbH and should not 

be distributed to or used by third parties without our prior written approval. 

General Terms of Engagement 

We issue this report on the basis of the engagement agreed with the ThomasLloyd Cleantech 

Infrastructure Holding GmbH, which comprises the attached General Terms and Conditions of Enga-

gement as of August 1, 2017, which are also applicable to third parties. 

Stuttgart, November 30, 2020

PKF WULF & PARTNER
Partnerschaft mbB

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft  Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

Ralph Setzer
Wirtschaftsprüfer (German Public Auditor)
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G e n e r a l  T e r m s  a n d  C o n d i t i o n s  o f  E n g a g e m e n t   
P K F W U L F  &  P A R T N E R 

Partnerschaft mbB 
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft Steuerberatungsgesellschaft 

 
I.  Provisions applying across engagements and activities 
1. Scope/Applicable law 
1.1.   The following terms of engagement shall apply to all agreements concluded 

- irrespective of their form - between PKF WULF & PAR TNER 
Partnerschaft mbB Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft Steuerberatungs-
gesellschaft (hereinafter referred to as PKF) and their clients which provide 
for an auditing or advisory activity by PKF unless these have been 
otherwise expressly agreed in writing or mandatorily prescribed by law. 

1.2.  If, in exceptional cases, contractual relationships are also established 
between PKF and persons or entities other than the client, the provisions 
regarding the limitation of liability in Nos. 12 and 14 below shall also 
apply to such third parties. 

1.3.   Proper general terms and conditions of clients shall not be applicable overall 
irrespective of whether the client opposes the validity of competing 
provisions in its general terms and conditions. 

1.4.   German law shall apply exclusively to the engagement, its execution and all 
of the claims arising from the engagement. 

1.5.   The court competent for the respective place of the PKF office with which 
the engagement relationship was established shall be responsible for 
disputes arising from the engagement relationship. 

2. Scope and contents of the engagement 
2.1.   The subject of the engagement shall be the service agreed upon and not a 

defined economic outcome. 
2.2.   The engagement and its respective activities shall be executed in accor- 

dance with the generally accepted principles of professional conduct, ob- 
serving the respective authoritative professional standards for auditors and 
tax advisors. 

2.3.   In cases of doubt, the engagement shall be divided into separate activities 
relating to statutory audit and other services including in par- ticular also tax 
advice, voluntary audit and other services (e.g. management and IT 
consulting, provision of expert opinions). The application of foreign law shall 
require a specifically written agreement. 

2.4.   If, after making a final professional statement, the legal situation changes 
for reasons such as changes in statutory regulations or jurisprudence, PKF 
shall not be obliged to draw the client’s attention to any resulting changes 
or conclusions. 

2.5.   In case of any possible defects, the client shall be entitled to make statutory 
claims with the provision that the claims not based on an intentional action 
shall prescribe after the expiry of one year from the start of the statutory 
commencement of the prescription period. 

2.6.   Obvious inaccuracies such as typing errors, calculation errors and formal 
defects included in a professional statement by PKF can be corrected by 
PKF also in relation to third parties. Inaccuracies which may render doubtful 
results contained in the professional statement by PKF shall entitle PKF to 
withdraw the statements also in relation to third parties. 

2.7.  Otherwise, for the scope and content of the engagement and its partial 
performances, the activity-related provisions shall apply in accordance with 
the following Items II and III depending on the type of activity. 

 
3. Remuneration 
3.1.  The amount of remuneration shall be determined in accordance with the 

individually agreed amount plus expenditures and statutory VAT and is due 
14 days after receipt of the invoice. 

3.2.   The client is informed that a higher or lower remuneration than prescribed 
   by law can be agreed on in written form (§ 4 Sec. 4 StBVV). 
3.3.   Multiple clients shall be jointly and severally liable. 
3.4.  The out-of-pocket expenses cover items such as additional catering 

expenses in an amount recognised for tax purposes as well as the cost of 
travel and overnight stays. 

3.5.   If a lump-sum remuneration has been agreed upon instead of remuneration 
based on time spent and this is based expressly on an estimate of our 
effort, PKF shall inform the client if, due to unforeseeable circumstances in 
the client’s area, the actually foreseeable level is substantially less or more 
than this estimate. PKF and the client shall then jointly adjust the lump-sum 
remuneration accordingly in accordance with the decrease or increase in 
time spent. 

3.6.   PKF is entitled to claim reasonable advance payments of remuneration and 
refund of out-of-pocket expenses and to make the delivery of its service 
dependent upon the full satisfaction of its claims. Moreover, PKF shall be 
entitled to invoice in installments also for audit engagements. 

3.7.   Offsetting against accounts receivable by PKF for remuneration and refund 
of out-of-pocket-expenses shall only be admissible against accounts 
receivable which are not disputed or which have been the subject of a final 
and non-appealable court decision. 

 
4. Obligations of the client 
4.1.   The client shall guarantee that all actions are refrained from which could 

jeopardise the independence of PKF employees. This shall apply in parti- 
cular to offers of appointment and to offers to take over engagements for 
the employee’s account. 

4.2.  The client must arrange that PKF shall be provided with all documents 
necessary for the execution of the engagement without special request and 
in a timely manner and that PKF shall be notified of all developments and 
circumstances which can be of importance for the execution of the 
engagement. This shall also apply to any documents, developments and 
circumstances which only become known during the activity. 

4.3.  Upon request by PKF, the client must confirm the completeness of the 
documents submitted and the supplied information and explanations in a 
letter of representation formulated by PKF. 

4.4.   If the client defaults on acceptance of the service offered by PKF or if the 
client omits to comply with the obligations set out in No. 4 or otherwise, 
PKF shall be entitled to terminate the contract without notice after the expiry 
of a reasonable period of time, unless statutory provisions are opposed to 
termination. The claim for remuneration arising up to termination as well as 
the claims for refund of the additional expenditure caused by the default or 
the omitted co-operation of the client and the compensation of damages 
caused shall remain unaffected, even if PKF does not make any use of its 
right to terminate. 

4.5.  The client shall guarantee that the output produced and any documents 
prepared by PKF within the scope of the engagement, in particular audit 
reports, expert opinions, organisation charts, drafts, drawings, lists and 
calculations, including calculations of quantities and cost, will only be used 
for its own purposes. 

5. Passing-on of professional statements and results of engagements 
5.1.  The passing-on of professional statements by PKF to a third party shall 

require, irrespective of the contents and form of the statement, the written 
consent of PKF, unless consent for the passing-on to a defined third party 
follows from the contents of the engagement. 

5.2.   The client shall be obliged to conclude in writing with the third party in favour 
of PKF an agreement corresponding to one of the limitations of liability 
according to Nos. 12 and 14 concerning the limitation of the liability of PKF 
and to appoint therein that the maximum amount of liability is an overall 
maximum total for all of the claims covered by the limitation of liability. 

5.3.   In any case PKF shall be liable in relation to a third party only up to the 
amount of the limitations of liability in accordance with Nos. 12 and 14 and 
only on the condition that the stipulations under No. 5.1 have been met. 

5.4.   The use of professional statements from PKF for advertising purposes shall 
be inadmissible. In the event of infringement, PKF shall be entitled, 
irrespective of the making of other claims, to terminate without notice all of 
the engagements of the client not yet performed. 

 
6. Principle of written form 
6.1.   Results and disclosures have to be presented by PKF in writing or in text 

form. For verbal disclosures and advice, PKF shall only accept liability if 
they have been confirmed in writing so that then only the written presen- 
tation is authoritative. 

6.2.   In the case of audit engagements, the report shall be prepared in writing, 
unless agreed otherwise. 

6.3.   Verbal statements and information from PKF members of staff outside of 
the engagement shall always be non-binding. 

6.4.   An agreement deviating from or modifying the requirement of written form 
included in these terms and conditions of engagement must be in writing. 

 
7. Storage and surrender of documents 
7.1.   PKF shall keep the provided documents and the documents produced by 

itself in connection with the execution of an engagement as well as the 
correspondence exchanged concerning the engagement for a period of ten 
years. 

7.2.   After the satisfaction of its claims under the engagement, PKF shall, upon 
the client’s request, surrender all documents received during its activity 
for the engagement from the client or on behalf of the latter. This shall not 
apply, however, to the correspondence between PKF and its client and to 
the documents which the latter already possesses in the original or as a 
copy. PKF may produce and retain copies or photocopies of the documents 
to be returned to the client then. 

 
8. Confidentiality obligation and data privacy 
8.1.  PKF is legally obliged to keep all facts which become known to it in 

connection with its activity for the client confidential, regardless of whether 
this involves the client itself or its business relations, unless the client 
releases PKF from this confidentiality obligation. 

8.2.   Reports, expert opinions and other written statements concerning the results 
of its activity may be handed over by PKF to third parties only with the 
client’s consent. 

8.3.   PKF shall be entitled to store, use and process personal data entrusted to it 
by itself or via third parties within the scope of the engagement if this is 
necessary for the execution of the engagement. 

8.4.   PKF is affiliated internationally and nationally to the PKF network, a net- 
work of self-reliant and legally independent auditing companies and can, if 
necessary, fall back on the competences and capacities within the PKF 
network. PKF and the auditing companies within the PKF network shall 
therefore carry out a check as to whether already existing relations with 
clients could militate against the acceptance of new clients (‘conflict of 
interests’). For this purpose the name of the client and the data necessary 
for identification (company name, sector) and the type of engagement shall 
be stored in the PKF network’s databases. If PKF, in co-ordination with the 
client co-operates with members of the PKF network during the execution 
of the engagement, PKF shall be authorised to pass on additional 
information which is necessary for the processing of the engagement. This 
shall apply accordingly to any cooperation by PKF with third parties co-
ordinated with the client. 

8.5.  Within the scope of quality checks/peer reviews prescribed by law or 
voluntary (checking of the quality assurance system by external auditors), 
PKF shall be entitled to give information and to present records and 
documents which are to be prepared for statutory reasons for correct and 
proper documentation of the execution of the engagement to persons 
subject to confidentiality for statutory reasons. This can also concern 
information, records and documents for this engagement. 
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8.6.    The client releases PKF from its confidentiality obligation with regard  to 
 Nos. 8.4 and 8.5. 
8.7 PKF is obliged to comply with the confidentiality obligation when sending or 

transmitting documents in print or electronic form or via telefax. The client is 
obliged to take all necessary safety measures in order to ensure that all 
documents and files will only be transferred to the respective responsible 
person. If measures exceeding the normal standard are to be taken, this 
requires an explicit written agreement. 

 
9. Transmission in electronic form 
9.1.   PKF receives and transmits as required information and documents by e-

mail if the client opens access by stating its e-mail address and in the 
individual case has not objected to electronic transmission. The client is 
informed that the confidentiality of information or data transmitted via electronic 
media (e-mail, short messages, cloud services etc.) or telefax cannot be 
guaranteed. 

9.2.  Should third parties obtain unauthorised access to data transmitted or 
received, or destroy or modify them, PKF shall not be liable for damage/ 
loss incurred by the client or third parties as a result of the transmission in 
electronic form. PKF offers to install a r ecent encryption method in order to 
avoid unauthorized access or the modification or destruction of the transmitted 
or received data by third parties. If the client prefers an encrypted transmission 
of data via e-mail, a written agreement in accordance with 8.7. is obligatory.   

II. Statutory audit 
10.     Scope and contents of the engagement 
10.1. The engagement shall not, unless it is directed distinctly towards it, cover 

the examination of the question as to whether the regulations of tax law or 
special regulations such as regulations of price, restriction of competition 
and control law have been observed; the same shall apply to the ascer- 
tainment of whether subsidies, grants or other benefits can be claimed. The 
execution of an engagement shall only comprise audit procedures which 
are systematically aimed at the discovery of falsification of the books and 
records and other irregularities, if during the carrying-out of audits any 
reason arises for this or this has been expressly agreed upon in writing. 

10.2. PKF shall carry out the audit in accordance with Articles 316 et seq. of 
the German Commercial Code (HGB). Decisive for the execution of the 
engagement are the generally accepted German auditing standards laid 
down by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer in Deutschland e.V. (IDW ). More- 
over, the audit approach is based on international auditing standards 
(International Standards on Auditing, ISA) which are set forth in our PKF 
International Audit Manual. 

10.3. PKF shall plan and execute the audit in such a way that such incorrect- 
nesses or infringements of statutory regulations or the articles of incorpora- 
tion or the shareholders’ agreement can be detected with reasonable 
certainty which have a  significant effect on  the  presentation of  the  net 
assets, financial position and results of operations conveyed by the 
accounting subject to the observance of generally accepted accounting 
principles. To the extent that this serves to secure the propriety of the 
accounting, PKF shall audit and assess the accounting procedures as well 
as the company’s own internal controls. 

10.4. Moreover, if the client is a listed stock corporation, the audit by PKF will, in 
accordance with Art. 317, para. 4 of the German Commercial Code (HGB), 
also cover the early warning system established by the company to assess 
whether management has complied with its obligations according to Art. 91, 
para. 2 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG). 

10.5. The client shall grant PKF in accordance with Art. 320 of the German 
Commercial Code (HGB) unrestricted access to all of the documents and 
information as described in No. 4.2 relevant for the audit. The audit activi- 
ties shall be carried out as usual in the profession on the basis of samples. 
Hence there is an unavoidable risk that even significant false statements or 
other incorrectnesses (e.g. embezzlements) remain undiscovered. 

10.6. The audit shall not restrict the responsibility of the statutory representatives 
of the company to be audited for the annual financial statements including 
the accounting and the management report. Regarding the type and scope 
as well as the result of the audit, PKF shall report with the scope usual in 
the profession and according to the statutory regulation (Art. 321 of the 
German Commercial Code (HGB)). The form of reporting shall be in 
accordance with the German principles of proper reporting laid down by the 
IDW. 

10.7. A subsequent adjustment or shortening of the financial statements or man- 
agement report audited by PKF and provided with an auditor’s opinion shall 
require the written consent of PKF even if a disclosure does not take place.  

  
 
 
 
 

 If PKF has not issued an auditor’s opinion, a reference to the audit carried 
out by PKF in the management report or at another place intended for the 
public shall only be admissible with PKF’s written consent and with the 
wording approved by it. 

10.8. If PKF revokes the auditor’s opinion, the auditor’s opinion must not be used 
any longer. Irrespective of whether the client has already used the auditor’s 
opinion, it shall be obliged at PKF’s request to make known the revocation 
in the way and manner demanded by it and to recall all of the copies of the 
report. 

10.9. The client shall receive five copies of the report. The client can request 
further copies against refund of expenses. 

 
11.     Disclosure 
11.1. The client is obliged to disclose the annual financial statements and, if 

necessary, also the management report plus, if necessary, further documents 
in electronic form. 

11.2. If the client and PKF have expressly agreed this in the engagement letter 
or subsequently, PKF shall abbreviate the annual financial statements and, 
if necessary, the management report in accordance with the contents 
stipulations of the client while observing the statutory minimum require- 
ments and make them available to the client together with the auditor’s 
opinion in a data file form suitable for disclosure purposes. 

11.3. Should the client abbreviate the annual financial statements and possibly 
the management report itself, PKF shall only in the case of an expressed 
agreement in the engagement letter check and certify that the client has 
carried out the abbreviation in a justified and admissible form and manner. 

 
12.     Limitation of liability 
12.1. For audits required by law, the limitation of liability according to Art. 323, 

para. 2 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) shall apply. 
12.2. The limitation of liability according to No. 12.1 shall apply even if liability  

towards a person or entity other than the client should be established. 

III.     Tax advice/Voluntary audit/Other services 
13. Scope and contents of the engagement 
13.1. The contents and the scope of the engagement shall principally be 

laid down between PKF and the client in the form of an engagement 
letter as well as in a written remuneration agreement. 

13.2. The subject of the engagement letter can also be the general consulting 
activity (permanent consulting) with or without a time limit which in the 
individual case is made concrete by the client by means of an inquiry or a 
notification. In these cases, the arrangements agreed upon in the 
engage- ment letter shall apply together with a possible written 
remuneration agree- ment. 

13.3. Nos. 10 and 11 apply accordingly to the voluntary audit. 
13.4. In case PKF has been assigned to compile VAT annual returns, this 

shall not include the checking of any accounting requirements as well as 
the question of whether all relevant VAT-related benefits have been 
claimed. No guarantee is provided for the completeness of the 
documents for the deduction of input tax. 

13.5. PKF shall be entitled both in case of consulting on individual questions 
and also in case of continuous consulting to take the facts stated by the 
client and in particular numerical data as being correct and complete, 
but must draw the attention of the client to any incorrectness found. 

13.6. Consulting engagements do not comprise the actions necessary for 
meet- ing deadlines, unless PKF has expressly accepted an engagement 
for this. In this case, the client must submit all relevant documents 
necessary for meeting deadlines, in particular tax assessment notices in 
such good time that PKF has a reasonable processing time available. 

 
14.     Limitation of liability 
14.1. If no written provision exists in the individual case, the liability of PKF 

for claims for damages of all kinds, with the exception of injuries from 
harm to life and limb and impairment of health, in the case of a 
negligently caused individual claim shall, in accordance with Art. 54 a, 
pa- ra. 1, No. 2 W PO and Art. 67 a, para. 1, No. 2 Tax Consultant Law 
(StBerG) be limited to € 4 million; this shall also apply if liability towards 
a person or entity other than the client has been established. 

14.2. An individual claim is also due with regard to a uniform claim 
originating from several violations of duties. The individual claim 
comprises all of the consequences of a violation of duty regardless of 
whether damage has arisen in one or in several consecutive years. At the 
same time, multiple action or omission based on the same or same 
type of source of error shall be considered a uniform breach of duty if 
the matters concerned are related to each other legally or economically. 
In this case, PKF can only have claims made against it up to the amount 
of € 4 million. 
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